
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 
 

Meeting of the 
 
 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
NOVEMBER 13, 2006 

 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  Submitted By 
      The City Manager 

NOTICE:  Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting 
should contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us at least two working days 
in advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 



 

TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda.  Also included are 
suggested or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your 
consideration and possible amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and staff members.  I am indebted to them for their 
efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
Identified below are goals for the City, which have been advanced by the 
governing body; and Agenda items submitted for your consideration are on 
course with these goals. 
 
Goals 
 
1. Minimize cost and increase efficiency of City government. 
2. Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment. 
3. Effectively and professionally communicate internally and externally. 
4. Creatively maintain and improve public infrastructure. 
5. Protect life and property. 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your 
deliberations may require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 



 
      

 

 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
  AGENDA 

November 13, 2006 – 7:30 PM 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317   

CALL TO ORDER: 1 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Mayor Pro Tem Broomfield 1 

ROLL CALL: 1 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION: 1 

A-1 Presentations: 1 

a) National Red Ribbon Campaign – Kathy Grimaldi, Troy Families for Safe 
Homes – Students from Troy Elementary and Middle Schools............................. 1 

CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

B-1 No Carryover Items 1 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

C-1 Community Development Block Grant  (CDBG) 2007 Application 1 

C-2 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 227) – Articles XXII, 
XXIII, XXIV and XXVIII – Ambulance Facilities in the B-3, H-S, O-1 and M-1 
Districts 2 

C-3 Street Vacation (File Number: SV 148-C) – Portions of Daley Street abutting Lots 
28 and 33 of Supervisors Plat No. 11 Subdivision, South of Big Beaver, North of I-
75, Section 26 2 

NOTICE:  Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should contact 
the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us at least two working days in advance of the 
meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 



 

 

POSTPONED ITEMS: 3 

D-1 City Council Appointments: Troy Daze Committee 3 

CONSENT AGENDA: 3 

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 4 

E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 4 

E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 4 

E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s): None Submitted 4 

E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 4 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders – 
Fertilizer/Herbicide Applications – Municipal Grounds.......................................... 4 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders – Street Trees........... 5 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Lowest Acceptable Bidder 

Elevator Inspection, Weight Testing, Maintenance and Repairs........................... 5 
d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders – Traffic Control 

Signs and Posts.................................................................................................... 5 

E-5 Approval of Subdivision Entrance Sign/Agreement – Wyngate of Troy Subdivision 6 

E-6 Hooters of Troy, Inc. v City of Troy 6 

E-7 Application for Transfer of Class SDM License for Norm’s Field of Dreams 6 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 7 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 7 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Local 
Development Finance Authority (LDFA); and Planning Commission b) City Council 
Appointments:  Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities; Advisory 
Committee for Senior Citizens; Employee Retirement System Board of Trustees & 
Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust; Historic District Commission; Liquor 
Committee; Municipal Building Authority; and Parks & Recreation Board 7 



 

 

F-2 Traffic Committee Recommendations – October 18, 2006 9 

F-3 Proposed Agreement between City of Troy and William Beaumont Hospital for the 
Use of Flynn Park Roadway 10 

F-4 Approval to Negotiate a Food Service Contract for Community Center and 
Sanctuary Lake 10 

F-5 Designation of Voting Delegates at Annual NLC Meeting – Reno, Nevada 11 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 11 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: 11 

a) Rezoning Request (File Number Z 720) – East Side of Rochester Road, 
between Shallowdale Drive and Bradley Avenue, Section 14 – R-1C to R-1T – 
November 27, 2006 ............................................................................................ 11 

G-2 Green Memorandums:  None Submitted 11 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 11 

H-1 Proposed Resolution to the State of Michigan Regarding Group Day Care Homes 
– Referred by Council Member Broomfield 11 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 12 

I-1   No Council Comments Advanced 12 

REPORTS: 13 

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 13 

a) Brownfield Redevelopment Authority/Final – July 18, 2006................................ 13 
b) Troy Youth Council/Final – August 23, 2006 ...................................................... 13 
c) Troy Daze Advisory Committee/Final – September 6, 2006............................... 13 
d) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – September 19, 2006 ....................................... 13 
e) Historic District Commission/Final – September 19, 2006.................................. 13 
f) Historic Commission/Final – September 26, 2006.............................................. 13 
g) Election Commission/Final – October 2, 2006.................................................... 13 
h) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – October 3, 2006....................................... 13 
i) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – October 3, 2006............................ 13 



 

 

j) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – October 3, 2006............................ 13 
k) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – October 4, 2006 ........ 13 
l) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – October 4, 2006 ........ 13 
m) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – October 4, 2006 .................................. 13 
n) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – October 5, 2006....................... 13 
o) Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – October 9, 2006 .......................................... 13 
p) Planning Commission/Draft – October 10, 2006................................................. 13 
q) Planning Commission/Final – October 10, 2006................................................. 13 
r) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – October 17, 2006............................................ 13 
s) Building Code Board of Appeals/Special/Draft – October 18, 2006.................... 13 
t) Cable Advisory Committee/Draft – October 19, 2006......................................... 13 
u) Election Commission/Draft – October 23, 2006.................................................. 13 
v) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – October 24, 2006.......................... 13 
w) Troy Daze Festival-Advisory Committee/Draft – October 24, 2006 .................... 13 
x) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – November 2, 2006 ................... 13 

J-2 Department Reports: 13 

a) Council Member Robin Beltramini’s Travel Expense Report – NLC FAIR 
Steering Committee Meeting .............................................................................. 13 

b) Council Member Dave Lambert’s Travel Expense Report – NLC Annual 
Leadership Summit............................................................................................. 13 

c) Police Department – 2006 Year-to-Date Calls for Police Service Report ........... 13 
d) Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of October, 2006 ....... 13 
e) Library Ranking .................................................................................................. 13 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation: 13 

a) Letter of Thanks to City Clerk Tonni Bartholomew from Congressman Joe 
Knollenberg Regarding Cooperation with Voter Information............................... 13 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: 13 

a) Resolution from the City of Oak Park Opposing State Ballot Proposal 06-2, 
Michigan Civil Rights Initiative ............................................................................ 13 

b) Resolution from Harrison Township Board of Trustees to Safeguard Lake St 
Clair from Pollution ............................................................................................. 13 

J-5  Calendar 14 

J-6  Communication from Traffic Engineer John Abraham Regarding Concerns About 
Pedestrians at Rochester and Charrington 14 

J-7  Communication from Police Chief Craft Regarding Rifle Exchange 14 

J-8  Notice of Hearing for Electric Customers of Detroit Edison Company – Case No. 
U-15002 14 



 

 

J-9  Communication from Parks and Recreation Director Carol Anderson Regarding 
Troy Daze Advisory Committee Recommendation 14 

STUDY ITEMS: 14 

K-1  No Study Items Submitted 14 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 14 

CLOSED SESSION: 14 

L-1 Closed Session:  No Closed Session Requested 14 

ADJOURNMENT 14 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 15 

Monday, November 27, 2006 Regular City Council .............................................. 15 
Monday, December 4, 2006 Regular City Council ................................................ 15 
Monday, December 18, 2006 Regular City Council .............................................. 15 
Monday, January 8, 2007 Regular City Council .................................................... 15 
Monday, January 22, 2007 Regular City Council .................................................. 15 
Monday, February 5, 2007 Regular City Council................................................... 15 
Wednesday, February 7, 2007 (Liquor Violation Hearing)  Regular City Council.. 15 





CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 13, 2006 
 

- 1 - 

CALL TO ORDER: 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Mayor Pro Tem Broomfield 

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
Wade Fleming 
Martin F. Howrylak 
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations:  
a) National Red Ribbon Campaign – Kathy Grimaldi, Troy Families for Safe Homes – 

Students from Troy Elementary and Middle Schools     
 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items   
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Community Development Block Grant  (CDBG) 2007 Application  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-11- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy will receive approximately $166,316.00 for Community 
Development Block Grant funds for the year 2007;  
 
WHEREAS, On November 13th, 2006 at which Public Hearing, persons were given an 
opportunity to provide written and oral views to the Troy City Council, the authority responsible 
for enacting the budget, and to ask questions about the entire budget and the relationship of the 
Flood Drain Improvements, Home Chore Program, and Administration; and  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy, after conclusion of the Public Hearing on this 
date has determined that funding should be provided through the 2007 Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program for Flood Drain Improvements, the Home Chore 
Program, and Administration;  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 13, 2006 
 

- 2 - 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Flood Drain Improvements, the Home Chore Program 
and Administration are hereby DESIGNATED as Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 
Projects for 2007; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the Mayor of the City of Troy is AUTHORIZED to sign the 
Application and Subrecipient Agreement and SUBMIT them to Oakland County. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
C-2 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 227) – Articles XXII, XXIII, 

XXIV and XXVIII – Ambulance Facilities in the B-3, H-S, O-1 and M-1 Districts   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-11- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Articles XXII (B-3 General Business District), XXIII (H-S Highway Service 
District), XXIV (O-1 Low Rise Office District) and XXVIII (M-1 Light Industrial District) of the City 
of Troy Zoning Ordinance be AMENDED to read as written in the proposed Zoning Ordinance 
Text Amendment (ZOTA 227), as recommended by the Planning Commission and City 
Management. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
C-3 Street Vacation (File Number: SV 148-C) – Portions of Daley Street abutting Lots 

28 and 33 of Supervisors Plat No. 11 Subdivision, South of Big Beaver, North of I-
75, Section 26 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-11- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, A request has been received for the vacation of a portion of the 50-foot-wide 
platted Daley Street right-of-way, located south of Big Beaver Road, and abutting lots 28 and 33 
of Supervisors Plat No. 11;   
 
WHEREAS, The property which shall benefit from this requested vacation is Lot 28 and 33 of 
Supervisors Plat No. 11, Section 26  (City of Troy Tax Parcels 20-26-103-024 and 20-26-104-
019); and 
 
WHEREAS, City Management and the Planning Commission have recommended that this 
street vacation be granted with the retention of public and private utility easements and public 
turnaround easement;  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 13, 2006 
 

- 3 - 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council concurs in the recommendations of 
City Management and the Planning Commission, and VACATES the portion of the Daley Street 
right-of-way; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Council RETAINS easements for public and 
private easements and public turnaround within the vacated Daley Street right-of-way. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:   

D-1 City Council Appointments: Troy Daze Committee 
 
Pending Resolution 
Resolution  
Moved by Broomfield   
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Troy Daze Committee  
Appointed by Council (9) – 3 Year Terms 
 
Robert A. Berk Term Expires 11/30/09 
 
Michael S. Gonda Term Expires 11/30/09 
 
Cheryl Whitton-Kaszubski Term Expires 11/30/09 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  

The Consent Agenda includes items of a routine nature and will be approved with one 
motion. That motion will approve the recommended action for each item on the Consent 
Agenda. Any Council Member may ask a question regarding an item as well as speak in 
opposition to the recommended action by removing an item from the Consent Agenda 
and have it considered as a separate item. Any item so removed from the Consent 
Agenda shall be considered after other items on the consent portion of the agenda have 
been heard. Public comment on Consent Agenda Items will be permitted under Agenda 
Item 9 “E”.  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 13, 2006 
 

- 4 - 

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-11- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item(s) _____________, which SHALL BE CONSIDERED after 
Consent Agenda (E) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-11-  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular City Council Meeting of October 23, 
2006 be APPROVED as submitted. 
 
E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s): None Submitted 
 
E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders – Fertilizer/Herbicide 

Applications – Municipal Grounds       
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-11- 
 
RESOLVED, That contracts to provide three-year requirements of fertilizer/herbicide application 
services for the City of Troy are hereby AWARDED to the lowest bidders by year, Davey Tree 
Expert Company of Auburn Hills, MI for 2007 and United Lawnscape, Inc. of Washington, MI for 
2008 and 2009 at an estimated total cost of $57,289.00 and $115,513.00 respectively, in 
accordance with unit prices as contained in the bid tabulation opened October 24, 2006, a copy 
of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the awards are CONTINGENT upon contractors 
submission of properly executed bid and contract documents, including bonds, insurance 
certificates and all other specified requirements.  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 13, 2006 
 

- 5 - 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders – Street Trees       
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-11- 
 
RESOLVED, That contracts to provide and install for the City of Troy (2500) bare root and (300) 
balled and burlapped street trees, Spring 2007, are hereby AWARDED to the two lowest 
bidders, County Line Nurseries and Landscaping of Harford, MI for proposal A – bare root at 
$78.00 per tree and Steele Services of Rochester Hills for proposal B – balled and burlapped at 
$120.00 per tree installed, in accordance with the bid tabulation opened September 12, 2006, a 
copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the awards are CONTINGENT upon contractor submission 
of properly executed bid and contract documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all 
other specified requirements.  
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Lowest Acceptable Bidder 

Elevator Inspection, Weight Testing, Maintenance and Repairs       
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-11- 
 
RESOLVED, That a three-year contract to provide elevator weight tests, relief valve testing, bi-
monthly inspections and repairs with an option to renew for an additional three years at four 
municipal buildings is hereby AWARDED to the lowest acceptable bidder, Elevator Technology, 
Inc. of Detroit, MI, at prices as contained in the bid tabulation opened October 25, 2006, a copy 
of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid and contract documents including insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements. 
 
d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders – Traffic Control Signs 

and Posts       
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-11- 
 
RESOLVED, That one-year contracts to provide Traffic Control Signs and Posts with an option 
to renew for one (1) additional year are hereby AWARDED on a proposal by proposal basis to 
the low bidders: Vulcan Signs of Foley, AL, Proposals A, C, D, F & G; Rocal, Inc. of Frankfort, 
OH, Proposals B & G; Garden State Highway Products, Inc. of Vineland, NJ, Proposal E & G; 
Allied Municipal Supply of Taylorville, IL, Proposals H & J; and Custom Products Corporation of 
Jackson, MS, Proposal I at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened October 17, 2006, 
a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, with contracts 
expiring December 16, 2007. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 13, 2006 
 

- 6 - 

E-5 Approval of Subdivision Entrance Sign/Agreement – Wyngate of Troy Subdivision 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-11- 
 
RESOLVED, That the sign application submitted by the Wyngate of Troy Homeowners 
Association for the placement of a sign in the median of Wyngate Drive at the intersection of 
Coolidge Highway is hereby APPROVED as to the design and materials proposed; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the agreement regarding the maintenance and liability 
coverage for the sign is also APPROVED and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to 
sign the ATTACHED agreement on behalf of the City. 
 
E-6 Hooters of Troy, Inc. v City of Troy 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-11- 
 
RESOLVED, That the City Attorney is hereby AUTHORIZED and DIRECTED to represent the 
City of Troy in any and all claims and damages in the matter of Hooters of Troy, Inc. v City of 
Troy, and to RETAIN any necessary expert witnesses to adequately represent the City. 
  
E-7 Application for Transfer of Class SDM License for Norm’s Field of Dreams 
 
(a) New License 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-11- 
 
RESOLVED, That the request from NCJ Acquisitions, Inc., to transfer ownership of 2006 Class 
C-SDM licensed business with dance permit, located at 1090 Rochester, Troy, MI 48083, from 
MKC, Inc.; and request a new official permit (food), be CONSIDERED for APPROVAL; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That it is the consensus of this legislative body that the 
application BE RECOMMENDED for issuance. 
 
(b) Agreement 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-11- 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy deems it necessary to enter agreements with 
applicants for liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the 
event licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 13, 2006 
 

- 7 - 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy hereby APPROVES 
an agreement with NCJ Acquisitions, Inc., to transfer ownership of 2006 Class C-SDM licensed 
business with dance permit, located at 1090 Rochester, Troy, MI 48083, from MKC, Inc.; and 
request a new official permit (food); and the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby AUTHORIZED 
TO EXECUTE the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of 
this meeting. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
Public comment limited to items not on the Agenda in accordance with the Rules of 
Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors. 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 11“F” of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. Council requests that if you do have a 
question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
NOTE: Any item selected by the public for comment from the Regular Business Agenda 
shall be moved forward before other items on the regular business portion of the agenda 
have been heard. Public comment on Regular Agenda Items will be permitted under 
Agenda Item 11 “F”.  

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Local 
Development Finance Authority (LDFA); and Planning Commission b) City Council 
Appointments:  Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities; Advisory 
Committee for Senior Citizens; Employee Retirement System Board of Trustees & 
Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust; Historic District Commission; Liquor 
Committee; Municipal Building Authority; and Parks & Recreation Board    

 
The appointment of new members to all of the listed board and committee vacancies will 
require only one motion and vote by City Council. Council members submit recommendations 
for appointment. When the number of submitted names exceed the number of positions to be 
filled, a separate motion and roll call vote will be required (current process of appointing). Any 
board or commission with remaining vacancies will automatically be carried over to the next 
Regular City Council Meeting Agenda.  
 
The following boards and committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 13, 2006 
 

- 8 - 

 
(a)  Mayoral Appointments   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-11- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE MAYOR to serve on 
the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA)  
Appointed by Mayor (5) – 4 Year Terms 
 
 Unexpired Term 06/30/07 
 
 Unexpired Term 06/30/08 
 
Planning Commission 
Appointed by Mayor (9 Members) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 12/31/09 
 
 Term Expires 12/31/09 
 
 Term Expires 12/31/09 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
(b)  City Council Appointments 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-11- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities  
Appointed by Council (9-Regular; 3-Alternate) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 11/01/09 
 

(Alternate) Term Expires 11/01/09 
 

(Alternate) Term Expires 11/01/09 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 13, 2006 
 

- 9 - 

 
(Alternate) Term Expires 11/01/09 

 
Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens  
Appointed by Council (9) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Unexpired Term 04/30/09 
 
Employee Retirement System Board of Trustees &  
Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust 
Appointed by Council (8 Members of which 3 are Council Appointments) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 12/31/09 
 
Historic District Commission  One member, an architect if available 
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 Year Terms  Two members, chosen from a list submitted by a 
  duly organized history group or groups 
 
 Term Expires 05/16/09 
 
Liquor Committee  
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/07 (Student) 
 
Municipal Building Authority  
Appointed by Council (5) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 01/31/09 
 
Parks & Recreation Board  
Appointed by Council (10) – 3 Year Terms 
 
NOTE: See J-09 for Troy Daze Committee recommendation Term Expires 11/30/06 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-2 Traffic Committee Recommendations – October 18, 2006   
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2006-11- 
Moved by  
Seconded by   
 
(a) Installation of Signs - No Parking School Days Only on the South Side of 

Witherbee between Eton and Graefield 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 13, 2006 
 

- 10 - 

 
RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order No. __________ be ISSUED for signs to be installed 
indicating NO PARKING SCHOOL DAYS ONLY 8:15-9:15 am and 3:15-4:15 pm on the south 
side of Witherbee between Eton and Graefield. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-3 Proposed Agreement between City of Troy and William Beaumont Hospital for the 

Use of Flynn Park Roadway   
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2006-11- 
Moved by  
Seconded by   
 
RESOLVED, That the agreement with William Beaumont Hospital is hereby APPROVED and 
the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the documents, a copy of which 
shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the contractor 
submission of proper contract and proposal documents, including insurance certificates and all 
other specified requirements. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-4 Approval to Negotiate a Food Service Contract for Community Center and 

Sanctuary Lake   
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2006-11- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That City Management is AUTHORIZED to negotiate a food service provider 
contract for the Troy Community Center and Sanctuary Lake Golf Course with Emerald Food 
Service, the sole bidder as a result of a request for proposal process, after which time the final 
contract documents will be submitted for City Council review and approval. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 13, 2006 
 

- 11 - 

F-5 Designation of Voting Delegates at Annual NLC Meeting – Reno, Nevada    
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2006-11- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That ____________________________ is hereby DESIGNATED as Voting 
Delegate and __________________________________ is hereby DESIGNATED as the 
Alternate Voting Delegate to cast the vote of the City of Troy at the Annual Meeting of the 
National League of Cities Congress of Cities and Exposition in Reno, NV on Saturday, 
December 9, 2006.  
Yes: 
No: 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:   
a) Rezoning Request (File Number Z 720) – East Side of Rochester Road, between 

Shallowdale Drive and Bradley Avenue, Section 14 – R-1C to R-1T – November 27, 
2006    

    
G-2 Green Memorandums:  None Submitted 
 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1 Proposed Resolution to the State of Michigan Regarding Group Day Care Homes – 
Referred by Council Member Broomfield 

 
A Proposed Resolution encouraging the State of Michigan to amend the current Michigan 
Building Codes and/or other relevant regulations to allow group day care homes in residential 
areas to serve up to 12 children, without applying educational building regulations. 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-11- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 
WHEREAS, The Michigan Building Codes differentiate between Family Day Care Homes, 
which currently limit the number of children that can be cared for in any a day care home to 5, 
and Group Day Care Homes, which allow the number of children that can be cared for in a day 
care home to be up to 12;   
 
WHEREAS, The Michigan Building Codes currently apply the building standards for educational 
institutions to Group Day Care Homes, even though the Group Day Care Homes are limited to 
12 children at a time;  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 13, 2006 
 

- 12 - 

 
WHEREAS, The Construction Code Commission and Department of Labor and Economic 
Growth are currently studying the necessity of these elevated restrictions for Group Day Care 
Homes;   
 
WHEREAS, More households with children have two working parents, and in some cases are 
single parent households, and the daycare needs of working parents have changed;   
 
WHEREAS, The number of day care facilities that could care for additional children have 
increased to try to meet the demands of families with children;   
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council fully supports the family structure and wants to fulfill the 
needs of families;   
 
WHEREAS, The State of Michigan’s current requirement that the educational building 
standards be met for Group Day Care Homes may cause hardships for Troy taxpayers; and   
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council believes that building code regulations should not adversely 
impact the health, safety, and welfare of the community;    
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council URGES the State of Michigan, 
through the Construction Code Commission and Department of Labor and Economic Growth, to 
amend the existing codes and other relevant rules and regulations, to make the Michigan 
building code regulations for Group Day Care Homes consistent with the Michigan building 
code regulations for Family Day Care Homes, as long as such modifications will not adversely 
impact the health, safety, and welfare of the children in the Group Day Care Homes;      
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council URGES the Construction Code 
Commission and Department of Labor and Economic Growth to expedite its review, and make 
any amendments to the relevant codes, rules and regulations as soon as is possible; 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council URGES the Michigan Municipal 
League to support any necessary changes that would apply similar building code regulations to 
Group Day Care Homes and Family Day Care Homes, as long the health, safety and welfare of 
the children is not adversely impacted; and   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That a copy of this resolution shall be FORWARDED to the 
Governor of the State of Michigan, State Senator Shirley Johnson, State Representative Robert 
Gosselin, the Michigan Municipal League, Henry Green, Executive Director, Department of 
Labor and Economic Growth, James Gale, Director, Office of Children and Adult Licensing, and 
James Sinnamon, Director, Division of Child Care Licensing.    
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1   No Council Comments Advanced 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 13, 2006 
 

- 13 - 

REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  
a) Brownfield Redevelopment Authority/Final – July 18, 2006  
b) Troy Youth Council/Final – August 23, 2006  
c) Troy Daze Advisory Committee/Final – September 6, 2006 
d) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – September 19, 2006  
e) Historic District Commission/Final – September 19, 2006  
f) Historic Commission/Final – September 26, 2006  
g) Election Commission/Final – October 2, 2006 
h) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – October 3, 2006  
i) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – October 3, 2006  
j) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – October 3, 2006  
k) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – October 4, 2006 
l) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – October 4, 2006 
m) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – October 4, 2006  
n) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – Octob

06  
er 5, 2006 

o) Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – October 9, 20
p) Planning Commission/Draft – October 10, 2006  

 q) Planning Commission/Final – October 10, 2006  
r) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – October 17, 2006 

 er 18, 2006  s) Building Code Board of Appeals/Special/Draft – Octob
006  t) Cable Advisory Committee/Draft – October 19, 2

u) Election Commission/Draft – October 23, 2006  
v) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – October 24, 2006  

 w) Troy Daze Festival-Advisory Committee/Draft – October 24, 2006  
) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – November 2, 2006 x

 
 J-2 Department Reports:  

a) Council Member Robin Beltramini’s Travel Expense Report – NLC FAIR Steering 
Committee Meeting  

b) Council Member Dave Lambert’s Travel Expense Report – NLC Annual Leadership 
Summit  

c) Police Department – 2006 Year-to-Date Calls for Police Service Report  
– Permits Issued During the Month of October, 2006  d) Building Department 

Library Ranking e) 
 

  J-3 Letters of Appreciation:  
a)  from Congressman Joe Knollenberg 

Regarding Cooperation with Voter Information   

  

Letter of Thanks to City Clerk Tonni Bartholomew

 
J-4 Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:   
a) ity of Oak Park Opposing State Ballot Proposal 06-2, Michigan 

b)  from Harrison Township Board of Trustees to Safeguard Lake St Clair from 
Pollution  

Resolution from the C
Civil Rights Initiative  
Resolution

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 13, 2006 
 

- 14 - 

J-5  Calendar 
 

-6  Communication from Traffic Engineer John Abraham Regarding Concerns About J
Pedestrians at Rochester and Charrington 

 
J-7  Communication from Police Chief Craft Regarding Rifle Exchange 
 

-8  Notice of Hearing for Electric Customers of Detroit Edison Company – Case No. U-J
15002 

 
-9  Communication from Parks and Recreation Director Carol Anderson Regarding J

Troy Daze Advisory Committee Recommendation 
 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1  No Study Items Submitted 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 18 of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
re encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 

or and Council. 
 

n:  No Closed Session Requested 

a
satisfactorily, to the May

CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Sessio
 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 13, 2006 
 

- 15 - 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
 

Monday, November 27, 2006 .................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, December 4, 2006 ...................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, December 18, 2006 .................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, January 8, 2007.......................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, January 22, 2007........................................................ Regular City Council 
Monday, February 5, 2007 ........................................................ Regular City Council 
Wednesday, February 7, 2007 (Liquor Violation Hearing) ........ Regular City Council 

 



 

 
 
October 24, 2006 
 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
   Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director   
 
SUBJECT:               Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 2007 Application 
 
 
Background: 
 
 While the City of Troy has not been provided current information on 2007 funding levels, Oakland 

County has advised us to use $166,316.00 as our planning estimate for the program year 2007. 
 
 The following projects are being recommended for the 2007 CDBG program: 

o Flood Drain Improvements:  
Lovington Storm Sewer – Minnesota to Dequindre  $  93,816.00 

o Home Chore Program:           70,000.00 
o Administration:                          2,500.00                                  

          
o TOTAL:                      $166,316.00 

 
 The Subrecipient Agreement is currently being reworked by Oakland County to comply with the 

requirements of the HUD Audit. The County anticipates providing revised document and 
instructions early in 2007 for signature. City staff will provide an update to the City Council once 
the revised documents are provided.  

 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 Oakland County will allow participating communities to spend a maximum of 45% of their annual 

allocation on public services. (It was 50% in the past). We are currently at 42.09%. In the event 
our allocation is reduced by HUD we will have to decrease the portion we reserved for Home 
Chore. 

 
 
 
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
C-01



Legal Considerations: 
 
 There are no legal considerations associated with this item. 

 
 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 There are no policy considerations associated with this item. 

 
 
 
 
Options: 
 
 It is recommended that Council approve the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 2007 

application. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
VR\S: Murphy’s Review/Agenda 11.13.06 – CDBG 2007 Application Revised 



 
 
 
 
November 3, 2006 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing - Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 227) – Articles 

XXII, XXIII, XXIV and XXVIII – Ambulance Facilities in the B-3, H-S, O-1 and M-1 Districts 
 
 
Background: 
 
• A public hearing is scheduled for the November 13, 2006 City Council meeting. 
 
• The proposed zoning ordinance text amendment would permit ambulance facilities as a 

conditional use in the M-1 Light Industrial zoning district.  Additionally, ambulance facilities 
would no longer be permitted in the B-3 General Commercial zoning district, H-S Highway 
Service zoning district and O-1 Office Building zoning district.   
 

• The Planning Commission held a public hearing on this item on October 10, 2006, and 
recommended approval of the proposed text amendment.   

 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
• The proposed text amendment would expand the range of uses permitted within the M-1 Light 

Industrial District. 
 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
• City Council has the authority to amend the Zoning Ordinance. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
C-02



Policy Considerations: 
 
• A text amendment to the B-3, H-S, O-1 and M-1 provisions would apply to all similarly zoned 

property in the City.  City Council should determine whether it is appropriate to add ambulance 
facilities in the M-1 Light Industrial zoning district and remove ambulance facilities in the B-3, H-
S and O-1 zoning districts. 

 
• The item is consistent with City Council Goal II (Retain and attract investment while 

encouraging redevelopment) and Goal VI (Protect life and property). 
 
 
Options: 
 
• City Management recommends approval of the proposed text amendment, as recommended 

by the Planning Commission. 
 
 
 
 
Approved as to form and legality:  _____________________________________ 
  Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Draft ZOTA 227 
 
 

Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 

G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 227 Ambulance Facilities in M-1\CC Public Hearing 11 13 06.doc 
 
 
 



Prepared by City of Troy Planning Department   1

CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 39 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARING DRAFT  

ZOTA 227 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 39 
of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Amendment to Article XXII of Chapter 39 
 
Article XXII of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy is amended to eliminate 
Ambulance Facilities in the B-3 (General Business) District, to read as follows:  
 
22.20.00 PRINCIPAL USES PERMITTED: 
 
22.20.03 Bus or transit passenger stations, taxicab offices and dispatching 

centers, and emergency vehicle or ambulance facilities. Sleeping 
accommodations may be provided in conjunction with ambulance 
facilities in order to accommodate not more than three employees per 
each vehicle storage bay. 

 
Section 3.  Amendment to Article XXIII of Chapter 39 
Article XXIII of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy is amended to 
eliminate Ambulance Facilities in the H-S (Highway Service) District, to read as 
follows:  
 
23.20.00 PRINCIPAL USES PERMITTED: 
 
23.20.02 Bus or transit passenger stations, taxicab offices and dispatching 

centers, and emergency vehicle or ambulance facilities. Sleeping 
accommodations may be provided in conjunction with ambulance 
facilities in order to accommodate not more than three employees per 
each vehicle storage bay. 



Prepared by City of Troy Planning Department   2

Section 4.  Amendment to Article XXIV of Chapter 39 
 
Article XXIV of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy is amended to 
eliminate Ambulance Facilities in the O-1 (Low Rise Office) District, to read as 
follows:  
 
24.30.00 USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL USE APPROVAL: 
 
24.30.04 Private ambulance facilities may be permitted by the City Council, 

following a report and recommendation by the Planning Commission, 
when the Council determines that the establishment of the proposed 
use is necessary to serve the surrounding area, and when the 
following conditions are met: 

 
  A. Points of ingress and egress shall be laid out so as to 

minimize possible conflicts between traffic on and adjacent to 
the site. 

 
  B. Sleeping accommodations may be permitted in conjunction 

with such uses, to accommodate not more than two 
employees for each ambulance or emergency vehicle kept 
within the building, when such accommodations are 
determined to be necessary in order to provide 24-hour 
emergency service. 

 
  C. No servicing or repair of vehicles shall take place on the site, 

and no ambulances or emergency vehicles may be kept or 
stored outside the building. 

 
  D. The City Council may impose additional conditions and 

safeguards as it deems necessary to minimize any adverse 
effects of such uses on the surrounding areas. 

 
  E. The City Council may rescind approval in the event of violation 

of this Ordinance, or the creation of a public nuisance as 
defined in the City Code, subject to the following procedures: 

 
   1. The Chief Building Inspector shall notify the operator of 

any such violation or nuisance, with the condition that 
such shall be stopped within 10 days of such notice. 

 
   2. If such notice is not complied with, the City Council 

shall establish a public hearing on the matter. Following 
said hearing, the City Council shall take any 
appropriate action necessary to bring about 



Prepared by City of Troy Planning Department   3

compliance, which may include revocation of the use 
permitted by this Section. 

 
24.30.045 Utility Sub-Stations, Transformer Stations or Gas Regulator 

Stations (Without Storage Yards) subject to the following: 
 
  A. The Planning Commission shall determine that 

operating requirements necessitate the location of 
such uses within the District in order to serve the 
immediate vicinity. 

 
  B. All proposed uses and facilities shall be contained 

within masonry buildings or structures similar to or 
compatible with buildings in adjacent or typical office 
areas. 

 
  C. Overhead transmission lines and tower structures 

supporting such lines are expressly prohibited from 
such sites. All lines serving such sites shall be 
underground. 

 
  D. In order to maximize the efficiency of the provision of 

utility services, while also minimizing the impact of 
such facilities on the total community, collocation, or 
the provision of more than one utility facility at a single 
location, may be required by the Planning 
Commission. In this regard, the applicant may be 
required to provide information regarding the feasibility 
of collocation at proposed sites.  

 
   1. Applications for the placement of freestanding 

tower structures and antennas under this 
Section, which do not involve collocation, shall 
be considered only in conjunction with a report 
from an independent qualified and licensed 
professional engineer, indicating reasons why 
collocation is physically or technically not 
feasible. 

 
  E. The setback for a freestanding communications 

antenna tower structure, from an abutting residentially 
zoned or used parcel, shall be at least equal to five (5) 
times the height of the structure. This setback 
requirement shall not apply to sites on which antenna 
tower structures were constructed prior to July 1, 1998. 



Prepared by City of Troy Planning Department   4

 F. Actions to approve the placement of freestanding 
tower structures and antennas under this Section shall 
be conditioned upon submittal, by the applicant, of 
financial assurances in a form acceptable to the City 
Manager, in order to assure that the subject facilities 
will be removed from the site within one (1) year of the 
date that their use ceases. 

 
  (Rev. 10-05-98) 
 
24.30.056 Mechanical or Laboratory Research Involving Testing and Evaluation 

of Products, or Prototype or Experimental Product or Process 
Development. 

 
  A. Such research areas may be permitted only in office buildings 

developed within areas designated for the use of the Office 
Development Options, in accordance with Sections 36.00.00 
and 36.40.00 of this Chapter. 

 
  B. Such research areas shall occupy no more than twenty-five 

(25) percent of the gross floor area occupied by any individual 
or corporate office occupant or tenant, and shall be contiguous 
with the office area of the occupant or tenant. 

 
  C. Such research areas shall be located and designed so as to 

minimize any negative impact on adjacent office occupants 
from effects such as noise, dust, vibration and odor. 

 
  D. Such research activities shall not involve vehicles or engines 

containing fuel. 
 
  E. Such research activities shall be limited to uses which do not 

require building construction having a higher fire rating than 
that required for office uses. 

 
  (Rev 05-03-99) 
 
24.30.067 Childcare centers, nursery schools, or day nurseries (not including 

dormitories), subject to the following conditions: 
  A. For each child so cared for, there shall be provided and 

maintained a minimum of one hundred fifty (150) square feet 
of outdoor play area. Such play area shall have a total 
minimum area of not less than five thousand (5,000) square 
feet and shall be fenced or screened from adjoining 
properties in a manne4r acceptable to the Planning 
Commission. 



Prepared by City of Troy Planning Department   5

  B. The site layout shall be designated so as to minimize 
vehicular traffic conflicts both on and adjacent to the site and 
to provide the highest level of pedestrian/child safety within 
the site. 

  (06-07-99) 
 
 
Section 5.  Amendment to Article XXVIII of Chapter 39 
 
Article XXVIII of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy is amended by adding 
provisions permitting Ambulance Facilities in the M-1 Light Industrial District, to 
read as follows:  
 
28.25.00 CONDITIONAL USES PERMITTED: 
   
28.25.07 Ambulance facilities, subject to the following conditions: 
 

A. There shall be a minimum distance of 300 feet between the 
ambulance facility property and any residential-zoned 
property. 

 
  B. Incidental uses such as administrative offices, vehicle 

maintenance and sleeping quarters shall be permitted within 
the ambulance facility.  

 
 
Section 6.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, 
at the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may 
be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, 
affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted 
under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this 
ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the 
effective date of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all 
prosecutions pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for 
offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in 
accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the 
commission of such offense. 



Prepared by City of Troy Planning Department   6

Section 7.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect. 
 
Section 8.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on the _______ day of _____________, 2006. 
 
 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 227 Ambulance Facilities in M-1\ZOTA 227 CC Public Hearing Draft 10 17 06.doc 
 



 
 
 
 
November 3, 2006 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing – Street Vacation (File Number: SV 148-C) – Portions of Daley Street 

abutting Lots 28 and 33 of Supervisors Plat No. 11 Subdivision, South of Big Beaver, 
North of I-75, Section 26 

 
 
Background: 
 
• A public hearing is scheduled for the November 13, 2006 City Council meeting. 
 
• The Daley Street public street easement is 50 feet wide.  The portion proposed to be vacated 

is approximately 135 feet in length. 
 

• The Planning Commission held a public hearing on this item on October 10, 2006, and 
recommended approval of the proposed street vacation.   

 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
• There are no financial considerations associated with this item. 
 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
• City Council has the authority to approve the street vacation request. 
 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
• The street vacation would not eliminate public street frontage for any buildings along Daley; 

however, it appears that large trucks will be unable to back up onto the property unless they 
utilize a portion of the vacated street.   

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
C-03



• The item is consistent with City Council Goal II (Retain and attract investment while 
encouraging redevelopment) and Goal VI (Protect life and property). 

 
 
Options: 
 
• City Council may approve or deny the street vacation request.  
 
• City Management and the Planning Commission recommend approval of the proposed street 

vacation, with the following conditions: 
 

1. Retention of all public and private utility easements. 
2. Retention of a public turnaround easement.   
3. Roadway will be kept clear of parked vehicles at all times. 

 
 
 
 
Approved as to form and legality:  _____________________________________ 
  Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps 
 
 

Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 

G:\STREET VACATION\SV 148-C Daley Street Sec 26\CC Public Hearing 11 13 06.doc 
 
 
 









CITY OF TROY

PR
E

P
AR

E
D

 B
Y 

C
IT

Y
 O

F 
TR

O
Y

 P
LA

N
N

IN
G

 D
EP

T.

SUBJECT PARCEL



2873

2877

2868

1178

28502835

2852

D
A

LE
Y

STREET VACATION REQUEST
DALEY STREET
S OF BIG BEAVER, E OF ROCHESTER RD.
ZONED M-1   SEC. 26   (SV-148 C)

PROPOSED VACATION AREA

0 50 10025
Feet ³























































































CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft October 23, 2006 
 

- 1 - 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, October 23, 2006, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:30 P.M. 
 
Pastor Mark VanSoestberg of First Presbyterian Church gave the Invocation and the Pledge of 
Allegiance to the Flag was given. 

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling  
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield  
Wade Fleming  
Martin F. Howrylak 
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine  

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations:  
a) Mayor Schilling presented a proclamation to John Crew, Vice President and Regional 

Manager for Kelly Services, on behalf of the City of Troy Celebrating Kelly Services 60 
Years in Business 

 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items   
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) for Grid4 
Communications, 2107 Crooks Road, Troy MI 48084-5534 

The Mayor opened the Public Hearing for public comment. 
The Mayor closed the Public Hearing after receiving comment from the petitioner. There was no 
public comment. 
 
Resolution #2006-10-317 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy hereby ESTABLISHES an Industrial 
Development District (IDD) for Grid4 Communications, for property known as 2107 Crooks, 
Troy, MI. 48084-5534, Parcel #88-20-29-426-046, in accordance with City Council Policy 
Resolution #2006-06-238; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk shall FORWARD a copy of this resolution to 
the State Tax Commission, Treasury Building, P.O. Box 30471, Lansing, MI. 48909-7971. 
 
 

holmesba
Text Box
E-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft October 23, 2006 
 

- 2 - 

Yes: Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Fleming, Lambert, Stine  
No: Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
C-2 Approval of Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) to Grid4 

Communications, 2107 Crooks Road, Troy MI 48084-5534 
The Mayor opened the Public Hearing for public comment. 
The Mayor closed the Public Hearing after receiving no further comment from the petitioner and 
no comment from the public. 
 
Resolution #2006-10-318 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Stine  
 
WHEREAS, After due notice and proper hearing, the City Council of the City of Troy on October 
23, 2006, established an Industrial Development District (IDD) for property known as 2107 
Crooks, Troy, MI. 48084-5534, Parcel # 88-20-29-426-046;  
 
WHEREAS, An Application has been submitted by Grid4 Communications for an Industrial 
Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for personal property at 2107 Crooks, Troy, MI. 48084-
5534, for twelve (12) years; and 
 
WHEREAS, After due and proper notice by the City Clerk, the City Council, on October 23, 
2006, held a Public Hearing giving opportunity for comment by all taxing units as to the 
possibility that the granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for Grid4 
Communications at 2107 Crooks, Troy, MI. 48084-5534 may have the effect of substantially 
impeding the operation of the taxing unit, or impairing the financial soundness of the taxing unit; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, By the City Council of the City of Troy, that it has FOUND 
THAT THE GRANTING of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for Grid4 
Communications, at 2107 Crooks, Troy, MI. 48084-5534 shall not substantially impede the 
operation of the City of Troy or the other taxing units, NOR HAS IT BEEN FOUND THAT THE 
GRANTING of the Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) will impair the financial 
soundness of the city of Troy, or the other taxing units which levy taxes on said property; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the application for an Industrial Facilities Exemption 
Certificate (IFEC) fro Grid4 Communications at 2107 Crooks, Troy, MI 48084-5534, Parcel #88-
20-29-426-046, be hereby APPROVED for personal property for a term of twelve (12) years, 
CONTINGENT upon the execution of a Letter of Agreement between the City of Troy and Grid4 
Communications, in accordance with Public Act 198 of 1974, as amended; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE 
the Letter of Agreement between the City of Troy and Grid4 Communications, a copy of which 
shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby AUTHORIZED TO COMPLETE the 
Application and transmit same to the State Tax Commission, Treasury Building, P.O. Box 
30471, Lansing, MI. 48909-7971 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft October 23, 2006 
 

- 3 - 

Yes: Beltramini, Broomfield, Fleming, Lambert, Stine, Schilling  
No: Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
C-3 Rezoning Application (File Number: Z 714) – Proposed The Enclave Senior 

Housing, North of Long Lake between Livernois and Crooks, Section 9 – R-1B to 
R-EC 

The Mayor opened the Public Hearing for public comment. 
The Mayor closed the Public Hearing after receiving comment from the public. 
 
Resolution #2006-10-319 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That the R-1B to R-EC rezoning request located north of Long Lake, between 
Livernois and Crooks in Section 9, being 8.61 acres in size, is described in the following legal 
description and illustrated on the ATTACHED Certificate of Survey drawing: 
 

T2N, R11E, W 1/2 of the SE ¼ of Section 9 
 
Lots 95 through 102 and Lots 105 through 112 both inclusive, all being part of Beaver 
Hills Subdivision (Liber 26, Page 18, of Oakland County Records).  Containing 8.61 ac., 
more or less, and subject to easements and restrictions of record. 

 
RESOLVED, That the application DOES NOT COMPLY with the intent of the Future Land Use 
Plan and DOES NOT MEET the location standards of Section 19.40.00 of Chapter 39; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby DENIES the proposed 
rezoning, as recommended by City Management and the Planning Commission. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:   

D-1 No Postponed Items 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2006-10-320 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item E-4d, which SHALL BE CONSIDERED after Consent 
Agenda (E) items, as printed. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft October 23, 2006 
 

- 4 - 

Yes: All-7  
 
E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Resolution #2006-10-320-E-2  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular City Council Meeting of October 16, 
2006 be APPROVED as submitted. 
 
E-3 City of Troy Proclamation:  
 
Resolution #2006-10-320-E-3a 
 
RESOLVED, That the following City of Troy Proclamation be APPROVED: 
 
a) Celebrating 60 Years – Kelly Services  
 
E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Lowest Bidders Meeting 

Specifications – Seasonal Requirements of Grass Seed and Hydro Seeding 
Mulch/Fertilizer      

 
Resolution #2006-10-320-E-4a 
 
RESOLVED, That contracts to purchase grass seed and hydro-seeding mulch/fertilizer for the 
2007 season are hereby AWARDED to the lowest bidders meeting specifications as follows: 
 

VENDORS ITEM(S) 
John Deere Landscapes of Armada, MI 1,2,3,4,5,6 
Tri-Turf of Farmington Hills, MI 7,9 
Washington Elevator Co, Inc of Washington Township  8 

 
for an estimated total cost of $16,126.00, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened 
September 27, 2006, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting. 
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 7: Proprietary Service Contract – CLEMIS Fire 

Records Management System      
 
Resolution #2006-10-320-E-4b 
 
RESOLVED, That a five-year proprietary interlocal service agreement with Oakland County for 
participation in the Oakland County Fire Records Management System is hereby APPROVED 
at an estimated total cost of $18,025.00 expiring December 31, 2009. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft October 23, 2006 
 

- 5 - 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – One (1) 60,000 GVW 
Tandem Combination Sewer and Catch Basin Cleaning Machine, Less Trade-In      

 
Resolution #2006-10-320-E-4c 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to purchase one (1) 60,000 GVW tandem combination sewer and 
catch basin cleaning machine, less trade-in is hereby AWARDED to the low total bidder, Jack 
Doheny Supplies, Inc., of Northville, MI, for $299,500.00 less trade-in of $115,000.00 for an 
estimated net total cost of $184,500.00. 
 
e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders – Concrete Pavement 

Repair      
 
Resolution #2006-10-320-E-4e 
 
RESOLVED, That contracts to complete the concrete pavement repair program for 2006/07 
with an option to renew for one (1) additional year are hereby AWARDED to the three lowest 
bidders, Hard Rock Concrete, Inc. of Westland for proposal A, A-1 – Local Roads, Six-S, Inc. of 
Waterford for proposal B – Major Roads, and Major Cement Company of Detroit, MI, proposal 
C – Industrial Roads at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened October 10, 2006, a 
copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting not to exceed 
budgetary limitations; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the awards are CONTINGENT upon contractors 
submission of properly executed bid and contract documents, including bonds, insurance 
certificates and all other specified requirements.  
 
f) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award–Appraisal Services–John R 

Improvement Projects, Long Lake to Square Lake, and Square Lake to South 
Boulevard      

 
Resolution #2006-10-320-E-4f 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to provide appraisal services for John R Improvement Projects, 
Long Lake to Square Lake, and Square Lake to South Boulevard is hereby AWARDED to 
Andrew Reed & Associates, Inc. of Berkley, MI, the lowest priced and highest scoring 
respondent as a result of a Best Value process, which the Troy City Council DETERMINES to 
be in the public interest at an estimated cost of $36,500.00, plus $150.00 per hour for any 
required updates not to exceed 45% of the original appraisal cost for updates; and $150.00 per 
hour plus reasonable expenses for testifying at trial, if necessary; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
proper contract and proposal documents, including insurance certificates and all other specified 
requirements.   
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft October 23, 2006 
 

- 6 - 

E-5 Macy*s Fireworks Permit Application 
 
Resolution #2006-10-320-E-5 
 
RESOLVED, That a fireworks permit be ISSUED to Zambelli Fireworks, Inc., of New Castle, 
PA, for the display of fireworks at Macy*s at the Oakland Mall on November 10, 2006. 
 
E-6 Acceptance of Six Warranty Deeds for Caswell Town Center PUD 5, Section 2 
 
Resolution #2006-10-320-E-6 
 
RESOLVED, That the six Warranty Deeds from owners of property: Joseph Petruzzello, as 
Trustee or his Successor Trustee(s) under Agreement dated October 27, 1999 having Sidwell 
#88-20-02-101-001 & 003; Joseph  and Josephine Petruzzello having Sidwell # 88-20-02-101-
004; Genesis Real Estate Investment, LLC having Sidwell #88-20-02-101-008 & 009; and, Gary 
F. and Brenda Abitheira having Sidwell #88-20-02-101-002 are hereby ACCEPTED; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD the 
Warranty Deed with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-7 Municipal Credit and Community Credit Agreement 
 
Resolution #2006-10-320-E-7 
 
RESOLVED, That the request that the City transfer Municipal Credit funds in the amount of 
$76,084.00 and Community Credit funds in the amount of $99,087.00 to Troy Medi-Go Plus for 
the operation of transportation service for senior citizens and persons with disabilities is hereby 
APPROVED and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the documents, a 
copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 11: Rejection of Bid – Vehicle Wash Services      
 
Resolution #2006-10-321 
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That all bid proposals for ITB-COT 06-46, to provide two-year requirements of City 
vehicle wash services with an option to renew for an additional two years, opened September 
13, 2006 are hereby REJECTED and will be re-bid. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft October 23, 2006 
 

- 7 - 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: No 
Appointments; b) City Council Appointments: Advisory Committee for Persons 
with Disabilities; Ethnic Issues Advisory Board; Historic District Commission; 
Troy Daze Committee     

 
 

(b)  City Council Appointments 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Broomfield   
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities  
Appointed by Council (9-Regular; 3-Alternate) – 3 Year Terms 
 
Pauline Manetta Term Expires 11/01/09 
 
Ethnic Issues Advisory Board 
Appointed by Council (9) – 3 &/or 2 Year Terms 
 
Lulu Guo Term Expires 07/01/07   (Student) 
 
Historic District Commission  One member, an architect if available 
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 Year Terms  Two members, chosen from a list submitted by a 
  duly organized history group or groups 
 
Nishita Parmar Term Expires 07/01/07  (Student) 
 
Gary Castile Term Expires 05/16/09 
 
Troy Daze Committee  
Appointed by Council (9) – 3 Year Terms 
 
Robert A. Berk Term Expires 11/30/09 
 
Michael S. Gonda Term Expires 11/30/09 
 
Cheryl Whitton-Kaszubski Term Expires 11/30/09 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft October 23, 2006 
 

- 8 - 

Vote on Resolution to Amend by Separating and Postponing the Vote for the 
Appointments to the Troy Daze Committee 
 
Resolution #2006-10-322 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the Resolution for City Council 
Appointments by SEPARATING and POSTPONING the vote for appointments to the Troy 
Daze Committee until the Regular City Council meeting scheduled for Monday, November 13, 
2006. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
Vote on City Council Appointments  
 
Resolution #2006-10-323 
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Lambert   
 
Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities  
Appointed by Council (9-Regular; 3-Alternate) – 3 Year Terms 
 
Pauline Manetta Term Expires 11/01/09 
 
Ethnic Issues Advisory Board 
Appointed by Council (9) – 3 &/or 2 Year Terms 
 
Lulu Guo Term Expires 07/01/07   (Student) 
 
Historic District Commission  One member, an architect if available 
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 Year Terms  Two members, chosen from a list submitted by a 
  duly organized history group or groups 
 
Nishita Parmar Term Expires 07/01/07  (Student) 
 
Gary Castile Term Expires 05/16/09 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
F-2 Appointment of Master of Ceremonies and Official Host – Annual Appreciation 

Banquets   
  
Resolution #2006-10-324 
Moved by Howrylak   
Seconded by Broomfield    
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft October 23, 2006 
 

- 9 - 

RESOLVED, That Council Member Fleming WILL ACT as Master of Ceremonies and Official 
Host that evening and work with the Community Affairs Department for the Annual 2007 Boards 
& Committees Appreciation Banquet (February 10, 2007); and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Council Member Lambert WILL ACT as Master of 
Ceremonies and Official Host that evening and work with the Community Affairs Department for 
the Annual 2007 Fire Fighters Appreciation Banquet (May 19, 2007). 
 
Yes: All-7  

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:   
a) Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 227) – Articles XXII, XXIII, 

XXIV and XXVIII – Ambulance Facilities in the B-3, H-S, O-1 and M-1 Districts – 
November 13, 2006  

b) Street Vacation (File Number: SV 148-C) – Portions of Daley Street abutting Lots 28 and 
33 of Supervisors Plat No. 11 Subdivision, South of Big Beaver, North of I-75, Section 26 
– November 13, 2006  

c) Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 5933 Diamond – November 27, 2006    
Noted and Filed 

 
G-2 Green Memorandums:  None Submitted 
 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1 No Council Referrals  
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1  No Council Comments  
 
REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  
a) Library Advisory Board/Final – June 29, 2006 
b) Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – July 10, 2006 
c) Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – August 14, 2006 
d) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – September 13, 2006 
e) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – September 26, 2006  
f) Troy Youth Council/Draft – September 27, 2006 
g) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – October 4, 2006 
h) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Draft – October 11, 2006 

Noted and Filed 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft October 23, 2006 
 

- 10 - 

J-2 Department Reports:  
a) City of Troy Quarterly Financial Report – September 30, 2006 

Noted and Filed 
 
J-3  Letters of Appreciation: None Submitted 
 
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 
 
J-5  Calendar 

Noted and Filed 
 
J-6  Preliminary Report from the Historic Homes Study Committee Concerning the 

Charlene Harris-Freeman and Carl Freeman Property  
 
Vote on Resolution to Suspend Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #6 – Order 
of Business, Article 15 I. 
 
Resolution #2006-10-325 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SUSPENDS Rules of Procedure for the City 
Council, Rule #6 Order of Business, Article 15-I. Council Comments and AUTHORIZE City 
Council to MOVE FORWARD PUBLIC COMMENT to take comment from the public BEFORE 
STUDY ITEMS: K-1. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1 Ethics Policy  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session:  No Closed Session Requested 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft October 23, 2006 
 

- 11 - 

The meeting RECESSED at 8:43 P.M. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 8:48 P.M. 
 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 9:15 P.M. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 
Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 



Page 1 of 2 

 
 
Date  October 31, 2006 
 
TO:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 

Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 

 
SUBJECT:  Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award To Low Bidders – Fertilizer / Herbicide Applications 

– Municipal Grounds 
  
Background: 

• On October 24, 2006, formal bids were received to provide three (3) year requirements to apply 
fertilizer and herbicides to select municipal sites for the purpose of weed control. 

• 176 Vendors were notified via the MITN system with six bidders responding, and one statement of no 
bid received.  The company who submitted the no bid had a scheduling problem, which prohibited 
performance of the specifications. 

 
Financial Considerations: 

• Funds are available in the following accounts: 
344.7802.050 – Fire Halls Grounds Maintenance 
551.7802.050 – DPW Grounds Maintenance 
276.7802.050 – Cemetery Grounds Maintenance 
759.7802.070 – Athletic Field Maintenance 
770.7802.050 – Park Grounds Maintenance 
780.7802.070 – Street Island, Major Roads 
782.7802.070 – Street Island, Northfield 
783.7802.070 – Street Maintenance DDA 
807.7802.070 – Museum Grounds Maintenance 

  
Legal Considerations:  

• ITB-COT 06-39, Three Year Requirements of Fertilizer/Herbicide Application Services was 
competitively bid and opened with six (6) bidders responding. 

• One of the six bidders was considered non-responsive, as the $2,500 bid deposit check was not 
submitted as specified. 

• The awards are contingent upon the recommended bidders submission of proper contracts and bid 
documents, including insurance certificates, bonds and all other specified requirements.  

 
Policy Considerations: 

• All bidders were given the opportunity to respond with their level of interest in the application of 
fertilizer/herbicide services for the City of Troy. (Goal #1) 

• High quality, weed controlled turf improves the appearance of Troy thereby attracting investment and 
encouraging redevelopment by companies interested in enhancing the appearance of their operations 
by working in a community that values attractive well maintained landscape. (Goal #2) 

October 31, 2006 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04a



Page 2 of 2 

 
To: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re: Bid Award – Fertilizer/Herbicide Application Services 
 
 
Policy Considerations:  continued 

• Fertilizing and weed control maintains and improves the condition of existing infrastructure (Goal #4) 
• Maintaining quality turf on the sports fields reduces the degree of injuries associated with sports 

activities (Goal #5) 
 

Options: 
• City management and the Parks and Recreation department recommend awarding the three year 

contract for fertilizer/herbicide application services to the low total bidders as follows: 
 

2007 – Davey Tree Expert Company of Auburn Hills, MI for an estimated cost of $57,289.00;  
2008 & 2009  –- United Lawnscape, Inc. of Washington, MI for an estimate cost of $115,513.00;  
both at unit prices as contained on the attached bid tabulation. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Rwh  S:\John’s Review/Agenda 11.13.06 SR1 FertilizerApplSvc Letter 



CITY OF TROY        ITB-COT 06-39
Opening Date -- 10/24/06 BID TABULATION Pg 1 of 4
Date Prepared -- 10/30/06 FERTILIZER/HERBICIDE APPLICATION

VENDOR NAME:

CHECK #: 083461516-2 549217968 477164981
CHECK AMOUNT: $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00

PROPOSAL -- FURNISH THREE (3) YEAR REQUIREMENTS OF FERTILIZER/HERBICIDE
     APPLICATION SERVICES IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE SPECIFICATIONS

PROPOSAL: For Irrigated Sites
A.

100.82 Acres    2007 First Application: 65.79$           63.04$           67.00$           
Second Application: 56.44$           55.96$           59.00$           
Third Application: 52.13$           54.89$           57.75$           
Fourth Application: 53.90$           54.82$           58.15$           

228.26$                228.71$                
100.82 Acres    2008 First Application: 65.79$          64.61$           67.00$           

Second Application: 56.44$          57.35$           59.00$           
Third Application: 52.13$          56.26$           57.75$           
Fourth Application: 53.90$          56.19$           58.15$           

228.26$                234.41$                
100.82 Acres    2009 First Application: 65.79$          66.22$           67.00$           

Second Application: 56.44$          58.78$           59.00$           
Third Application: 52.13$          57.66$           57.75$           
Fourth Application: 53.90$          57.59$           58.15$           

228.26$                240.25$                
PROPOSAL:
B. Non-Irrigated Areas

186.15 Acres    2007 First Application: 65.79$           63.04$           67.00$           
Second Application: 56.44$           55.96$           59.00$           
Third Application: 53.90$           54.82$           58.15$           

176.13$                173.82$                
186.15 Acres    2008 First Application: 65.79$          64.61$           67.00$           

Second Application: 56.44$          57.35$           59.00$           
Third Application: 53.90$          56.19$           58.15$           

176.13$                178.15$                
186.15 Acres    2009 First Application: 65.79$          66.22$           67.00$           

Second Application: 56.44$          58.78$           59.00$           
Third Application: 53.90$          57.59$           58.15$           

176.13$                182.59$                
PROPOSAL:
C. Flynn, Firefighters, & Boulan Athletic Fields

40.93 Acres     2007 One Application 47.80$           45.78$           50.00$           

40.93 Acres     2008 One Application 47.80$          46.92$           50.00$           

40.93 Acres     2009 One Application 47.80$          48.09$           50.00$           
ESTIMATED TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS: 115,512.45$  57,288.91$    

(2008/2009) (2007)
ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL PROPOSALS A-C: 173,268.68$   176,184.64$   182,143.14$   

SITE INSPECTION: Y/N Yes Yes Yes
DATE 9/6/2006 10/11/2006 10/10/06 & 10/11/06

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX XX XX
Cannot Meet

Great Lakes
Landscaping

United Lawnscape Davey Tree
Inc Expert Company



CITY OF TROY        ITB-COT 06-39
Opening Date -- 10/24/06 BID TABULATION Pg 2 of 4
Date Prepared -- 10/30/06 FERTILIZER/HERBICIDE APPLICATION

VENDOR NAME:

ALTERNATE INSURANCE: POLLUTION COVERAGE
Can Meet XX XX +$10,000.00
Cannot Meet XX

PROGRESS PAYMENTS:

CONTACT INFORMATION:
Hours of Operation 9am-5pm 8am-5pm 6am-5pm
24HR Contact # 586.752.5000 248.379.1438 810.523.8066

TERMS: Net 30 Days Blank Net 30 Days

WARRANTY: N/A Blank

EXCEPTIONS: N/A Blank Blank

BIDDER'S GENERAL QUESTIONNAIRE:
Attached XX XX XX
Not Attached

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:    Y or N Yes Yes Yes

DMS:
TruGreen- Chemlawn - No Bid Deposit Check submitted with proposal as specified.

NO BIDS: BOLDFACE TYPE DENOTES LOW TOTAL BIDDER BY YEAR
Troy Clogg

ATTEST: ___________________________
Ron Hynd Jeanette Bennett
Linda Bockstanz Purchasing Director
Laura Campbell

G:ITB-COT 06-39 Fertilizer/Herbicide Application

Per Occurrence
As completed

Per application

N/A

United Lawnscape Davey Tree Great Lakes
Inc Expert Company Landscaping

Net 30 Days



CITY OF TROY        ITB-COT 06-39
Opening Date -- 10/24/06 BID TABULATION Pg 3 of 4
Date Prepared -- 10/30/06 FERTILIZER/HERBICIDE APPLICATION

VENDOR NAME:

CHECK #: 710599171-5 310490
CHECK AMOUNT: $2,500.00 $2,500.00

PROPOSAL -- FURNISH THREE (3) YEAR REQUIREMENTS OF FERTILIZER/HERBICIDE
     APPLICATION SERVICES IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE SPECIFICATIONS

PROPOSAL: For Irrigated Sites
A. 2007

100.82 Acres First Application: 72.00$          80.00$             
Second Application: 72.00$          80.00$             
Third Application: 65.00$          80.00$             
Fourth Application: 65.00$          80.00$             

2008
100.82 Acres First Application: 72.00$          80.00$             

Second Application: 72.00$          80.00$             
Third Application: 65.00$          80.00$             
Fourth Application: 65.00$          80.00$             

2009
100.82 Acres First Application: 74.16$          80.00$             

Second Application: 74.16$          80.00$             
Third Application: 66.95$         80.00$             
Fourth Application: 66.95$          80.00$             

PROPOSAL:
B. Non-Irrigated Areas

2007
186.15 Acres First Application: 72.00$          80.00$             

Second Application: 65.00$          80.00$             
Third Application: 65.00$          80.00$             

2008
186.15 Acres First Application: 72.00$          80.00$             

Second Application: 65.00$          80.00$             
Third Application: 65.00$          80.00$             

2009
186.15 Acres First Application: 74.16$          80.00$             

Second Application: 66.95$          80.00$             
Third Application: 66.95$          80.00$             

PROPOSAL:
C. Flynn, Firefighters, & Boulan Athletic Fields

2007
40.93 Acres One Application 65.00$          65.00$             

2008
40.93 Acres One Application 65.00$          65.00$             

2009
40.93 Acres One Application 66.95$          65.00$             

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL PROPOSALS 'A-C': 205,698.91$ 238,796.55$    

SITE INSPECTION: Y/N Yes Yes
DATE First Week of October '06 10/17/2006

INSURANCE: Can Meet (+$3500/yr) XX
Cannot Meet Do not carry

IncLawn Care

Eradico Management Owen Tree
DBA - Weedman Service



CITY OF TROY        ITB-COT 06-39
Opening Date -- 10/24/06 BID TABULATION Pg 4 of 4
Date Prepared -- 10/30/06 FERTILIZER/HERBICIDE APPLICATION

VENDOR NAME:

ALTERNATE INSURANCE: POLLUTION COVERAGE
Can Meet Blank XX
Cannot Meet

PROGRESS PAYMENTS: Blank

CONTACT INFORMATION:
Hours of Operation 7am-5pm
24HR Contact # 810.724.6651

TERMS: Blank Blank

WARRANTY: Blank Blank

EXCEPTIONS: Blank Blank

BIDDER'S GENERAL QUESTIONNAIRE:
Attached XX XX
Not Attached

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:    Y or N Yes Yes

G:ITB-COT 06-39 Fertilizer/Herbicide Application

30-60 Days Net

8am-5pm EST
248.767.7693

Eradico Management Owen Tree Service Inc
DBA - Weedman



 
 
Date  October 30, 2006 
 
 
TO:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 

Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 

 
SUBJECT:  Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award To Low Bidders – Street Trees 
  
Background: 

• On September 12, 2006, formal bids were received to provide for the purchase and installation of street 
trees during the spring of 2007. 

• 71 Vendors were notified via the MITN system with seven bidders responding, and three statements of 
no bid received  – One company does not provide the installation as required by contract; one company 
required prepayment of materials; and one company chose not be bid due to tree availability and their 
spring planting schedule. 

 
Financial Considerations: 

• Funds are available in the Parks Subdivision Improvement account # 401780.7974.130. 
  

Legal Considerations:  
• ITB-COT 06-35, PROVIDE AND INSTALL (2500) BARE ROOT and (300) BALLED & BURLAPPED 

STREET TREES, SPRING 2007 was competitively bid and opened with seven bidders responding. 
• The awards are contingent upon the recommended bidders submission of proper contract and bid 

documents, including insurance certificates, bonds and all other specified requirements.  
 

Policy Considerations: 
• All bidders were given the opportunity to respond with their level of interest in supplying and installing 

street trees for the City of Troy. (Goal #1)  
• Street trees improve the quality of life in Troy thereby attracting investment and encouraging 

redevelopment. (Goal #2) 
• Street tree replacement maintains and improves current subdivision infrastructure and property values. 

(Goal #4) 
 

Options: 
• City management and the Parks and Recreation department recommend awarding Proposal A – to 

install 2500 bare root trees to the low bidder - County Line Nurseries & Landscaping Hartford, MI for an 
estimate cost of $195,000.00, and Proposal B – 300 balled and burlapped trees installed to the low 
bidder, Steele’s Services of Rochester Hills, MI for an estimated cost of $36,000.00 at unit prices 
contained in the bid tabulation.  

 
Rwh  S:\John’s Review/Agenda 11.13.06 – SR1 – Street Trees Letter 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04b



CITY OF TROY Page 1 of 2
Opening Date -- 9/12/06 BID TABULATION ITB-COT 06-35
Date Prepared --  10/18/06 STREET TREES - INSTALLED

VENDOR NAME: County Line Marine City Steele's Tom's Landscape
Nurseries  & Nursery Company Services
Landscaping

CHECK #: 1252662 322567 002455 100287525
CHECK AMOUNT 2,000.00$          2,000.00$          2,000.00$           2,000.00$          

PROPOSAL:  To Provide and Install for the City of Troy an Estimated 2500 Bare Root Street Trees and 300 Balled
and Burlapped Street Trees, Spring 2007 - In Accordance with the Specifications

CONTACT INFORMATION Hrs of Operation Mike Collins   8 AM to 5 PM 8 AM to 5 PM 7 AM to 6 PM
Phone Number 269-621-4543 810-560-9099 248-852-6140 248-941-5018

LIST OF NINE TREE TYPES Y or N Yes Yes Yes Yes
How many listed: 9 Types 12 Types 9 Types 9 Types

PROPOSAL A:
PRICE PER TREE INSTALLATION 78.00$               97.00$                120.00$              121.90$              

ESTIMATED TOTAL COST FOR 2500 TREES  195,000.00$       242,500.00$       300,000.00$       304,750.00$       

PROPOSAL B:
PRICE PER TREE INSTALLATION 180.00$              145.00$              120.00$              141.90$              

ESTIMATED TOTAL COST - 300 B&B TREES 54,000.00$         43,500.00$         36,000.00$         42,570.00$         

STATEMENT OF GUARANTEE Y or N As outlined Blank As specified Blank

INSURANCE Can meet XX XX XX XX
Cannot meet

PROGRESS PAYMENTS: Y or N Net 30 days Net 30 days 14 Days Net 30 days

DELIVERY Blank As specified As requested Spring  07'

TERMS Net 30 Days Net 30 Days 10th Prox 30 net Net 30

GUARANTEE

EXCEPTIONS None Blank None Blank

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Y or N Yes Yes Yes Yes

NO BIDS:
 Concord Nurseries, Inc BOLDFACE TYPE DENOTES LOW BIDDERS
 Norway Hills Spruce Farms
 Sherman Nursery Farms

__________________________
Jeanette Bennett
Purchasing Director

G:ITB-COT 06-35 STREET TREES INSTALLED

As Specified



CITY OF TROY Page 2 of 2
Opening Date -- 9/12/06 BID TABULATION ITB-COT 06-35
Date Prepared -- 10/18/06 STREET TREES - INSTALLED

VENDOR NAME: Nursery Merchant Mueller's Sunrise Parks Landscaping
Inc. Nursery, Inc. & Snow

CHECK #: 064904 716141303 681962914-5
CHECK AMOUNT: 2,000.00$          2,000.00$         2,000.00$             

PROPOSAL:  To Provide and Install for the City of Troy an Estimated 2500 Bare Root Street Trees and 300 Balled
and Burlapped Street Trees, Spring 2007 - In Accordance with the Specifications

CONTACT INFORMATION Hrs of Operation 8 AM to 4 PM 8 AM to 7 PM - M-F 8 AM to 5 PM
Phone Number 734-761-1774 248-651-7062 248-953-5638

LIST OF NINE TREE TYPES Y or N Yes Yes Yes
How many listed: 10 Types 9 Types 9 Types

PROPOSAL A:
PRICE PER TREE INSTALLATION 129.00$              149.50$             163.00$                

ESTIMATED TOTAL COST FOR 2500 TREES  322,500.00$       373,750.00$      407,500.00$         

PROPOSAL B:
PRICE PER TREE INSTALLATION No Bid 169.50$             163.00$                

ESTIMATED TOTAL COST - 300 B&B TREES No Bid 50,850.00$        48,900.00$           
As stipulated

STATEMENT OF GUARANTEE Y or N by City of Troy One Year Blank

INSURANCE Can meet XX XX XX
Cannot meet

In 500 tree
PROGRESS PAYMENTS: Y or N Increments Every 2 wks Blank

Bare Root -4/15/07
DELIVERY Blank B&B - 5/30/07 Blank

Final Payment
TERMS Blank Net 30 Blank

GUARANTEE

EXCEPTIONS Blank Blank Blank

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Y or N Yes Yes Yes

ATTEST:
Charlene McComb
Ronald Hynd
Linda Bockstanz

G:ITB-COT 06-35 STREET TREES INSTALLED

As Specified



 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

 
Date  November 6, 2006 
 
TO:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 

Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
Steven A. Pallotta, Building Operations Director 

 
SUBJECT:  Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Bid Award – Lowest Acceptable Bidder  

Elevator Inspection, Weight Testing, Maintenance and Repairs 
  
Background: 

• On October 25, 2006, formal bids were received to provide three (3) year requirements of elevator 
weight tests, relief valve testing, bi-monthly inspections and repairs with an option to renew for an 
additional three (3) years at four municipal buildings. 

• 30 vendors were notified via the MITN system with one responsive bid received, another bidder did not 
submit a bid deposit check as specified and one statement of no bid was received.  

 
Financial Considerations: 

• Funds are available in the following account: 
266.7802.150 – Building Operation Contractor Equipment Maintenance 

 
Legal Considerations:  

• ITB-COT 06-49, Three Year Requirements of Elevator Weight Tests, Relief Valve Testing, Bi-Monthly 
Inspections And Repairs With An Option To Renew For An Additional Three Years was competitively 
bid and opened with two (2) bidders responding. 

• One of the two bidders was considered non-responsive, as the $500.00 bid surety check was not 
included as specified. 

• The award is contingent upon the recommended bidder submission of proper contract and bid 
documents, including insurance certificates and all other specified requirements.  

 
Policy Considerations: 

• All bidders were given the opportunity to respond with their level of interest in the elevator services for 
the City of Troy. (Goal #1) 

• Elevator repair and maintenance maintains and improves the condition of existing  
Infrastructure. (Goal #4) 

• Proper elevator operation provides a safe means for people with any disability access to all public 
service areas. (Goal #6) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 1 of 2 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04c



 
November 6, 2006 
 
To: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re:      Bid Award – Elevator Inspection, Weight Testing, Maintenance and Repairs 
 
 

 
Options: 

• City management and the Building Operations Department recommend awarding the three-year 
contract for elevator weight tests, relief valve testing, bi-monthly inspections and repairs with an option 
to renew for an additional three (3) years at four municipal buildings to the lowest acceptable bidder, 
Elevator Technology, Inc. of Detroit, MI for an estimated total cost of $29,283.00 at prices as contained 
on the attached bid tabulation. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SP/  S:\John’s Review\Agenda 11.13.06 SR2 – Elevator Mtnce Letter 

Page 2 of 2 



CITY OF TROY         ITB-COT 06-49
Opening Date -- 10/25/06 BID TABULATION Pg. 1 of 2
Date Prepared --  11/2/06 ELEVATOR INSPECTION, MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR

VENDOR NAME: Elevator Techology Inc
Check # 131059473
Amount  $500.00

PROPOSAL -- FURNISH ELEVATOR WEIGHT TEST; BI-MONTHLY INSPECTIONS, AND EMERGENCY REPAIRS
ITEM 1:  FURNISH WEIGHT TESTS AND RELIEF VALVE TESTING

LOCATION ELEVATOR NUMBER/TYPE COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF

500 W. Big Beaver #18085 - Police Unit 785.00$       

500 W. Big Beaver #18084 - Passenger Unit 785.00$      

500 W. Big Beaver #29662 - Passenger Unit 785.00$      

500 W. Big Beaver #40064 - Passenger Unit 785.00$      

510 W. Big Beaver Library/Dover Elevator 785.00$      

60 W. Wattles Museum/General Store 785.00$      
  Montgomery Elevator

3179 Livernois Community Center/Otis Elevator
#038438 Passenger Elevator 785.00$      

TOTAL: ITEM 1 -- 5,495.00$   

ITEM 2:  BI-MONTHLY INSPECTIONS

LOCATION QTY TYPE BI-MONTHLY COST
500 W. Big Beaver 2 DETROIT ELEVATORS 150.00$       

500 W. Big Beaver 1 DOVER ELEVATOR 65.00$        

500 W. Big Beaver 1 OTIS ELEVATOR 65.00$        

510 W. Big Beaver 1 DOVER ELEVATOR 65.00$        

60 W. Wattles 1 MONTGOMERY 65.00$        
  General Store

3179 Livernois 1 OTIS ELEVATOR 65.00$        

TOTAL BI-MONTHLY COST$ 475.00$      

TOTAL ANNUAL COST $ 2,850.00$   

ANNUAL GRAND TOTAL - ITEMS 1 & 2: $ 8,345.00$   

ITEM 3: REPAIR SERVICE COST PER MAN/HOUR

REGULAR TIME: $ 118.00
# OF MEN IN TYPICAL CREW 2

OVERTIME: $ 208.00

HOLIDAY TIME: $ 208.00

PARTS DISCOUNT 5%
MARKUP OR DOWN (+ OR - Mark-Up



CITY OF TROY           ITB-COT 06-49
Opening Date -- 10/25/06 BID TABULATION Pg. 2 of 2
Date Prepared --  11/2/06 ELEVATOR INSPECTION, MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR

VENDOR NAME: Elevator Techology Inc

RESPONSE TIME: **Two hours after the original call**
Can meet XX
Cannot meet

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX
Cannot Meet

         Verification Signed - Y or N Yes

SITE INSPECTION:
Y/N No
DATE Blank

CONTACT INFORMATION:
Hrs of Operations 24 Hours
Contact Phone # 313-832-2440

TERMS Net 30

WARRANTY N/A

EXCEPTIONS None

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:    Signed
Y or N Yes

DMS:  Schindler Elevator - No bid deposit check included as specified -

ATTEST: BOLDFACE TYPE DENOTES LOWEST ACCEPTABLE BIDDER
Steve Pallotta
Cheryl Stewart
Linda Bockstanz

_________________________________
Jeanette Bennett
Purchasing Director

G:ITB-COT 06-49 Elevator.xls



 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

November 3, 2006 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
   Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
   Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT:                 Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: – Award To Low Bidders –  

Traffic Control Signs And Posts 
 
Background
 On October 17, 2006, bid proposals were received for one-year requirements of Traffic Control Signs and 

Posts with an option to renew for one additional year. 
 Items bid were separated into ten proposal categories, A - J, and shall be awarded per complete proposal. 

 Signs and posts are required for new installations, repairs and replacement, and ordered on an as needed 
basis. 

 106 vendors were notified via the MITN system with eleven bid responses received; as well as one late bid. 

 Low bidders are as follows:  1) Vulcan Signs for finished signs – 2) Rocal Inc. for finished signs with 
diamond grade sheeting – 3) Garden State Highway Products, Inc. for traffic sign faces – 4) Allied 
Municipal Supply for tubular and U-channel posts – and 5) Custom Products Corporation for round steel 
posts.   

 
Financial Considerations 
 Funds are available in the 2006/07 Operating Budget of the Public Works Streets Division. 

 
Legal Considerations
 ITB-COT 06-51, Traffic Control Signs and Posts was competitively bid and opened with eleven bidders 

responding. 
 
Policy Considerations
 Proper sign placement and legibility are required to warn, regulate and maintain the safety of motorists and 

pedestrians. (Goal III & VI)  
 
Options
• City management recommends awarding contracts on a proposal by proposal basis to the five low bidders, 

Vulcan Signs of Foley, AL, Proposals A, C, D, F & G; Rocal Inc. of Frankfort, OH, Proposals B & G; Garden 
State Highway Products, Inc. of Vineland, NJ, Proposals E & G; Allied Municipal Supply of Taylorville, IL, 
Proposals H & J; and Custom Products Corporation of Jackson, MS, Proposal I for an estimated total cost 
of $28,694.40, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation. 

 
 
EF\ef S:/Murphy’s Review/Agenda 11.13.06 SR1: TrafficControlSigns&Posts Letter  

campbellld
Text Box
E-04d



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 06-51
Opening Date -- 10/17/06 BID TABULATION Pg. 1 of 6
Date Prepared -- 11/3/06 TRAFFIC CONTROL SIGNS & POSTS

VENDOR NAME: Vulcan Rocal Inc. Garden State Allied
Signs Highway Municipal 

Products Supply
EST UNIT UNIT UNIT UNIT

ITEM QTY DESCRIPTION PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE
PROPOSAL A: COMPLETE SIGNS, SINGLE FACE 3M HIGH INTENSITY ON ALUMINUM -

1. 50 36" YIELD 18.22$           23.96$          26.02$            No bid
2. 50 30" STOP 25.72$           24.71$          34.04$            No bid
3. 10 36" STOP 37.05$           35.58$          49.02$            No bid
4. 10 18" x 6" All Way 3.49$             4.94$            4.72$             No bid

PROPOSAL A:  ESTIMATED TOTAL  -- 2,602.40$      2,838.70$    3,540.40$       No bid
PROPOSAL B: COMPLETE SIGNS, SINGLE FACE 3M Diamond Grade, VIP Sheeting, Fluorescent yellow green on Aluminum

1. 10 36" S1-1 School Advance 70.32$            60.57$         77.63$            No bid
2. 10 36" S2-1 School Crossing 70.32$            60.57$         77.63$            No bid
3. 10 12 x 24 -W 16-7 Left School Arrow 16.70$           14.53$         18.75$           No bid

PROPOSAL B:  ESTIMATED TOTAL  -- 1,573.40$      1,356.70$    1,740.10$       No bid

PROPOSAL C: STANDARD, WARNING DIAMOND, RECTANGULAR OR SQUARE - ONE COLOR
1. 10 12" X 18" One Color 5.90$             10.10$          7.12$              No bid
2. 20 12" X 36" One Color 10.71$           20.19$          13.91$            No bid
3. 30 18" X 18" One Color 8.35$             15.14$          10.43$            No bid
4. 20 24" X 24" One Color 14.28$           26.92$          18.54$            No bid
5. 50 24" X 30" One Color 17.85$           33.65$          23.18$            No bid
6. 50 30" X 30" One Color 22.31$           42.06$          28.98$            No bid
7. 10 30" X 36" One Color 32.13$           60.57$          41.73$            No bid
8. 10 48" X 48" One Color 57.12$           107.68$        74.19$            No bid
9. 50 12" X 30 Hi Int W/Round Corners 11.23$           16.83$          14.78$            No bid
10. 50 12" X 36 Hi Int W/Round Corners 13.47$           20.19$          17.73$            No bid
11. 20 12" X 42 Hi Int W/Round Corners 15.72$           23.56$          20.69$            No bid
12. 50 12" X 48 Hi Int W/Round Corners 17.96$           26.92$          23.64$            No bid
13. 10 12" X 60 Hi Int W/Round Corners 22.45$           33.65$         29.55$           No bid

PROPOSAL C:  ESTIMATED TOTAL -- 6,381.70$      10,970.10$  8,317.10$       No bid

PROPOSAL D: STANDARD, WARNING DIAMOND, RECTANGULAR OR SQUARE, TWO OR MORE COLORS
1. 200 12" X 12" Two Color 4.25$             7.06$            5.62$              No bid
2. 50 12" X 18" Two Color 6.03$             10.59$         7.47$             No bid

PROPOSAL D:  ESTIMATED TOTAL -- 1,151.50$      1,941.50$    1,497.50$       No bid

PROPOSAL E: 3M STANDARD PRE-PRINTED TRAFFIC SIGN FACES
1. 500 12" X 12" No Parking Symbol R8-3A 1.46$              2.13$            1.14$             No bid
2. 20 30" Stop Faces High Intensity 12.40$            11.03$          13.61$           No bid
3. 20 36" Yield Faces High Intensity 7.48$             8.31$            9.79$             No bid

PROPOSAL E:  ESTIMATED TOTAL -- 1,127.60$      1,451.80$    1,038.00$       No bid

PROPOSAL F: DOUBLE FACED, TWO SIDED ON WHITE
1. 40 9" X 30" Extruded High Intensity White 16.31$           23.00$          23.41$            No bid
2. 40 9" X 36" Extruded High Intensity White 19.56$           27.60$          28.09$            No bid
3. 40 9" X 42" Extruded High Intensity White 22.85$           32.20$          32.77$            No bid
4. 40 6" X 24" Extruded High Intensity White 9.07$             18.40$          12.94$            No bid
5. 50 6" X 30" Extruded High Intensity White 11.35$           23.00$          16.17$            No bid
6. 50 6" X 36" Extruded High Intensity White 13.61$           27.60$          19.41$            No bid
7. 50 6" X 42" Extruded High Intensity White 15.86$           32.20$         22.64$           No bid

PROPOSAL F:  ESTIMATED TOTAL -- 4,752.60$      8,188.00$    6,799.40$       No bid

PROPOSAL G: SET UP FEES CALL 150.00$       25.00$           No Bid
CALL 150.00$       25.00$           No bid



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 06-51
Opening Date -- 10-17-06 BID TABULATION Pg. 2 of 6
Date Prepared --  11/3/06 TRAFFIC CONTROL SIGNS & POSTS

VENDOR NAME: Vulcan Rocal Inc. Garden State Allied
Signs Highway Municipal 

Products Supply
PROPOSAL H; Square Tubular Sign Posts - Perforated - Galvanized Steel - FHWA Approved

1. 100 12 Ft x 1-3/4 " -  14 Gauge No bid No bid 39.18$            19.75$         
2. 100 9 Ft x 1-1/2" - 14 Gauge No bid No bid 29.38$            15.07$         
3. 100 3 Ft x 2" Base - 12 Gauge No bid No bid 19.80$            9.15$           
4. 100 3 Ft x 1-3/4" Base - 12 Gauge No bid No bid 17.82$           8.14$           

PROPOSAL H:  ESTIMATED TOTAL -- No bid No bid 10,618.00$     5,211.00$    

PROPOSAL I: Round Galvanized Steel Post, 2" Nominal Size, 2 1/8" ID 2-3/8" OD.,125 Wall Thickness, 3 lbs LF
1. 100 12 Ft Galvanized Steel Round Post No bid No bid 76.25$           21.36$         

PROPOSAL I:  ESTIMATED TOTAL -- No bid No bid 7,625.00$       2,136.00$     

PROPOSAL J: U-Channel Sign Posts
1. 50 12 Ft  - 3 lbs Galvanized Steel 31.02$            No bid 40.12$            25.95$         
2. 100 12 Ft  - 3 lbs Green Painted Steel 24.01$            No bid 29.47$            18.95$         
3. 100 10 Ft  - 2 lbs Green Painted Steel 12.90$           No bid 19.70$           11.57$         

PROPOSAL J:  ESTIMATED TOTAL 5,242.00$      No bid 6,923.00$       4,349.50$    

   ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS: 14,888.20$    1,356.70$    1,038.00$       9,560.50     

DELIVERY:
Minimum Shipment 50.00$            $1,000.00 1,000.00$       25 pc  
# of Days 3-5 days - stock 45 30 30

30 days nonstock

CONTACT: Hrs of Operation 7:00 to 4:00 8:00 to 4:30 7:00 to 5:00 7:00 to 5:00
Phone # N/A 704-998-2122 609-774-1116 800-824-0783

TERMS: Net 30 Net 30 Net 30 Days 30 Days

WARRANTY: Standard 3M 10 Years 10 Years   ---
3-5 days - stock

DELIVERY: 30 days nonstock 45 30 30

EXCEPTIONS: Blank Listed in Blank N/A
Bid

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Y or N Yes Yes Yes Yes

ATTEST: BOLDFACE TYPE DENOTES LOW BIDDER BY PROPOSAL
Tom Rosewarne
Emily Frontera ______________________________
Charlene McComb Jeanette Bennett
Linda Bockstanz Purchasing Director

G:\ITB-COT 06-51 Traffic Control Signs & Posts



CITY OF TROY                  ITB-COT 06-51
Opening Date -- 10/17/06 BID TABULATION Pg. 3 of 6
Date Prepared -- 11/3/06 TRAFFIC CONTROL SIGNS & POSTS

VENDOR NAME: Custom Unistrut Dornbos Hall Signs
Products Detriot Sign Inc

Corporation
EST UNIT UNIT UNIT UNIT

ITEM QTY DESCRIPTION PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE
PROPOSAL A: COMPLETE SIGNS, SINGLE FACE 3M HIGH INTENSITY ON ALUMINUM -

1. 50 36" YIELD 18.85$         No bid No bid 22.91$           
2. 50 30" STOP 27.86$         No bid No bid 29.20$           
3. 10 36" STOP 40.13$         No bid No bid 41.76$           
4. 10 18" x 6" All Way 4.73$          No bid No bid 4.02$            

PROPOSAL A:  ESTIMATED TOTAL -- 2,784.10$   No bid No bid 3,063.30$     
PROPOSAL B: COMPLETE SIGNS, SINGLE FACE 3M Diamond Grade, VIP Sheeting, Fluorescent yellow green on Aluminum

1. 10 36" S1-1 School Advance 68.16$         No bid No bid 74.31$           
2. 10 36" S2-1 School Crossing 68.16$         No bid No bid 74.31$           
3. 10 12 x 24 -W 16-7 Left School Arrow 15.97$        No bid No bid 17.39$          

PROPOSAL B:  ESTIMATED TOTAL -- 1,522.90$   No bid No bid 1,660.10$     

PROPOSAL C: STANDARD, WARNING DIAMOND, RECTANGULAR OR SQUARE - ONE COLOR
1. 10 12" X 18" One Color 5.83$           No bid No bid 5.82$             
2. 20 12" X 36" One Color 10.79$         No bid No bid 11.11$           
3. 30 18" X 18" One Color 8.72$           No bid No bid 8.58$             
4. 20 24" X 24" One Color 14.39$         No bid No bid 14.71$           
5. 50 24" X 30" One Color 17.92$         No bid No bid 18.23$           
6. 50 30" X 30" One Color 21.70$         No bid No bid 22.71$           
7. 10 30" X 36" One Color 31.00$         No bid No bid 32.45$           
8. 10 48" X 48" One Color 54.67$         No bid No bid 59.96$           
9. 50 12" X 30 Hi Int W/Round Corners 12.43$         No bid No bid 12.37$           
10. 50 12" X 36 Hi Int W/Round Corners 14.08$         No bid No bid 14.84$           
11. 20 12" X 42 Hi Int W/Round Corners 17.45$         No bid No bid 17.31$           
12. 50 12" X 48 Hi Int W/Round Corners 19.78$         No bid No bid 19.79$           
13. 10 12" X 60 Hi Int W/Round Corners 24.40$        No bid No bid 24.73$          

PROPOSAL C:  ESTIMATED TOTAL -- 6,568.70$   No bid No bid 6,746.60$     

PROPOSAL D: STANDARD, WARNING DIAMOND, RECTANGULAR OR SQUARE, TWO OR MORE COLORS
1. 200 12" X 12" Two Color 5.46$           No bid No bid 4.54$             
2. 50 12" X 18" Two Color 6.35$          No bid No bid 6.47$            

PROPOSAL D:  ESTIMATED TOTAL -- 1,409.50$   No bid No bid 1,231.50$     

PROPOSAL E: 3M STANDARD PRE-PRINTED TRAFFIC SIGN FACES
1. 500 12" X 12" No Parking Symbol R8-3A 2.41$           No bid No bid 1.38$             
2. 20 30" Stop Faces High Intensity 12.46$         No bid No bid 13.18$           
3. 20 36" Yield Faces High Intensity 8.56$          No bid No bid 9.85$            

PROPOSAL E:  ESTIMATED TOTAL -- 1,625.40$   No bid No bid 1,150.60$     

PROPOSAL F: DOUBLE FACED, TWO SIDED ON WHITE
1. 40 9" X 30" Extruded High Intensity White 21.04$         No bid No bid 29.40$           
2. 40 9" X 36" Extruded High Intensity White 25.25$         No bid No bid 35.16$           
3. 40 9" X 42" Extruded High Intensity White 29.46$         No bid No bid 40.94$           
4. 40 6" X 24" Extruded High Intensity White 11.22$         No bid No bid 16.57$           
5. 50 6" X 30" Extruded High Intensity White 14.03$         No bid No bid 20.54$           
6. 50 6" X 36" Extruded High Intensity White 16.83$         No bid No bid 24.49$           
7. 50 6" X 42" Extruded High Intensity White 19.64$        No bid No bid 28.46$          

PROPOSAL F:  ESTIMATED TOTAL -- 6,003.80$   No bid No bid 8,557.30$     

PROPOSAL G: SET UP FEES 75.00$        No Bid No Bid 69.26$          
75.00$        No bid No bid 69.26$          



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 06-51
Opening Date -- 10-17-06 BID TABULATION Pg. 4 of 6
Date Prepared -- 11/3/06 TRAFFIC CONTROL SIGNS & POSTS

VENDOR NAME: Custom Unistrut Dornbos Hall Signs
Products Detriot Sign Inc

Corporation
PROPOSAL H; Square Tubular Sign Posts - Perforated - Galvanized Steel - FHWA Approved

1. 100 12 Ft x 1-3/4 " -  14 Gauge 24.58$         19.80$          No bid 24.08$           
2. 100 9 Ft x 1-1/2" - 14 Gauge 16.82$         16.65$          No bid 18.07$           
3. 100 3 Ft x 2" Base - 12 Gauge 11.00$         9.13$            No bid 8.42$             
4. 100 3 Ft x 1-3/4" Base - 12 Gauge 9.29$          7.44$            No bid 9.88$            

PROPOSAL H:  ESTIMATED TOTAL -- 6,169.00$   5,302.00$    No bid 6,045.00$     

PROPOSAL I: Round Galvanized Steel Post, 2" Nominal Size, 2 1/8" ID 2-3/8" OD.,125 Wall Thickness, 3 lbs LF
1. 100 12 Ft Galvanized Steel Round Post 18.51$        No bid Blank No bid

PROPOSAL I:  ESTIMATED TOTAL -- 1,851.00$    No bid Blank No bid

PROPOSAL J: U-Channel Sign Posts
1. 50 12 Ft  - 3 lbs Galvanized Steel 30.23$         No bid 30.12$            30.76$           
2. 100 12 Ft  - 3 lbs Green Painted Steel 22.18$         No bid 19.69$            22.03$           
3. 100 10 Ft  - 2 lbs Green Painted Steel 12.86$        No bid 10.93$           12.31$          

PROPOSAL J:  ESTIMATED TOTAL -- 5,015.50$   No bid 4,568.00$       4,972.00$     

   ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS: 1,851.00$   

DELIVERY:
Minimum Shipment $1,000.00 $50.00 Blank $1,000.00
# of Days 7 - 45 5 Blank 30-45 signs

45-75 posts

CONTACT: Hrs of Operation 7:30 to 5:00 7:30 to 5:00 7:30 to 5:00 8:00 to 5:00
Phone # 800-367-1492 734-778-9452 517-719-2417 800-284-7446

TERMS: Net 30 Days Blank N-30 0% Net 30

WARRANTY: Standard 3M Blank Blank Attached to Bid
30-45 signs

DELIVERY: 7 - 45 Blank 30 45-75 posts

EXCEPTIONS: Listed in Blank Blank Listed in
Bid Bid

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Y or N Yes Yes Yes Yes

G:\ITB-COT 06-51 Traffic Control Signs & Posts



 CITY OF TROY                  ITB-COT 06-51
Opening Date -- 10/17/06 BID TABULATION Pg. 5 of 6
Date Prepared -- 11/3/06 TRAFFIC CONTROL SIGNS & POSTS

VENDOR NAME: Subcon Michigan State Electromark
International Industries Company

LLC
EST UNIT UNIT UNIT

ITEM QTY DESCRIPTION PRICE PRICE PRICE
PROPOSAL A: COMPLETE SIGNS, SINGLE FACE 3M HIGH INTENSITY ON ALUMINUM -

1. 50 36" YIELD 24.71$         87.75$           118.19$         
2. 50 30" STOP 34.32$         87.75$           90.31$           
3. 10 36" STOP 49.41$         87.75$           163.15$         
4. 10 18" x 6" All Way 4.12$          7.80$            34.04$           

PROPOSAL A:  ESTIMATED TOTAL -- 3,486.80$   9,730.50$     12,396.90$    
PROPOSAL B: COMPLETE SIGNS, SINGLE FACE 3M Diamond Grade, VIP Sheeting, Fluorescent yellow green on Aluminum

1. 10 36" S1-1 School Advance 82.71$         105.75$         264.97$         
2. 10 36" S2-1 School Crossing 82.71$         105.75$         264.97$         
3. 10 12 x 24 -W 16-7 Left School Arrow 18.38$        23.50$          76.56$           

PROPOSAL B:  ESTIMATED TOTAL -- 1,838.00$   2,350.00$     6,065.00$      

PROPOSAL C: STANDARD, WARNING DIAMOND, RECTANGULAR OR SQUARE - ONE COLOR
1. 10 12" X 18" One Color 12.87$         23.50$           39.25$           
2. 20 12" X 36" One Color 25.74$         35.25$           41.76$           
3. 30 18" X 18" One Color 19.31$         47.00$           47.51$           
4. 20 24" X 24" One Color 34.32$         47.00$           125.42$         
5. 50 24" X 30" One Color 42.90$         70.50$           77.79$           
6. 50 30" X 30" One Color 53.63$         105.75$         91.56$           
7. 10 30" X 36" One Color 77.22$         105.75$         121.84$         
8. 10 48" X 48" One Color 137.28$       187.20$         218.38$         
9. 50 12" X 30 Hi Int W/Round Corners 13.73$         29.25$           36.95$           
10. 50 12" X 36 Hi Int W/Round Corners 16.47$         29.25$           43.20$           
11. 20 12" X 42 Hi Int W/Round Corners 19.22$         34.00$           59.40$           
12. 50 12" X 48 Hi Int W/Round Corners 21.96$         39.00$           55.70$           
13. 10 12" X 60 Hi Int W/Round Corners 27.45$        48.75$          110.41$         

PROPOSAL C:  ESTIMATED TOTAL -- 12,147.60$ 21,074.50$   26,115.70$    

PROPOSAL D: STANDARD, WARNING DIAMOND, RECTANGULAR OR SQUARE, TWO OR MORE COLORS
1. 200 12" X 12" Two Color 8.86$           11.75$           11.58$           
2. 50 12" X 18" Two Color 13.29$        23.50$          20.91$           

PROPOSAL D:  ESTIMATED TOTAL -- 2,436.50$   3,525.00$     3,361.50$      

PROPOSAL E: 3M STANDARD PRE-PRINTED TRAFFIC SIGN FACES
1. 500 12" X 12" No Parking Symbol R8-3A 2.79$           6.15$             3.13$             
2. 20 30" Stop Faces High Intensity 19.50$         87.75$           49.72$           
3. 20 36" Yield Faces High Intensity 28.08$        87.75$          65.36$           

PROPOSAL E:  ESTIMATED TOTAL -- 2,346.60$   6,585.00$     3,866.60$      

PROPOSAL F: DOUBLE FACED, TWO SIDED ON WHITE
1. 40 9" X 30" Extruded High Intensity White 29.06$         N/A No bid
2. 40 9" X 36" Extruded High Intensity White 34.87$         N/A No bid
3. 40 9" X 42" Extruded High Intensity White 40.68$         N/A No bid
4. 40 6" X 24" Extruded High Intensity White 17.91$         N/A No bid
5. 50 6" X 30" Extruded High Intensity White 22.09$         N/A No bid
6. 50 6" X 36" Extruded High Intensity White 26.87$         N/A No bid
7. 50 6" X 42" Extruded High Intensity White 31.34$        N/A No bid

PROPOSAL F:  ESTIMATED TOTAL -- 8,915.80$   N/A No bid

PROPOSAL G: SET UP FEES 90.00$        Blank -$                     
90.00$        Blank -$              



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 06-51
Opening Date -- 10-17-06 BID TABULATION Pg. 6 of 6
Date Prepared -- 11/3/06 TRAFFIC CONTROL SIGNS & POSTS

VENDOR NAME: Subcon Michigan State Electromark
International Industries Company

LLC
PROPOSAL H; Square Tubular Sign Posts - Perforated - Galvanized Steel - FHWA Approved

1. 100 12 Ft x 1-3/4 " -  14 Gauge No bid N/A No bid
2. 100 9 Ft x 1-1/2" - 14 Gauge No bid N/A No bid
3. 100 3 Ft x 2" Base - 12 Gauge No bid N/A No bid
4. 100 3 Ft x 1-3/4" Base - 12 Gauge No bid N/A No bid

PROPOSAL H:  ESTIMATED TOTAL -- No bid N/A No bid

PROPOSAL I: Round Galvanized Steel Post, 2" Nominal Size, 2 1/8" ID 2-3/8" OD.,125 Wall Thickness, 3 lbs LF
1. 100 12 Ft Galvanized Steel Round Post No bid Blank No bid

PROPOSAL I:  ESTIMATED TOTAL -- No bid Blank No bid

PROPOSAL J: U-Channel Sign Posts
1. 50 12 Ft  - 3 lbs Galvanized Steel No bid N/A No bid
2. 100 12 Ft  - 3 lbs Green Painted Steel No bid N/A No bid
3. 100 10 Ft  - 2 lbs Green Painted Steel No bid N/A 14.99$           

PROPOSAL J:  ESTIMATED TOTAL -- No bid N/A 1,499.00$      

   ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS:

DELIVERY:
Minimum Shipment None Blank $1,000.00
# of Days 45 45 - 60 30

CONTACT: Hrs of Operation 9:00 to 5:00 7:00 to 3:30 8:00 to 5:00
Phone # 616-304-2208 517-780-6217 315-594-8085

TERMS: Net 30 Net 30 Net 30 Days

WARRANTY: Blank Blank Yes

DELIVERY: Blank 45 - 60 30 Days

EXCEPTIONS: Blank Blank Blank

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Y or N Yes Yes Yes

G:\ITB-COT 06-51 Traffic Control Signs & Posts



 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

 
October 31, 2006 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
    Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:   Approval of Subdivision Entrance Sign/Agreement 
    Wyngate of Troy Subdivision 
 
 
 
 
Background: 
 
 Provisions of the Troy Sign Ordinance allow for the placement of residential development 

identification signs within the medians of public roads. 
 The homeowners association of the Wyngate of Troy Subdivision has proposed to install a sign 

within the median of Wyngate Drive at the intersection of Coolidge Highway. 
 The proposal includes the sign permit application, sign plans, site plans, agreement between the 

association and the City regarding the maintenance of the sign, and an insurance certificate. 
 These documents have been reviewed by staff and have been found to be in compliance with the 

Ordinance requirements. 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 There are no financial considerations with this matter. 

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 Section 85.01.05 of the Troy Sign Ordinance requires that the design of the sign and the 

agreement for its ongoing maintenance be approved by City Council before a permit can be 
issued for a residential development identification sign within the median of a public street. 

 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 The homeowners association is interested in utilizing the entrance sign to help establish an 

identity and sense of place within the subdivision (Goal 2) 
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-05



Options: 
 
 City Council can approve the sign and the agreement. 
 City Council can deny the sign and the agreement. 

 
 
 
Approved as to Form and Legality:       
      Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 



























TO: Members of the Troy City Council 
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

Christopher J. Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
DATE: November 2, 2006 

  
  

SUBJECT: Hooters of Troy Inc. v City of Troy 
 

 

Attached please find a copy of a second lawsuit filed by Hooters of Troy against 
the City of Troy. This lawsuit was filed on November 2, 2006 in Federal District Court and 
was assigned to Judge Julian A. Cook.   In the first case, Hooters has appealed the state 
court decision of Oakland County Circuit Court Judge John McDonald.  The appellate 
briefs have been filed, and the parties are waiting for the Court of Appeals to set a date 
for oral argument.  It is likely that appellate oral argument will not be scheduled for some 
time, since Hooters’ motion for immediate relief was denied by the Court of Appeals.  
Absent such extraordinary relief, most appellate cases take several months to conclude.     

 
In the interim, Hooters has filed this federal court action, again alleging that the 

Troy City Council acted arbitrarily and capriciously in denying the requested transfer of 
the Class C liquor license and entertainment permit from the Sign of the Beefcarver (The 
Wagon Wheel) to Hooters of Troy, Inc..  Hooters also repeats the argument already 
raised in the state court lawsuit that Troy has allegedly violated their equal protection and 
due process rights that are guaranteed by the United States Constitution.  Hooters has 
also added one additional claim to their new federal court lawsuit.  They argue in Count I 
that the Troy City Council has violated their guaranteed First Amendment right of free 
expression.  Hooters has requested damages in the amount of one million dollars. These 
damages, according to allegations in the new lawsuit, were incurred by the delay in 
moving their operations from the John R location to the new location on Rochester Road, 
and also include attorney fees and costs.     

 
Absent objections, the City Attorney’s Office will represent the City’s interest in 

this case.  If you have any questions concerning the above, please let us know.  

campbellld
Text Box
E-06































campbellld
Text Box

campbellld
Text Box
E-07











campbellld
Text Box
F-02



































 
Date  November 7, 2006 
 
TO:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer 

Carol K. Anderson, Director Parks and Recreation 
 
 

SUBJECT:  Agreement – City of Troy and William Beaumont Hospital for the Use of Flynn Park Roadway. 
 
Background:  

• William Beaumont Hospital is pursuing the use of Flynn Park roadway by hospital personnel to limit the 
traffic congestion exiting William Beaumont property onto Dequindre Road, particularly at shift change.  
Use of the Flynn roadway will increase ingress/egress to two locations for staff and contractors.  Use of 
the roadway will not be permitted for hospital vendors.  

• Discussions between the two parties began in early 2005 and continued while William Beaumont 
Hospital sought an easement from the Detroit Water and Sewer Board.  Upon approval for the 
easement from Detroit Water and Sewer, the final agreement was drafted.   

 
Legal Considerations: 

• The agreement contained herein, addresses all legal considerations negotiated by both parties. 
 
Policy Considerations: 

• Use of City property for private use is a departure from past practice, however there is some public 
benefit to decreasing traffic on Dequindre Road and additional ingress/egress by Fire and Police 
Department personnel. 

• The item is consistent with (Goal #2) and (Goal #5) 
 
Financial Considerations: 

• This agreement will result in additional revenues of $10,000 for park use and reimbursement of 70% of 
maintenance costs.  In the past, these costs have been incurred by the City. 

 
Options: 

• City management recommends approval of the agreement with William Beaumont Hospital for the use 
of Flynn Park roadway. 

 
 
 
 
Where legal review is necessary: 
 
Approved as to Form and Legality:  ________________________________ 

Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-03



































Page 1 of 3 

 
 
November 8, 2006 
 
 
TO:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager, Finance and Administration 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 

Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Approval to Negotiate a Food Service Contract For Community Center and Sanctuary Lake  
 

A food service provider is desired in order to provide a full service operation at the Community Center 
and Sanctuary Lake Golf Course, help to generate room rental revenue at the Community Center and generate 
additional revenue related to the sale of food at these respective facilities. 
  
Background: 

• On January 7, 2002, City Council approved a three-year contract with Emerald Food Service (EFS) to 
provide food service at the Troy Community Center (Resolution #2002-01-14).  EFS was the sole 
bidder. 

• On April 12, 2004, City Council approved a new one-year contract (with an option to renew for two one 
year periods) with EFS for food service at the Troy Community Center and Sanctuary Lake Golf Course 
(Resolution 2004-04-186) that took effect on May 1, 2005. 

• The contract was renewed for one year expiring April 30, 2007. (Resolution #2006-05-208)  City 
Council requested that the contract go out for bid at the appropriate time so as to have continual 
service. 

• On July 17, 2006, an request for proposal was sent out to seventy-seven (77) vendors registered in the 
JD Edwards database and seventy-three (73) vendors listed on the e-procurement website 
(www.mitn.info) to provide food service at the Troy Community Center and Sanctuary Lake Golf Course 
for a five (5) year period with an option to renew for five (5) additional years.   Seven interested 
companies attended a non-mandatory pre-bid meeting on July 25, 2006.  The request for proposal 
asked for a guaranteed minimum of $100,000 annual rental fee ($70,000 for Community Center and 
$30,000 for Sanctuary Lake Golf Course).  Vendors were allowed to submit an alternative rental 
proposal and given the option to bid on one or both facilities, but the City would not consider a revenue 
sharing plan at this time. 

• On August 14, 2006 one request for proposal was received to provide food service only at the 
Sanctuary Lake Golf Course at a rent of $15,000, which was 50% lower than the amount requested in 
the request for proposal.  This proposal was rejected on August 28, 2006 (Resolution #2006-08-341-
E4b).  Feedback from the vendors who attended the pre-bid meeting but did not submit a request for 
proposal indicated that the annual rental fee requested ($100,000) was too high based on the volume 
of service that both facilities experienced in the previous year of operation. In addition, the vendors 
were concerned with the reservation process that gave room priority to non-profit and City groups who 
do not usually order food, and the policy against alcohol being served at the Community Center; 
thereby reducing the number of profitable, large-scale events that would reserve space at the 
Community Center. 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04



Page 2 of 3 

November 8, 2006 
 
To: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re: Approval to Negotiate Food Service Contract  
 
Background:  continued 

• On September 8, 2006, the request for proposal was re-bid with revised specifications and a guarantee 
of service at both the Community Center and Sanctuary Lake Golf Course.  With this proposal, the 
vendor was asked to submit a revenue sharing plan with a guaranteed minimum to the City.   

• The request for proposal opened on September 29, 2006, and again Emerald Food Service was the 
only vendor to submit a proposal with a $25,000 guarantee and 5% of all revenue in excess of 
$500,000. 

• City management has developed a list of pros and cons of a new contract with EFS to provide food 
service at the Community Center and Sanctuary Lake Golf Course.  

• Pro’s of Negotiating a Contract with EFS 
o Guaranteed revenue of $25,000 (Current guarantee is $16,960 which includes $10,000 for food 

and $6960 for rent; however, revenue sharing option generated a total of $33,639 during 2005-
06 contract period)  

o The guarantee of food service for groups/patrons using the Community Center and golfers at 
Sanctuary Lake.  Food service may increase the number of room rentals at the Community 
Center and rounds of golf at Sanctuary Lake.    

o Limited City involvement in the food service operation, including planning, staffing and preparing 
the room/facility for an event.  Without a vendor, City staff would provide much of this service, 
which would increase operating costs.  

o Uninterrupted liquor sales at Sanctuary Lake.  The liquor license may take 12 months to 
transfer, thereby eliminating the opportunity to have liquor sales at Sanctuary Lake in 2007. 

o Continuation of the federally funded Senior Hot Meal Program, which provides fresh meals at 
the Community Center.  This program averages 38 meals per day.  If EFS is not the Community 
Center vendor, they may choose to prepare meals at another location.  Meals for seniors would 
still be provided, but prepared off-site and delivered to the Community Center. 

o Limited use of the kitchen by other outside contractors.  Since EFS is virtually the only 
contractor and responsible for its upkeep, the City’s expense for daily maintenance is limited. 

o Food from the cafe and pro shop items would be replaced through the use of vending machines. 
The vending machines would be open during building hours, whereas the café hours of 
operation are limited. 

• Con’s of Negotiating a Contract with EFS 
o Patrons would be required to use EFS as the food service provider and not have the ability to 

bring in their own food or hire another caterer. 
o Higher food prices for groups (i.e. non-profit groups) or patrons who may be able to get it at a 

lower cost elsewhere or bring it in themselves. 
o Less overall revenue ($15,599) for the City based on sales from 2005-06. 
o The request for proposal submitted by EFS proposes to end the current contract on December 

31, 2006.  The current contract expires April 30, 2007. Less revenue than anticipated will be 
collected if a new contract begins January 1, 2007. 

 
Financial Considerations: 

• The City of Troy earned $33,639 in revenue in 2005-06 from the food service contract with EFS at the 
Community Center and Sanctuary Lake Golf Course.  This amount was determined based on a 
$10,000 guarantee and revenue sharing plan for gross receipts over $200,000.  EFS also rents office 
space in the Community Center for $580 per month ($6960 annually).  The total revenue derived from 
the revenue sharing contract and office rent in 2005-06 was $40,599. 

• In 2005-06, EFS reported $466,391 in gross income (less sales tax) at both the Community Center and 
Sanctuary Lake Golf Course. 

November 8, 2006 



Page 3 of 3 

 
To: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re: Approval to Negotiate Food Service Contract  
 
Financial Considerations:  continued 

• The request for proposal submitted by EFS lists a $20,000 guaranteed minimum plus 5% of all revenue 
in excess of $500,000 and $5,000 in annual rent for the office and storage space in the Community 
Center.  Based on the gross income EFS earned in 2005-06, the City would receive $25,000 in revenue 
($15,599 less than revenue received in 2005-06) from this proposal. 

• The Community Center earned $89,000 from room rental fees in 2005-06.  There were 469 events that 
ordered food from EFS during that time.  If a food service provider was not on-site to provide catered 
food, it is likely that many of these events would not have taken place at the Community Center, which 
would negatively affect the room rental revenue. 
 

Legal Considerations:  
• Liquor license liability reverts to the City if Emerald Food Service does not continue as the food service 

provider. 
• The food service request for proposal was competitively bid and opened with one bidder responding. 
• All bidders were given the opportunity to attend a non-mandatory pre-bid meeting to ask questions and 

review the facilities.  
• The award is contingent upon the recommended bidder’s submission of proper contract and proposal 

documents, including insurance certificates and all other specified requirements.  
 

Policy Considerations: 
• Securing a quality food service provider for the Troy Community Center and Sanctuary Lake Golf 

Course would minimize the cost to the City to directly provide this service (Goal 1), improve customer 
satisfaction (Goal 3) and generate additional revenue for the City (Goal 1). 

 
Options: 

• City management and the Parks and Recreation Department recommend the continuation of a food 
service provider and seek approval to begin negotiation with Emerald Food Service, the sole bidder, for 
a food service contract at the Community Center and Sanctuary Lake Golf Course.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
KS/sl   S:\John’s Review/ Agenda 11.13.06 – RB – FoodServiceLetter.doc 



CITY OF TROY RFP-COT 06-50
Opening Date -- 09/29/06 RFP TABULATION Pg 1 of 2
Date Prepared -- 11/7/06 FOOD SERVICES

FIRM NAME:

CHECK #
CHECK AMT

PROPOSAL:   PROVIDE FIVE YEAR REQUIREMENTS OF FOOD SERVICE FOR THE CITY OF TROY COMMUNITY
CENTER AND SANCTUARY LAKE GOLF COURSE WITH AN OPTION TO RENEW FOR FIVE(5) ADDITIONAL
YEARS

PROPOSAL: A BOTH LOCATIONS
Percentage of Gross Receipts Blank
Guaranteed Minimum per Year Blank

Community Center Office $ $ $
Community Center Storage $ $ $

ALTERNATE - PROPOSAL A:
Alternate suggested return schedule 
for both locations: Y or N Yes - Listed in RFP

$20,000 Guaranteed Minimum
Plus $5,000 in rent for both &
Storage space Plus 5% of all
revenue in excess of $500,000

     Attach Plan Marked Alt A

PROPOSAL: B
B1:  Community Center

Percentage of Gross Receipts Blank
Guaranteed Minimum per Year Blank

Community Center Office $
Community Center Storage $

ALTERNATE - PROPOSAL B1: Community Center
Alternate suggested return schedule 
for both locations: Y or N Blank

     Attach Plan Marked Blank

B2:  Sanctuary Lake Golf Course
Percentage of Gross Receipts Blank
Guaranteed Minimum per Year Blank

ALTERNATE - PROPOSAL B2: Sanctuary Lake Golf Course
Alternate suggested return schedule 
for both locations: Y or N Blank

     Attach Plan Marked Blank

INSURANCE:   Can Meet XX
      Cannot Meet

INSURANCE VERIFICATION:    Y or N Yes

PAYMENT SCHEDULE: Y or N Yes - Attached to RFP
marked "Payment Schedule"

SITE REVIEW:    Reviewed the Sites XX
         Did not Review Sites

Emerald Food Services
LLC

314059004
$5,000.00



CITY OF TROY RFP-COT 06-50
Opening Date -- 09/29/06 RFP TABULATION Pg 2 of 2
Date Prepared -- 11/7/06 FOOD SERVICES

FIRM NAME:

TERMS: Blank

WARRANTY: Blank

EXCEPTIONS: See Attachment marked "Vendor
Exceptions/Unique Benefits"

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Y or N Yes

BOLDFACE TYPE DENOTES SOLE BIDDER

ATTEST:
Jeanetta D. Simmons
John Hug Jeanette Bennett
Linda Bockstanz Purchasing Director

G:RFP-COT 06-50 Food Service

Emerald Food Services



campbellld
Text Box
F-05







 
 
 
 
November 3, 2006 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Announcement of Public Hearing – Rezoning Request (File Number Z 720) – East side 

of Rochester Road, between Shallowdale Drive and Bradley Avenue, Section 14 – R-1C 
to R-1T 

 
 
Background: 
 
• A public hearing is scheduled for the November 27, 2006 City Council meeting. 

 
• The Planning Commission held a public hearing on this item on October 10, 2006, and 

recommended approval of the rezoning request.   
 
• The applicant proposes to rezone the 3.71-acre parcel which fronts on Rochester Road from 

R-1C One Family Residential to R-1T One Family Attached Zoning District. 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
• There are no financial considerations associated with this item. 
 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
• City Council has the authority to approve the rezoning request. 
 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
• The Future Land Use Plan classifies the parcel as Medium Density Residential.  Medium 

Density Residential correlates with the R-1T One Family Attached Residential zoning district in 
the Future Land Use Plan.  The parcel has been classified as Medium Density Residential 
since 1999. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
G-01a



• The application complies with the Location Standards for the R-1T District (Article 12.40.01). 
 
• The item is consistent with City Council Goal II (Retain and attract investment while 

encouraging redevelopment) and Goal VI (Protect life and property). 
 
 
Options: 
 
• City Council may approve or deny the rezoning request.  
 
• City Management and the Planning Commission recommend approval of the rezoning request. 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps 
2. Statement of Necessity, submitted by applicant. 
3. Letter in opposition of rezoning. 
 
 

Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 

G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-720 Rochester Road Cluster Homes Sec 14\Announce CC Public Hearing 11 13 06.doc 
 
 
 



R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R D
E

Q
U

IN
D

R
E

LONG LAKE
JO

H
N

 R

SOUTH BLVD

WATTLES

SQUARE LAKE

BIG BEAVER
I75

I75

STEPH
EN

SO
N

C
O

O
LID

G
E

C
R

O
O

K
S

M
A

IN

MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

A
D

A
M

S



CITY OF TROY

PR
E

P
AR

E
D

 B
Y 

C
IT

Y
 O

F 
TR

O
Y

 P
LA

N
N

IN
G

 D
EP

T.

SUBJECT PARCEL



THURBER

BRADLEY

ECKFORD

W
IL

LO
W

 C
R

E
E

K

C
LA

R
K

E

HAROLD

MAYO

SHADOW

SHALLOWDALE

R
E

ILLY

P
O

E

R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

REZONING REQUEST
PROPOSED ROCHESTER RD. CLUSTER HOMES
FROM R-1C TO R-1T
EAST SIDE OF ROCHESTER RD, BTWN SHALLOWDALE & BRADLEY
SEC. 14 (Z-720)

SUBJECT PARCEL

³0 200100
Feet



THURBER

BRADLEY

ECKFORD

W
IL

LO
W

 C
R

E
E

K

C
LA

R
K

E

HAROLD

MAYO

SHADOW

SHALLOWDALE

R
E

ILLY

P
O

E

R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

(C-F)

(R-1C)

(E-P)
(R-1T)

(O-1)

(M-1)

REZONING REQUEST
PROPOSED ROCHESTER RD. CLUSTER HOMES
FROM R-1C TO R-1T
EAST SIDE OF ROCHESTER RD, BTWN SHALLOWDALE & BRADLEY
SEC. 14 (Z-720)

SUBJECT PARCEL

³0 200100
Feet









BROWNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY MINUTES FINAL  JULY 18, 2006 
 

 
The meeting was called to order at 3:03 p.m. at Troy City Hall, Conference Room C 
by Bruce Wilberding.   
 
Members Present:  Al Aceves 

Victor Lenivov (arrived @ 3:38 p.m.) 
Bruce Wilberding (Chairman) 
Robert Swartz 
Katherine Lee 
Art Cotsonika 
Lon Ullmann 

 
Members Absent: None 
  
Also Present:   Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 

   Lori Bluhm, City Attorney 
Mark Miller, Planning Director 
James Nash, Finance Director 
Patti Holland, Real Estate and Development Secretary 

 
 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Resolution # BRA 06-04 
Moved by:  Swartz 
Seconded by:  Lee 
 
Resolved, that the BRA approve the minutes of the April 18, 2006 meeting. 
 
Yeas:   All (6) 
Absent:  Lenivov 
 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
A. Revolving Loan Fund 
 
Members and staff discussed the Revolving Loan Fund (RLF) memo of April 11, 
2006 by Lori Bluhm.  Members will review the suggestions within the memo and reply 
to Ms. Bluhm with their views by the end of August.  Ms. Bluhm will draft a policy, 
which will be reviewed at a Brownfield meeting scheduled for September 19, 2006.   
 
 
B. Masco 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01a



Bruce Wilberding updated the Authority that Masco will be meeting with the DEQ and 
will then meet with the Authority (possibly at the October meeting) to discuss a loan 
and to amend their Brownfield Plan.   
 
 
C. Brownfield Legislation Changes 

 
Mr. Aceves asked about changes to the Brownfield legislation.  Ms. Bluhm will 
provide members legislation changes at the next meeting. 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
A.   Secretary/Treasurer Appointment 
 
Brian Murphy recommended Mark Miller, Planning Director as the new 
Secretary/Treasurer since Doug Smith has left the City. 
 
Resolution # BRA 06-05 
Moved by: Lenivov 
Seconded by:  Cotsonika 
 
Resolved, that Mark Miller is appointed the Secretary/Treasurer for the Brownfield 
Redevelopment Authority. 
 
Yeas:  All (7) 
Absent: None 
 
 
B. September Meeting 
 
A meeting has been scheduled for September 19, 2006 to review the proposed 
Revolving Loan Fund policy. 
 
Resolution #BRA 06-06 
Moved by:  Wilberding 
Seconded by:  Lenivov 
 
Resolved, that the Brownfield Redevelopment Authority will meet on September 19, 
2006 at 3:00 p.m. in Conference Room C. 
 
Yeas:  All (7) 
Absent: None 
 
 
 
 
EXCUSE ABSENT MEMBERS 
 



All members were present 
 
  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
None 
 
 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 4:13 p.m. 
 
The next meeting scheduled is September 19, 2006. 
 
 
 
Bruce Wilberding, Chairman 
 
 
Mark Miller, Secretary/Treasurer 
 
BRA Minutes  
07/18/06 



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – FINAL MINUTES   August 23, 2006  
 
 

 1

A meeting of the Troy Youth Council (TYC)  was held on August 23, 2006 at 7:00 PM at the 
Troy Community Center, 3179 Livernois.  Katie Thoenes and Nicole Vitale called the 
meeting to order at 7:02 p.m. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Alexandra (Sasha) Bozimowski  

Andrew Corey 
Maxine D’Amico  
Ales Gabriel 
Jessica Kraft (Co-chair) 
Kristin Randall (Secretary) 
Neil Shaw 
Nicole Vitale (Co-chair) 
Karen Wullaert , Late  

MEMBERS ABSENT: Rishi Joshi, Joseph Niemiec, Anupama Prasad 
Katie Thoenes (late)    

VISITORS: Sandy Macknis, Troy Daze Committee 
STAFF PRESENT:  Scott Mercer, Recreation Supervisor 
                              
1. Roll Call 
 
2. Approval of Minutes 

 Resolution # TY-2006-08-10 
  Moved by   Vitale 
  Seconded by  Bozimowski 

   
  RESOLVED, That the minutes of May 24 26, 2006 be approved. 

  Yes:  All – 9 
            No:       None  
  Absent:  4  - Joshi, Prasad, Niemiec, Thoenes 
 
3.   Welcome New Council Member: Alex Gabriel was welcomed to the Youth Council. 
 
4. Attendance Report:  

Attendance record sheet was distributed with meeting dates for 2006 – 07 
Youth Council year.  Attendance records were cleared to begin new year.   

 
5. Futures Process: 

 No update at this time.  Final report has not been completed. 
  
6. Troy Daze Festival: 

-Sandy Macknis asked to Youth Council to volunteer at the headquarters 
booth to help distribute t-shirts, oversee volunteers and fill in where needed.  
Macknis distributed available times for sign up.  Macknis stated that all 
volunteers were required to pay the $7 entry fee in order to volunteer.   
-Discussion on how to stay current with Troy Daze information.  Mercer will 
bring a sign up sheet with Troy Daze meeting dates in September so Youth 
Council representatives can attend Troy Daze meetings throughout the year.    
–Corey to join Officer Kaptur Friday evening to experience problem areas.  

campbellld
Text Box
J-01b



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – FINAL MINUTES   August 23, 2006  
 
 

 2

 
7.  Motion to Excuse Absent Members Who Have Provid ed Advance Notification  
  Resolution # TY-2006-08-11 

  Moved by  Kraft 
  Seconded by  Randall 

  
 RESOLVED that Anupama Prasad, Katie Thoenes (late) are excused. 

  Yes:  11 
            No:       0  
  Absent:  3 – Joshi, Niemiec, Prasad  
 
8.  Youth Council Comments –  

-None. 
 
9. Public Comments  –  

-None. 
 
10. Public Comments - None 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:26 P.M.   
 
_______________________________________ 
Nicole Vitale, Co-chair 
 
_______________________________________ 
Scott Mercer, Recreation Supervisor 

 
Reminder Next Meeting: October 25 at 7:00 P.M. @ Troy Community Center 



TROY DAZE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES FINAL        SEPT. 6, 2006 

 1

A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
A regular meeting of the Troy Daze Advisory Committee was held Tuesday, 
September 6, 2006 at the Troy Community Center. Meeting was called to order 
at 8:40 pm. 

 
 
B. ROLL CALL 
 

Cele Dilley Cheryl Whitton  
Bob Berk Marilyn Musick 
Kessie Kaltsounis Bill Hall 
Mike Gonda Bob Preston 
 
Kasey Wang Tim McAvoy 
Tom Kaszubski Tom Duszynski 
Jeff Winiarski. Padma Kuppa 
Doris Schuchter Poncho Massaini 
Karen Hattan Allison Miller 
Jeff Super Phil Musick 
 
City Staff: 
Gerry Scherlinck. Bob Kowalski 
Cindy Stewart Jeff Biegler 
Bob Matlick Gary Mayer 
 

Resolution #TD-2006-09-100 
Motion to excuse absent member Jeff Stewart by Kessie Kaltsounis, seconded 
by Bill Hall. 
 
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
C. No additions to agenda. 
 
D. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Resolution #TD-2006-09-101 
Moved by Bill Hall 
Seconded by Bob Preston                           
to approve the August 22, 2006 minutes   
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01c



TROY DAZE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES FINAL        SEPT. 6, 2006 

 2

RESOLVED that the minutes of the August 22, 2006 Advisory Committee 
Meeting are approved. 
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
E. TREASURER’S REPORT  
 

No report from city  
Deposited  $39,540.00 with City 
                    10,500.00 with Foundation 
                   $50,040.00 
 

Resolution #TD-2006-09-102 
Motion by Marilyn Musick, seconded by Bill Hall that the Treasurer’s Report of 
September 6, 2006 is approved. 
 
RESOLVED that the Treasurer’s Report of September 6, 2006 is approved. 
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
 
F. NEW BUSINESS 
 

MFEA Convention Attendees – no members confirmed. 
 

G. OLD BUSINESS 
 

Last minute details – mums and hay delivered Thursday.   
 
Police message - Don’t give the Explorers a hard time.  Have a good festival.   
 
New citizen swearing in reception – tent adjacent to entrance tent. 
 
Gerry Scherlinck:  If there are any problems, please call police or police bus, 
don’t try to handle any police situation.  They are a cell phone call or walkie talkie 
call away. 
 
Thursday meeting with the Committee, Arnolds and Police at 10 am after special 
needs children event gets underway. 
 
Need board volunteers to walk the midway all during the festival hours.  Add 
eyes and ears for the police. 
 
Corporate reception – 5 pm Friday in festival trailer before opening ceremony. 
 



TROY DAZE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES FINAL        SEPT. 6, 2006 

 3

All tents will be set up by Tuesday, September 12. 
 

Capt. Gary Mayer – a consistent theme is communication!  Meeting every 
morning with the committee and police.  Keep the lines of communication open. 
 
Additional parking stickers are for sale $7.00. 
 

 
MOTION TO ADJOURN 
Resolution #TD-2006-09-103 
Moved by Bill Hall 
Seconded by Bob Preston 

 
RESOLVED that the Troy Daze Advisory Committee Meeting be adjourned at 
8:55 p.m. 

 
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED    

  
 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Cele Dilley, Chairperson 

 
 
 
 

_____________________________ 
Cindy Stewart, Recording Secretary 

 
 
 
 
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                     SEPTEMBER 19, 2006 

The Chairman, Michael Hutson, called the meeting of the Board of Zoning Appeals to 
order at 7:30 P.M., on Tuesday, September 19, 2006 in Council Chambers of the Troy 
City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:    Kenneth Courtney 
   Christopher Fejes 
   Marcia Gies 
   Michael Hutson 
   Matthew Kovacs 
   Mark Maxwell 
   Wayne Wright 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mitchell Grusnick, Residential Plan Analyst 
   Christopher Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
   Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF AUGUST 15, 2006 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of August 15, 2006 as written. 
 
Yeas:  5 – Courtney, Gies, Hutson, Kovacs, Maxwell 
Abstain: 2 – Fejes, Wright 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINTUES OF AUGUST 15, 2006 AS WRITTEN CARRIED 

ITEM #2 - VARIANCE REQUEST.  SAIF JAMEEL, 3031 CROOKS ROAD, for relief of 
the Ordinance to construct a new commercial building with a drive up window accessory 
to a restaurant use proposed in the building.  Section 23.25.01 of the Troy Zoning 
Ordinance requires a site that is at least one acre in size in order to have a drive-up 
window facility in the H-S (Highway Service) Zoning District.  This site is made up of two 
separate parcels that total only .53 acres in size. 
 
Mr. Grusnick explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to 
construct a new commercial building.  A majority of this property is located within the H-
S (Highway Service) Zoning District.  The plans submitted indicate that the development 
will include a drive up window accessory to a restaurant use proposed in the building.  
Section 23.25.01 of the Troy Zoning Ordinance requires a site that is at least one acre 
in size in order to have a drive-up window facility in the H-S (Highway Service) Zoning 
District.  This site is made up of two separate parcels that total only .53 acres in size.  
The Board denied a similar request in April of 2006.  This request is different in that the 
current plan eliminates the connecting drive with the property to the north. 
 
This item last appeared before this Board at the meeting of August 15, 2006 and was 
postponed to allow the petitioner the opportunity to be present. 

 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-01d



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                     SEPTEMBER 19, 2006 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Hutson stated that a letter was received by the Building Department asking that this 
item be withdrawn. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 

MOVED, to accept the withdrawal request of Saief Jameel, 3031 Crooks Road, for relief 
of the Ordinance to construct a new commercial building with a drive up window 
accessory to a restaurant use proposed in the building.  Section 23.25.01 of the Troy 
Zoning Ordinance requires a site that is at least one acre in size in order to have a 
drive-up window facility in the H-S (Highway Service) Zoning District.  This site is made 
up of two separate parcels that total only .53 acres in size. 

• At the request of the petitioner. 
 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO ACCEPT WITHDRAWAL CARRIED 
 
ITEM #3 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  MARSHA BUTKOVICK OF JEFFREY A. SCOTT 
ARCHITECTS, P.C., 3339 ROCHESTER, (proposed address), for relief of the 
Ordinance to construct a new Dunkin Doughnuts restaurant with a drive-up facility at the 
southwest corner of Rochester Road and Vanderpool, on a parcel of land that is only 
.96 acres in size where Section 21.30.02 requires at least one acre; and is also 
proposing that this proposed building result in a 43’ front setback to the east property 
line where Section 30.20.05 requires a 75’ front yard setback. 
 
Mr. Grusnick explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to 
construct a new Dunkin Doughnuts restaurant with a drive-up facility at the southwest 
corner of Rochester and Vanderpool.  This property is in the B-2 (Community Business) 
Zoning Classification.  Section 21.30.02 requires sites for restaurants with drive-up 
facilities in B-2 Districts to be at least once acre in size.  The site plan submitted 
indicates that the site is only .96 acres. 
 
In addition, Section 30.20.05 requires a 75’ front yard setback in B-2 Districts.  The site 
plans indicate a front setback of only 43’ to the east property line. 
 
Burt Kassab was present and stated that they have been working on this project for 
quite some time and originally proposed this restaurant with a driveway approach on 
Vanderpool.  The petitioner found that there was a school bus stop on Vanderpool and 
the neighbors were very upset about the possibility of increased traffic on their street.  
The petitioner removed the Vanderpool driveway approach leaving the Rochester Road 
driveway approach.  They have also moved the driveway further from the corner of 
Rochester and Vanderpool and both the entrance and exit are one-way drives.  Mr.  
 

 2



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                     SEPTEMBER 19, 2006 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Kassab also stated that they have a legally binding deed restriction that will prohibit a 
driveway onto Vanderpool.   The west side 30’ of the property has been dedicated to E-
P (Environmental Protection) Zoning and they are trying to move the building as far east 
as possible so that it will have a minimal impact on the neighbors.  The property on the 
north side of Vanderpool is zoned B-3, which has a 40’ front setback, and this proposed 
building will have a 43’ front setback.  The lot itself has a lot of awkward corners and is 
irregular in shape.  Mr. Kassab indicated that they have had a number of neighbor 
meetings and feel that they have reached a workable solution both for themselves and 
the neighbors.  They have moved the speaker box to the south side of the building, 
which is next to a shopping center and therefore would have little impact on the 
neighbors.  The maximum seating in the restaurant will be twenty.  Required parking is 
nineteen spaces, and they will provide thirty-one spaces.   
 
Mr. Maxwell asked if they knew how many cars would be going through this drive-thru 
during peak hours.  Mr. Steve Collins, a representative of Dunkin Donuts said that it 
would depend on the traffic in the area and would be very difficult to give a number at 
this time although it could be between 100 and 120 cars during the peak morning hours. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if a variance would be required if the building were moved back.  
Mr. Kassab said that they could move the building farther back on the property and 
would not require a variance, but they were trying to work with the neighbors and this is 
the reason they moved the building as far east as they could.  They have spent a lot of 
time studying traffic flow and believe this is the best solution. 
 
Mr. Courtney stated that in the past Dunkin Donuts was always a place that people 
parked their cars and went in and either ordered take out or sat down and ate, and 
wondered how important this drive-thru window would be.  Mr. Collins said that it will 
depend on the site and it is difficult to say how much traffic will be using the drive-thru. 
Typically 60% to 80% of business is done through the drive-thru. 
 
Mr. Fejes said that a variance goes with the land, and wondered if a McDonald’s would 
be able to go into this location.  Mr. Forsyth stated that a variance runs with the land so 
that if a McDonald’s came in they would be entitled to that variance. 
 
Mr. Fejes said that he was unfamiliar with the menu of a Dunkin Donuts and asked what 
type of food was offered.  Mr. Kassab stated that the menu consists of bagels, muffins, 
donuts, breakfast sandwiches and coffee.  The menu is very limited.  Mr. Fejes then 
asked if lunch was offered.  Mr. Kassab stated that they do not have a very large 
sandwich menu.  Mr. Collins confirmed that the menu is primarily a breakfast menu. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if the drive-thru would be shared since this a dual operation, which 
includes Baskin & Robbins.  Mr. Kassab said that was correct and said that plenty of 
parking would be available for people that wish to come into the restaurant. 
 

 3



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                     SEPTEMBER 19, 2006 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Laura Balyeat, 965 Vanderpool, was present and stated that she lives almost directly 
across from the house that is to be demolished.  Ms. Balyeat stated that she has been 
to a number of meetings over the last eighteen months and the neighbors have lost the 
fight to have this property re-zoned.  Ms. Balyeat stated that she is very concerned over 
the safety of the children in the area and does not want the noise or extra traffic that this 
business will generate.  No one has informed the neighbors what the hours of operation 
will be.  Ms. Balyeat stated that she does understand that seventeen (17) of her 
neighbors did approve of this request.  Ms. Balyeat said that she wants the setback to 
be at whatever will be the safest for the children in the area.   
 
Ms. Balyeat also stated that the Ordinance indicates that a drive-thru requires at least 
one-acre and since this site does not meet that requirement a variance should not be 
granted. 
 
Mr. Fejes asked Ms. Balyeat to explain her concerns for the safety of the children.  Ms. 
Balyeat said that she felt it would be up to the Board to determine what the safest 
solution would be for the children in the area.  She is concerned about the increase in 
traffic on the street, cars lined up on Rochester Road, and believes that people trying to 
turn into the location will create a traffic hazard. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked what the difference would be between Dunkin Donuts and Dunkin 
Donuts with a drive-thru.  Ms. Balyeat said that she believes there will be an increase in 
traffic and wants the Board to determine what the safest location would be for this 
restaurant.  Mr. Courtney said that he does not believe the setback will influence safety 
in any way.    
 
John Billinger, 943 Vanderpool was present and stated that since this project has 
started he has tried to suggest alternatives to prevent encroachment into residential 
areas.  Mr. Billinger is concerned about the impact of noise and negative effect on the 
value of residential property.  Mr. Billinger said that he had asked the developer if they 
could build the restaurant without a drive thru or build it in a strip mall.  He was told that 
Dunkin Donuts Corporate Office would not allow a structure to be built without a drive-
thru or in a strip mall.  After looking at the new plan with the 30’ of E-P Zoning, the City 
Council members were impressed with the plan and approved the re-zoning application.  
The building still comes too far into the subdivision and the neighbors will see nothing 
but a wall.  He does not believe that the developer worked with the residents and never 
really considered changing their original plan. 
 
Richard Wiles, 975 Vanderpool was present and lives directly across the street from this 
project and does not understand why the neighbors object to this drive-thru.  Rochester 
Road will be widened in the future and a median will be put in.  Baker School busses 
children in and out so you do not see children hanging out at the different sites.   

 4



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                     SEPTEMBER 19, 2006 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Wiles has lived next to a wall for thirty years and likes it as it gives him privacy.  The 
big issue was the entrance on Vanderpool, but as soon as the petitioner removed this 
driveway, Mr. Wiles did not feel that there was a problem with this restaurant going in 
this location. 
 
Kim Antoine, 968 Vanderpool was present and stated that he lives directly adjacent to 
this location.  In the near future they are going to put a median on Rochester Road that 
will run past Long Lake Road and he does not believe there will be a hazard for children 
crossing the street.  Elementary school children go west into the subdivision and are not 
anywhere near Rochester Road.  Mr. Antoine said that he expects some noise, 
although the developer will be adding buffers.  Mr. Antoine is in favor of this request. 
 
No one else wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
There are four (4) written objections on file.  There is one (1) written approval on file. 
 
Mr. Fejes said that because the variance goes with the land, he is concerned that 
someone other than Dunkin Donuts will come in and also be entitled to this variance. 
 
Mr. Hutson said this matter has been discussed regarding other locations and 
compared to other sites; this is a very small variance request. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked how far they would be allowed to go back.  Mr. Grusnick said that the 
current required building envelope is 75’ from the rear property line and includes the 30’ 
E-P Zoning.  They cannot put any parking in the 30’ that is in the E-P Zoning. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if they would meet the setback requirement without a drive-thru.  
Mr. Grusnick said that they would in fact meet the Ordinance requirements. 
 
Mr. Hutson said that he is impressed that they have moved the entrance from 
Vanderpool to Rochester Road in an attempt to buffer any noise or disturbance to the 
neighbors. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Wright 
 
MOVED, to grant Marsha Butkovick of Jeffrey A. Scott Architects, P.C., 3339 
Rochester, (proposed address), relief of the Ordinance to construct a restaurant with a 
drive-up facility on a parcel of land that is only .96 acres in size where Section 21.30.02 
requires at least one acre; and also to have a 43’ front setback to the east property line 
where Section 30.20.05 requires a 75’ front yard setback.  
 

• Setback is being done for the convenience of the surrounding neighbors. 
• Variance request of .04 acres is minimal. 

 5



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                     SEPTEMBER 19, 2006 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 

• Building to be constructed as shown in the plan presented to the Board. 
 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #4 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  JAE DUK CHO, OF ADA ARCHITECTS, 1304 E. 
MAPLE, for relief of the Ordinance to alter an existing industrial building, that will result 
with a parking lot on the north side of the building to within 10’ of the north property line 
and 21’-8” to the east property line.  Section 30.20.09 requires a 50’ front setback and 
Paragraph L of Section 31.30.00 requires that front yard remain free of parking and 
maneuvering lanes. 
 
Mr. Grusnick explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to alter 
an existing industrial building. The site plan submitted indicates the expansion of the 
parking lot on the north side of the building to within 10’ of the north property line along 
Maple Road and within 21’-8” of the east property line along Allen Drive.  Section 
30.20.09 of the Zoning Ordinance requires a 50’ front setback in the M-1 (Light 
Industrial) Zoning District and Paragraph L of Section 31.30.00 requires that this front 
yard remain free of parking or maneuvering lanes. 
 
The parking lot along the east property line farther south on the lot is currently located 
21’-8” from the front property line along Allen Drive based upon a variance granted in 
1992. 
 
Dan Saleet, Partner and Architect of ADA Architects, and Jae Duk Cho, Project 
Manager for ADA Architects were present.  Mr. Saleet explained that Restaurant Depot 
is a wholesale distributor for restaurant operators and they currently have a location in 
Dearborn.  They sell food and restaurant equipment in bulk.  They are approximately 50 
franchise locations around the country.  This is a 52,000 square foot building and they 
plan to eliminate the front building along Maple.  Right now they have about 115 parking 
spaces, 97 of which are in the rear, but there is a four-bay truck dock back there that 
requires a lot of turning and stacking.  They plan to leave some of these spaces that will 
be utilized mainly for employee parking. 
 
Mr. Jae Cho stated that they plan to demolish the existing one-story building that is 
primarily office space and the connecting vestibule.  They want to put in a new parking 
lot for their customers and front parking is essential for convenience.  The parking at the 
rear of the building would be primarily for employees.  Restaurant Depot provides 
everything that a restaurant would need and is not open to the public.  A Tax I.D. is 
required for customers to purchase products from this store. 
 
 
 

 6



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                     SEPTEMBER 19, 2006 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Hutson asked how many parking spaces are required for a site this size.  Mr. 
Grusnick stated in M-1 Zoning, calculations for this space indicate that the parking 
requirement is for 115 spaces.  Mr. Hutson asked how many parking spaces are  
presently on this site.  Mr. Grusnick stated that presently there are 116 parking spaces 
available.  This count of parking spaces does not include the expansion at the front of 
the building. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked how many spaces are proposed on this plan.  Mr. Cho stated that 
there are 165 parking spaces shown.  Mr. Courtney said that 115 are required, 116 are 
present and they are proposing 165 spaces.  Mr. Courtney asked why they need this 
many spaces.  Mr. Saleet said that they want a separation of drive, pedestrian access 
and employee parking and this is one of the reasons they want to put in this parking 
area.  Mr. Courtney asked why they need an additional 50 parking spaces.  Mr. Saleet 
said that it is for the convenience of the customer and to create a pleasant shopping 
experience.  They want to make it expedient for the customers to get in the store, shop 
and leave and want the parking as close to the entrance as possible. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked how many employees are at this location and Mr. Cho said that 
there are between 40 and 50 employees.  Mr. Courtney asked how many parking 
spaces would be along Allen.  Mr. Saleet said that there are approximately 51 parking 
spaces and Mr. Courtney asked how large the customer base was.  Mr. Cho said that 
they do a large volume of business and currently they are targeting parking at 150 
spaces.  They would like between 90 and 100 spaces for customers and 40 to 50 
spaces for employees. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that he was having a hard time understanding why this much parking 
would be required.  The business is not open to the public and he cannot believe that 
they would require that many parking spaces for customers.  Mr. Saleet said that he 
thought there would be customers coming to this store within a 50-mile radius.  The 
Dearborn store is the first in Michigan and this will be the second location. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that the entrance and exit are to the front of the building and suggested 
that they change the orientation of the entrance to the building to be along Allen.  This 
variance would be granted for the parking up front, and the side parking would go to 
waste because they are so far away.  Mr. Kovacs also said that he felt that changes 
could be made and if necessary the petitioner could come to the Board at a later date, 
once it has been established that extra parking would be required. 
 
Mr. Saleet said that there is a 5’ sidewalk to the east side of the property and they are 
planning to add a 10’ sidewalk.  Part of the parking spots would be lost right in the 
middle of the east side and inside there are coolers and freezers that have a connection 
with the truck docks and they need to be oriented to the southwest corner of the 
building.  If this entrance is changed it would result in a very poor layout for the interior 
of the store.  There is not as much wasted space with this configuration. 

 7



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                     SEPTEMBER 19, 2006 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Fejes asked why this site was chosen as the petitioner is asking for a large 
variance.  Mr. Saleet said that they were not in on the actual choice of the site.  Jeff 
Cavazos was present and helped Restaurant Depot in the selection of this site.  They 
had looked at two other sites south of fourteen mile and felt that they were too close to 
the Dearborn Store.  This site is the right size and configuration.  They need the extra 
parking as they try to separate the customers from the truck parking to increase safety 
for the customers.  They put up a canopy area for loading and unloading and if they had 
to put it on the east side of the building they would lose a number of parking spaces. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked where the other stores were located.  Mr. Cavazos said that other 
than the Dearborn store, there are no other stores in Michigan.  They are in other 
locations such as Los Angeles, San Francisco, and Cleveland and in other parts of the 
country.  Mr. Courtney said that in his opinion this proposal sounds like a Sams Club or 
Costco.  Mr. Cavazos said that the general public cannot join this corporation.  You 
have to have a Tax I.D. stating that you are a restaurant business or a non-profit 
organization.  This is strictly a cash and carry business.  Mr. Cavazos said that they 
have pre-determined how many members they will have and although he cannot say for 
sure, he believes this location would have approximately 2,000 members to start with. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written approvals or objections on file. 
 
Mr. Hutson stated that in his opinion this site will be overbuilt and parking will intrude 
into the setback and he would like to keep space and greenery between the road and 
the building.  He does not believe there is a hardship that runs with the land and the site 
already provides a significant amount of parking. 
 
Mr. Maxwell stated that he also believes this variance request is quite large and does 
believe there are other alternatives available to the petitioner.  A very large variance 
was given to the Allen Road side of this property many years ago.  A 10’ setback along 
Maple is very small and there are no other buildings in this area with a 10’ setback for 
parking.  Mr. Maxwell said that he would like the petitioner to look at other options to 
determine if the variance request can be reduced. 
 
Mr. Hutson asked if the petitioner had any interest in going back and seeing if they 
could re-configure this site and then come back to the Board. 
 
Mr. Saleet said that they have thought about reducing the size of the variance but that 
would reduce the amount of parking and they really do need all of the parking they are 
requesting.  Mr. Saleet said that if they had thirty days they could look at everything that 
has been said to determine if they could make any other changes. 
 

 8



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                     SEPTEMBER 19, 2006 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that he has listened to everything that has been said and needs more 
hard facts to back up this variance request.  In his opinion, convenience is not a 
hardship that runs with the land.  Mr. Kovacs really wants to see a reduction in the 
amount of parking along Maple or he wants to know exactly what reasons would require 
this much parking, other than convenience for the customers. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that he would rather not see the parking there, but once a need is 
shown they could come back to the Board and show why they need this much parking. 
 
Motion by Fejes 
Supported by Maxwell 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of Jae Duk Cho, of ADA Architects, 1304 E. Maple, 
for relief of the Ordinance to alter an existing industrial building, that will result with a 
parking lot on the north side of the building to within 10’ of the north property line and 
21’-8” to the east property line until the meeting of October 17, 2006.  Section 30.20.09 
requires a 50’ front setback and Paragraph L of Section 31.30.00 requires that front 
yard remain free of parking and maneuvering lanes. 
 

• Variance request is very large. 
• Board would like to see alternative plans that would reduce the size of the 

variance request. 
• Board would like hard evidence that would support the need for the additional 

parking. 
 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE THIS REQUEST UNTIL THE MEETING OF OCTOBER 17, 
2006 CARRIED 
 
ITEM #5 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  TED WAHL, 1659 ROCHESTER ROAD, for relief 
of the Ordinance to alter an existing industrial building that will result in a 5’ wide 
landscaped open space with a 3’ to 6’ high screen wall between a new parking lot 
where Section 30.20.09 requires a 50’ front yard free of parking or maneuvering lanes; 
2125 square feet of countable landscape where 4,466 square feet is required by 
Section 39.70.04; and, the proposed driveway on the north side of the building to be 
only 22’-6” wide where Section 40.25.03 requires that a two-way driveway adjacent to 
parking be a minimum of 24’ in width. 
 
Mr. Grusnick explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to alter 
an existing industrial building.  The plans submitted indicate a 5’ wide landscaped open 
space with a 3’ to 6’ high screen wall between a new parking lot and the west property 
line along Enterprise Drive where Section 30.20.09 of the Zoning Ordinance requires a 
50’ front yard, free of parking or maneuvering lanes. 

 9



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                     SEPTEMBER 19, 2006 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
The plans further indicate only 2,125 square feet of countable landscape where Section 
39.70.04 requires 4,466 square feet of landscape for a site this size. 
 
In addition, plans show the width of the driveway on the north side of the building to be 
only 22’-6” wide where Section 40.25.03 requires that a two-way driveway adjacent to 
parking be a minimum of 24’ in width. 
 
John Vitale of Vitale Architects was present and stated that he was representing Ted 
Wahl.  Mr. Vitale said that they plan to renovate an existing building and have worked 
very hard with the City and tried to make this site work.  They have very tight restraints 
and they wish to put in a parking lot and allow access to this lot.  This would be an 
improvement to the property, which is presently a vacant lot.  Mr. Vitale said that they 
have tried to put in landscaping wherever they could and have attempted to preserve as 
many setbacks as they could and also have tried to soften the appearance of the wall. 
 
Mr. Hutson said that in his opinion this was a very difficult site. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no approvals or objections on file. 
 
Mr. Vitale stated that they have tried to be as sensitive as they could to develop 
landscaping around the entry way as it would be close to the Road.  The wall will not be 
on the property line so they could put vegetation in there to soften it.  At the request of 
the City, they have agreed to lower the wall and will add screening to it. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked if parking spaces had been added.  Mr. Vitale said that the north 
parcel of property is vacant and this is where they plan to put their parking, which will 
meet the parking requirement.   Mr. Maxwell asked if they were going to add parking 
closer to Enterprise Road and Mr. Vitale said they were not but were going to develop 
the parcel to the north. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if the parking requirements were going to be met with a multi tenant 
building and Mr. Vitale said that they would meet the requirements.  Mr. Courtney said 
that in his opinion this plan would be an improvement to what is there. 
 
Motion by Kovacs 
Supported by Wright 
 
 
 
 
 

 10



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                     SEPTEMBER 19, 2006 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
MOVED, to grant Ted Wahl, 1659 Rochester Road, for relief of the Ordinance to alter 
an existing industrial building that will result in a 5’ wide landscaped open space with a 
3’ to 6’ high screen wall between a new parking lot where Section 30.20.09 requires a 
50’ front yard free of parking or maneuvering lanes; 2125 square feet of countable 
landscape where 4,466 square feet is required by Section 39.70.04; and, the proposed 
driveway on the north side of the building to be only 22’-6” wide where Section 40.25.03 
requires that a two-way driveway adjacent to parking be a minimum of 24’ in width. 
 

• Proposal offered by the petitioner is the best possible solution for this area. 
• Literal enforcement of the Ordinance precludes full enjoyment of the permitted 

use of the property. 
• Lacking a variance conformance would be unnecessarily burdensome. 
•  A lesser variance would not give substantial relief as requested. 

 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #6 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  DANNA SIGNS, D.B.A. ISSI EAST COAST, 2155 
W. BIG BEAVER, for relief of the Ordinance to install a canopy structure over an 
automated teller machine resulting in a 17’ setback to the east property line, where 
Section 30.20.03 of the Zoning Ordinance requires a minimum 30’ side yard setback 
line. 
 
Mr. Grusnick explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to install 
a canopy structure over an automated teller machine (ATM) in the side yard of the 
existing Chase Bank.  Section 30.20.03 of the Zoning Ordinance requires a minimum 
30’ side yard setback.  The site plan submitted indicates a 17’ setback to the east 
property line. 
 
Dan Booth, was present representing Danna Signs and stated that Chase Bank has 
taken over Bank One.  The existing ATM machine has a built in canopy and a new ATM 
machine is going to be installed, which will stand-alone and has a canopy that will 
accompany it.  Lighting will be built into the canopy and will help to provide a safer 
environment for users of the machine.  This new equipment will also require protection 
from the weather.   
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written objections or approvals on file. 
 
Motion by Fejes 
Supported by Wright 

 11



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                     SEPTEMBER 19, 2006 

ITEM #6 – con’t. 
 
MOVED, to grant Danna Signs, D.B.A. ISSI East Coast, 2155 W. Big Beaver, relief of 
the Ordinance to install a canopy structure over an automated teller machine resulting in 
a 17’ setback to the east property line, where Section 30.20.03 of the Zoning Ordinance 
requires a minimum 30’ side yard setback line. 
  

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Variance applies only to the property described in this application. 
• Variance will not establish a prohibited use in a Zoning District. 

 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #7 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  JOE & MONICA GERHARDSTEIN, 2261 
KRISTIN, for relief of the Ordinance to construct an addition to their existing home that 
will result in a 41’ rear yard setback where Section 30.10.02 requires a 45’ minimum 
rear yard setback in the R-1B Zoning District. 
 
Mr. Grusnick explained that the petitioners are requesting relief of the Ordinance to 
construct an addition to their existing home.  The site plan submitted indicates a rear 
great room addition with a proposed 41’ rear yard setback.  Section 30.10.02 requires a 
45’ minimum rear yard setback in the R-1B Zoning District. 
 
Joe Gerhardstein was present and stated that his property backs up to an elementary 
school on the south side and there is a 6’ fence that separates his property from the 
school property.  The fence extends the entire length of the lot.  There are six large 
trees that separate his property from the neighbor’s property to the west.  They are 
trying to develop a large play area for their growing family and do not believe this 
addition will encroach on any of the surrounding property.  They have looked at other 
construction that would be available to them, but wished to keep their variance request 
at a minimum.   
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are three (3) written approvals on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
Motion by Maxwell 
Supported by Fejes 
 
 
 
 

 12



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                     SEPTEMBER 19, 2006 

ITEM #7 – con’t. 
 
MOVED, to grant Joe & Monica Gerhardstein, 2261 Kristin, relief of the Ordinance to 
construct an addition to their existing home that will result in a 41’ rear yard setback 
where Section 30.10.02 requires a 45’ minimum rear yard setback in the R-1B Zoning 
District. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an impact on any property in the vicinity. 
• The rear yard backs up to Schroeder School. 
• Variance request is very small. 

 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #8 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  YEN CHEN, 4679 JOHN R., for relief of the 
Ordinance to construct an addition at the rear of his home that would result in a 26’ rear 
yard setback, where Section 30.10.04 requires a 40’ minimum rear yard setback in the 
R-1C Zoning District. 
 
Mr. Grusnick explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to 
construct an addition at the rear of his existing home.  The site plan submitted indicates 
the proposed three-season enclosure will result in a 26’ rear yard setback.  Section 
30.10.04 requires a 40’ minimum rear yard setback in the R-1C Zoning District.  
 
Joe Foxa, owner of Creations and Restoration was present and stated that they have 
done a number of renovations on this home to help Mr. and Mrs. Chen’s handicapped 
daughter.  Their daughter cannot tolerate bug bites and they would like to put up a 
three-season sunroom, so that she can come out there and feel like she is outside while 
being protected from insects.  They felt that a permanent structure would be more 
appealing to the surrounding neighbors.  There is a large patio at the back of the house 
and the sunroom will be about the same size as this patio. 
 
Mr. Courtney stated that the hardship is not with this property.  Mr. Foxa said he is a 
little confused, but thought that the hardship is that they are short 14’.  Mr. Courtney 
explained what type of hardship is considered to be running with the land. 
 
Mr. Hutson gave examples such as a creek running through it, or an irregular shaped lot 
that would be considered a hardship. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if the child is in an insect free environment when they use the motor 
home.  Mr. Foxa said that she has to stay inside the motor home, but is used to facilitate 
them moving their child. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing. 

 13



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                     SEPTEMBER 19, 2006 

ITEM #8 – con’t. 
 
Ms. Chen was present and stated that her daughter cannot go outside because if she 
gets a bug bite the area swells up very large.  She likes to be out, but is prohibited from 
that because of her condition.  She has a special walker and this room would enable her 
to use it and feel like she was outside. 
 
Mr. Foxa said that they have made a number of alterations to the home to make it 
convenient for them to take care of their daughter.  Because of these alterations they 
would not like to sell the home and move to another location. 
 
No one else wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
There are three (3) written objections on file.  There are no written approvals on file. 
 
Mr. Maxwell stated that the Board is very sympathetic with the petitioner, but a variance 
runs with the property and will be there whether or not the petitioner lives there.  This 
sunroom would be extremely close to the property behind this home and the variance 
request itself is very large.  The neighbor behind would not want to look out and see this 
sunroom encroaching into their property. 
 
Mr. Foxa said that the driveway where the motor home is parked goes even further than 
the proposed sunroom.  Mr. Maxwell said that the motor home is not a permanent 
structure and could be moved.  This sunroom would be permanent and in his opinion 
would encroach on the property of the neighbor behind them. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if they had looked at any other possibilities on the property.  Mr. 
Foxa said that if this variance request was denied, he thought they could install a 
tongue and groove type deck, with a canvass awning and screens.  Mr. Courtney said 
that they could look at the other side of the garage.  Mr. Foxa said that they would have 
to move the motor home and Mr. Courtney said that they would have to make a choice. 
 
Mr. Hutson asked if the second structure Mr. Foxa described would require a variance 
and Mr. Grusnick said that it would. 
 
Mr. Hutson asked the petitioner if he would like some time to explore other possibilities 
and then come back to the Board.  Mr. Hutson said that he also feels this is a very large 
variance request and the petitioner may want to explore other possibilities.  Mr. Foxa 
said that if this is denied, the Board would probably be more inclined to deny a deck.  
Mr. Maxwell said that they are concerned about the size of the request. 
 
Mr. Foxa asked that this petition be postponed for thirty days. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that he thought they could look at other ideas and perhaps move the 
motor home. 
 

 14



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                     SEPTEMBER 19, 2006 

ITEM #8 – con’t. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of Yen Chen, 4679 John R.,  for relief of the 
Ordinance to construct an addition at the rear of his home that would result in a 26’ rear 
yard setback, where Section 30.10.04 requires a 40’ minimum rear yard setback in the 
R-1C Zoning District. 
 

• To give the petitioner the opportunity to explore other options. 
 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE THIS REQUEST UNTIL THE MEETING OF OCTOBER 17, 
2006 
 
The Board of Zoning Appeals meeting adjourned at 9:12 P.M. 
 
 
 
              
      Michael Hutson, Chairman 
 
 
 
              
      Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 15



1 

TROY HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION MINUTES – FINAL SEPTEMBER 19, 2006 
 
A regular meeting of the Troy Historic District Commission was held Tuesday, 
September 19, 2006 at City Hall.  Barbara Chambers called the meeting to order at  
7:31 P.M.   
 
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT Barbara Chambers 
   Muriel Rounds 
   Sabah Jihad 
   Paul Lin 
   Ann Partlan  
   Loraine Campbell, Museum Manager 
 
    ABSENT Robert Hudson 
   Marjorie Biglin 
 
    GUESTS Elizabeth Drouillard 
   David Drouillard 
 
 
Resolution #HDC-2006-09-001 
Moved by Partlan  
Seconded by Rounds 
 
RESOLVED, That the absences of Biglin and Hudson be excused. 
Yes: 5 Chambers, Rounds, Jihad, Lin, and Partlan  
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution #HDC-2006-09-002 
Moved by Rounds  
Seconded by Partlan 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of the August 15, 2006 meeting be approved. 
Yes: 5 Chambers, Rounds, Jihad, Lin, and Partlan 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
NEW BUSINESS 

A. Request by Elizabeth and David Drouillard 
Mr. and Mrs. Drouillard own the historic resource at 5871 Hilmore. They 
presented construction drawings and explained their plan to install four new 
basement windows and a walkout door to the basement of their home. All of 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01e



2 

these modifications will be made to previous additions to the original historic 
structure. In addition, the modifications provide safe egress from the lower level, 
which is being remodeled as a family room. The Drouillards have selected 
materials that enhance the style of the home. 

 
Resolution #HDC-2006-09-003 
Moved by Partlan  
Seconded by Lin 
 
RESOLVED, That the request by Elizabeth and David Drouillard to install a new 
basement windows and a walk out door to the lower level of the historic resource 
at 5871 Hilmore be approved.  
 
Yes: 5 Chambers, Rounds, Jihad, Lin, and Partlan 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

B. Request from G2 Consulting Group 
The Historic District Commission received a letter from G2 Consulting Group 
requesting information regarding the likelihood that the proposed construction of 
a T-Mobile monopole telecommunications tower at 1660 East Square Lake Road 
would adversely affect historic properties. The commission noted that there are 
no historic resources in the immediate area. 

 
Resolution #HDC-2006-09-004 
Moved by Rounds  
Seconded by Chambers 
 
RESOLVED, That a response be sent to G2 Consulting Group stating that the 
proposed telecommunications monopole at T-Mobile Site DE04321- Kensington 
Offices at 1600 East Square Lake Road will not adversely affect any historic 
properties. 
 
Yes: 5 Chambers, Rounds, Jihad, Lin, and Partlan 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
OLD BUSINESS 

A. Updates on 36551 Dequindre and 4820 Livernois 
Loraine reported that the Museum office has received calls from realtors who 
have listed these resources and want information regarding the process to       
de-list. Loraine referred then to Chapter 13 of the City Ordinance and the  
Historic District Study Committee. 
 



3 

B. Update CLG 
Recently the City of Birmingham was designated a Certified Local Government. 
The Commission was supplied copies of that city’s historic preservation 
ordinance for review. 
 

C. Update Home Plaques 
The committee will continue working with Whitehall Products to fabricate home 
plaques.  
 

The Troy Historic District Commission Meeting was adjourned at 8:48 PM. The next 
meeting will be held Tuesday, October 17, 2006 at 7:30 p.m. at City Hall in Conference 
Room C. 

 
 
 
 
Barbara Chambers 
Chairperson 

 
 

 
Loraine Campbell 
Recording Secretary 



 
TROY HISTORIC COMMSSION MINUTES—FINAL SEPTEMBER 26, 2006 
 

1 

The regular meeting of the Troy Historic Commission was held Tuesday, September 26, 
2006 at the Troy Museum & Historic Village. Rosemary Kornacki called the meeting to 
order at 7:32 P.M.  
 
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT:     Rosemary Kornacki 
   Roger Kaniarz 
   Kevin Lindsey 
   Vera Milz 
   Remedios Solarte 
   Terry Navratil  
   Brian Wattles 
   Janice Chen, Student Rep.  
 
   Loraine Campbell, Museum Manager 
   Brian Stoutenburg, Library Director 
 
The Commission welcomed Janice Chen, Student Representative from Troy High 
School.      
 
Resolution #HDC-2006-09-001 
Moved by Lindsey  
Seconded by Milz 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of June 28, 2006 be approved 
Yes: 7 Kornacki, Kaniarz, Lindsey, Milz, Solarte, Wattles and Navratil  
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
OLD BUSINESS 

A. Capital Projects 
Fencing 
American Fence and Supply installed new gates behind the General Store the 
week of July 3. On July 12, a weld on one of the 4ft. by 8 ft. gate panels failed 
when a Garden Club member opened it. The panel fell, crushing her big toe. The 
volunteer was transported to the hospital for treatment, incident reports were 
filed, and Steve Cooperrider, the Risk Management director photographed the 
gate and support posts. American Fence removed the broken gate that day, re-
engineered the hinge areas and reinstalled the gates a few weeks later. The 
volunteer has filed a personal injury suit against American Fence and Supply.  
 
Interior Painting 
Danmar Painting completed interior painting in Town Hall, the Print Shop and 
Poppleton School for $6,275.00.  
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01f



 
TROY HISTORIC COMMSSION MINUTES—FINAL SEPTEMBER 26, 2006 
 

2 

Exterior Painting 
We will monitor the Woodscapes and wood pickling on the north side of the store 
through the winter. The commission suggested we also consider old-fashioned 
whitewash as an alternative. Loraine will pursue this. 
 
Windows 
Turner Restorations completed repairs on the windows in the Print Shop, 
Poppleton School and the Log Cabin. We are waiting for delivery of the mutins 
for the cabin and window screens for the Print Shop. 
 
Roofs 
I am still waiting for roof specifications to be completed.  
 
Town Hall DUR Model 
The City has installed a duplex outlet to service the model DUR car. Volunteers 
Lynn McLean and Dale Schairer will install the motion detector and additional 
stops along the trolley route. Staff is working with the volunteers to develop 
interpretive signage. 
 
East Set Back Landscaping 
Sinacori Landscaping removed the hard pack in the setback area around and 
behind the church and parsonage, spread and graded in 4 inches of topsoil, and 
hydroseeded the area. Additionally, Parks and Recreation planted three 
Shadbush trees north of the parsonage. 
 
 

B. Programs 
See Attendance Reports 
 
Music in the Air 2006 
Total concert attendance was 893.  The concerts generated over $1,200 in net 
revenue for the Troy Heritage Campaign.  
 
Motoring Memories Car Show 
The first THS-museum car show was a solid success. 570 people attended the 
show, which generated over $3,800 for the Troy Heritage Campaign. Comments 
from the exhibitors, sponsors, city staff and the public were all positive. Staff has 
proposed eliminating Heritage Day next year (because of the conflict with Opa 
Fest) and offering the car show, which has a higher potential for drawing more 
people. The Commission suggested increasing the historic interpretive content of 
the car show so that it is more mission-focused, like Heritage Day. 
 
Winter Programs 
In response to patron suggestions, we will offer concerts in the church once each 
month from January through May. The Troy Historical Society will sponsor these. 
 



 
TROY HISTORIC COMMSSION MINUTES—FINAL SEPTEMBER 26, 2006 
 

3 

NEW BUSINESS 
A. Grants 

Our MAP surveyor is Dr. Chuck Watkins, professor of history and director of the 
Appalachian Cultural Center in Boone, North Carolina. We hope to schedule his 
visit in October and will schedule a meeting of the Historical Commission with 
him. 

 
B. Interns 

Stacey Miller completed the National Historic Place Application for the 1927 
Township Hall. Loraine is editing it and will present it to the commission later. 
 
Natalie Bojesen and Candice Belanger completed their research work on one-
room schools.  
 
There are no new interns scheduled this semester, but Bill Boardman has 
indicated he could use an intern or trained volunteer to scan old council and 
commission minutes. 

 
C. Village Landscaping 

Michele Dunham and a team of volunteers have planted gardens in from of Town 
Hall, the Church and the Pass-a-long Garden in front of the Parsonage. Michele 
is developing plans for the garden between Caswell and Poppleton School. 

 
D. New Acquisitions 

See attached reports. 
 

E. Eagle Scouts: 
Rashid Sidwah, a freshman at Troy High has completed his Eagle Scout project 
to build latticework enclosures around the five air conditioning condensers 
adjacent to the buildings.  
 
I have received four additional inquiries from Eagles Scout nominees who have 
asked for projects at the Museum. Two have been assigned projects. 
 
Josh Hepner will construct the wash yard behind the Caswell house. Rigel Ristau 
will construct benches for the story tree between Poppleton and Caswell. 

 
F. Troy Historical Society Liaison Report 

The Historical Society has mounted an ambitious membership drive to double 
their membership in their fortieth anniversary year. They have produced a new 
brochure and are developing outreach tools. 
 
The THS 40th anniversary party and the annual volunteer recognition picnic were 
celebrated jointly this year at a pig roast held at the museum. 146 people 
attended the event. Volunteers provided over 4000 hours of support to the 
museum this past year.  



 
TROY HISTORIC COMMSSION MINUTES—FINAL SEPTEMBER 26, 2006 
 

4 

 
The THC has contracted with Oakland Solutions to produce campaign materials 
and is moving ahead with the Tell Us Your Story Campaign to collect the 
histories of area businesses and corporations. 
 

G. Reports and Communications 
a. Annual Report 

The FY 2005/06 Annual Report was distributed by email and hard copy to 
the commission. 

 
b. Staff 

Michele Dunham submitted her resignation effective August 18, 2006. 
Michele will be working on personal projects that demand more time. 
However, she still wants to volunteer as the gardens coordinator and will 
work on a contract basis for the Historical Society to present public 
programs.  
 
Rather than post the position, I have increased Anne Nagrant’s hours to 
32-hours/ week until the end of the calendar year to see if this 
arrangement will increase continuity and stability in the staff. Brian and I 
will evaluate this arrangement in January. 
 
Loraine Campbell attended the American Association of Museums Secrets 
of Accreditation conference in Pittsburgh September 21-23. This seminar 
and the MAP experience indicate that we have significant work to do 
before considering making an application. Loraine would like to 
incorporate those steps into a five-year Strategic Plan.  

 
The Troy Historic Commission Meeting was adjourned at 9:00 p.m.  The next regular 
meeting will be held Tuesday, October 24, 2006 at the Troy Museum & Historic Village 
at 7:30 PM. 
 

 
 
                  
Rosemary Kornacki 
Chairperson 
 
 
 
Loraine Campbell 
Recording Secretary 



ELECTION COMMISSION MINUTES – Final October 2, 2006 
 
A meeting of the Troy Election Commission was held Monday, October 2, 2006, at City 
Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road. City Clerk Bartholomew called the Meeting to order at 
5:16 P.M. 

ROLL CALL:  
PRESENT:  David Anderson, City Clerk Tonni Bartholomew 
ABSENT:  Timothy Dewan 
ALSO PRESENT: Deputy City Clerk Barbara Holmes 

Minutes: Regular Meeting of July 7, 2006  
 
Resolution #EC-2006-10-10 
Motion by Anderson 
Seconded by Bartholomew 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of Friday, July 7, 2006, are APPROVED as submitted. 
 
Yes:  Anderson, Bartholomew 
No:  None 
Absent: Dewan 

Approval of Election Inspector Assignments for the November 7, 2006 General 
Election 
 
Resolution #EC-2006-10-11 
Motion by Anderson 
Seconded by Bartholomew 
 
RESOLVED, That Election Inspectors be appointed for the Tuesday, November 7, 2006 
Election, as presented by the City Clerk, is hereby APPROVED. 
 
Yes:  Anderson, Bartholomew 
No:  None 
Absent: Dewan 

Adjournment:  
 
The meeting was adjourned at 5:19 P.M. 
 
 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01g



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD DRAFT MINUTES OCTOBER 3, 2006  

TROY ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD 
TUESDAY,OCTOBER 3, 2006 

TROY CITY HALL - CONFERENCE ROOM C 
 
 
I. Call to Order 7:09 p.m. 
 
II. Roll Call: 
 

Present: 
Padma Kuppa Cindy Stewart, City Liaison 
Mayada Fakhouri Lulu Guo, Student Rep. 
Reuben Ellis Helen Yang, Student Rep. 
Michelle Haight Malini Sarma 
Gladson Remos Anju Brodbine  (7:18 pm) 
 
Absent: Guest:  Jeff Stewart 
Kelly Jones 
Tony Haddad 
 

III. Approval of Minutes September 5, 2006 
 

Motion by Gladson Remos, seconded by Michelle Haight, approved 
unanimously. 
 
 

IV. Old Business 
 

A. EthniCity-Troy Daze 
 

Michelle handed out recap of EthniCity.  If anyone else has comments, 
please send to Padma.  She has to complete a form for November Troy 
Daze meeting.  Gladson said booths should enhance harmony.  Did Falun 
Gong do this?  Padma will ask former EthniCity chairs their comments 
from past years, as well as comments from Chinese booth participants. 
 
Other comments:  China Association would like to have a member from 
their organization on the EIA Board. 
 
Poland would like us to get more ethnic groups to participate. 
 
A Latino woman wants more involvement from her ethnic group.  Reuben 
will pass along contact to Cindy.   
 
Future Contracts – State in the contracts that music/noise level should be 
at a low level so as not to disrupt the booths next door. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01h



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD DRAFT MINUTES OCTOBER 3, 2006  

 
Kids Activities – Not sure how well attended this table was. 
 
Why do the Philippines and Chinese groups come back year after year?  
Those groups are much more cohesive.  How can we convey this to other 
ethnic groups and get them to participate? 
 
Can we get people from each country to dress in costume and stand 
outside our tent to draw people inside? 
 
What about the foreign language classes (French and Spanish Clubs are 
strong at Troy High) to assist with booths in case countries do not have 
enough volunteers?  We would indicate on booth applications if you need 
student volunteer to let us know. 
 
Children’s Activities – Michele passed out idea for exploring world sounds, 
a table of musical instruments from around the world. 
 
Padma announced she would not be able to chair EthniCity for 2007.  The 
board should think about who will volunteer in this position. 
 
Jeff Stewart, Troy Daze Entertainment Chair, said he would work with 
EthniCity to bring in ethic entertainment on Sunday from 11 am – 1 pm. 

 
All Troy Daze comments send to Cindy by Thursday, October 12. 

 
B. Bridging the Racial Divide - Recap 
 
Barb Ford and Deb Williamson will be at our November 14th meeting. 

 
Michelle, Padma and Cindy were at the September event.  Michelle said 
she was sorry our board was not fully represented at this very worthwhile 
program. 
 
There will be four more sessions and we hope to get more ethnic cultures 
represented.  Idea for EIA Board to get more involved in future programs.  
Our board has the opportunity to be trained by NCCJ for Common Ground 
facilitators to conduct these small groups (20-30 people). 



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD DRAFT MINUTES OCTOBER 3, 2006  

 
 

V. New Business 
 

A. Process for recommendation of new EIA Board Members to City 
Council was passed out by Padma Kuppa as well as the attendance 
policy.  One member has missed a large number of meetings. 
 
 
B. Motion to appoint a Chairperson for the Ethnic Issues Advisory 
Board. 
 
Padma Kuppa nominated Michelle Haight as the EIAB Chairperson, 
seconded by Malini Sarma.  Approved unanimously.  Michelle will check 
on missed absent members with phone calls. 
 
All will send contact information to Cindy in order to update Board roster. 

 
C. Presentation:  from the International Institute -  
Nada Dalgamouni, Ethnic Enrichment Education Director and Muna 
Fares, Producer of Children Helping Children. 
 
Their programs are to help children understanding other cultures; face 
social problems.  They teach about the cultures from Latin America, East 
Europe and West Europe, Middle East, Africa and others. 
 
Co-sponsoring with MORC the Festival of the World on September, 
September 30 at the Troy Community Center for persons with physical, 
mental challenges.  Music, dance, costumes and more. 
 
Idea for City of Troy:  Center for Children – International Club for all Troy 
Schools.  Facilitate a program at the Troy Community Center. 
 
Promote thru Troy schools, have children join through membership open 
to K-12 grades.  Classes designed for ages of children.  Example basic 
language classes, dance classes, arts and crafts. 
 
Pilot program currently in Novi (at Civic Center).  They will now work on 
writing grants with City of Novi to continue this program.  In Detroit at one 
Elementary School they run a similar program.  Monday – Spanish, 
Tuesday – French, Wednesday – Dance and Thursday – arts and crafts.  
Cost $150/class.  $5,000 – 10 weeks 4 days/week, 2 hours/day.  $5,000 
from grant + $5,000. 

 
 Minimum of five students/class.  Maximum of 15-20 students/class.  They 

are sending information to all school superintendents.   



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD DRAFT MINUTES OCTOBER 3, 2006  

 
They need our assistance in promoting these programs to city and 
schools. 
 
How does the $5,000 get paid?  Membership fees, sponsorship/donations, 
grants (Target, Walmart, Kresge, Chrysler).  International club could also 
be expanded to Saturdays.   
 
Where do we go from here?  City and schools need to work together to 
figure out a way to bring this program to Troy with the assistance of the 
Ethnic Issues Advisory Board. 

 
VI. Motion to Adjourn 
 

Moved by Gladson Remos, Seconded by Reuben Ellis to adjourn the 
meeting. 

 
RESOLVED that the Ethnic Issues Advisory Board Meeting be adjourned 
at 9:05 pm.  Approved unanimously. 

 
  
 
 
_____________________________ 
Michelle Haight, EIA Chair 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Cindy Stewart, EIA Recording Secretary 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT OCTOBER 3, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Strat at 7:30 p.m. on October 3, 2006 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Lynn Drake-Batts Fazal Khan 
Mary Kerwin  Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz  Mark J. Vleck 
Thomas Strat 
David T. Waller 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Jonathan Shin, Student Representative 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-10-162 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That Members Khan, Littman and Vleck are excused from attendance 
at this meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan, Littman, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-10-163 
Moved by: Waller  
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as revised, with Items #6 and #7 moved 
behind Item #8.  
 
Yes: All (6) 
No: None  
Absent: Khan, Littman, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01i



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT OCTOBER 3, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENT (Items Not on the Agenda) 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

4. PRESENTATION BY WILLIAM BEAUMONT HOSPITAL – Proposed William 
Beaumont Hospital Improvements, West side of Dequindre, South of South 
Boulevard, Section 1, E-P and C-F 
 
Jim Lemire of Harley Ellis Devereaux introduced the project team and summarized 
the project.  General discussion followed.  
 
Tom Vanderworp of Harley Ellis Devereaux, Tom Briese of Beaumont and John 
Krolicki of Beaumont also addressed the Planning Commission. 
 
 

5. PRESENTATION OF PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD 7) – Proposed 
Village at Big Beaver, Retail including a Bank, a Drugstore and a Restaurant and 
Senior Housing, Southwest corner of Big Beaver and John R, Section 26 – M-1 
(Light Industrial) District 
 
Jim Butler of Professional Engineer Associates introduced the project team and 
summarized the project.  General discussion followed. 
 
 

6. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 227) – Ambulance Facilities in 
the M-1 (Light Industrial) District and reconsideration of current permitted locations 
in the B-3 (General Business), H-S (Highway Service), and O-1 (Low Rise Office) 
Districts 
 
Mr. Miller presented the draft ZOTA.  Mr. Waller asked if the word “ambulance” was 
appropriate.  Mr. Miller indicated he would clarify. 
 
 

7. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 215-B) – Article 04.20.00, 
Article 40.65.02 and Article 40.66.00, pertaining to Commercial Vehicle Definitions 
 
Mr. Miller presented this item, including the Commercial Vehicle Definitions Visual 
Survey.  The Planning Commission indicated they would like an opportunity to 
complete the survey themselves, and discuss the results at a future meeting. 
 
 

8. SUB-COMMITTEE PROGRESS REPORTS AND DISCUSSION 
 
A. Tracking of Planning and Zoning Projects - Schultz 
B. By-Laws - Kerwin / Waller 
C. Complete Update of Ordinance - Time Line and Milestones - Mark Miller 
D. Sustainable Development Standards - Khan / Waller 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT OCTOBER 3, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

E. Design Standards and Examples - Khan / Waller 
F. Promotion of Ingenuity - Mark Miller 
G. Educational - Speakers and Presentations to Planning Commission - Strat 
H. Site Plan Approval Requirements 
I. Conditional Rezoning Requirements 
J. PUD Restructure 
K. Comprehensive Plan Procedure Update 
L. Maple Road Study Update 
M. Big Beaver Corridor Study Update 
N. Reasons for Denial of Site Plan 
O. Improve Relationships with Other Commissions, City Departments and City 

Council 
P. Joint Meeting with City Council 
Q. Other New Items 
 
There was general discussion of these items. 
 
Ted Wilson, 5038 Kellen Lane, Bloomfield Hills, commented on the Maple Road 
Corridor Study. 
 
 

9. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
Tom Krent, 3184 Alpine, Troy, suggested the survey should have included the 
height and weight of each vehicle.  Further, he stressed that commercial vehicles in 
residential neighborhoods destroy residential character. 

 
 

10. COMMENTS BY COMMISSIONERS 
 
No comments. 
 

 
ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 10:20 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
       
Thomas Strat, Chair 
 
 
       
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2006 PC Minutes\Draft\10-03-06 Special Study Meeting_Draft.doc 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 3, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Strat at 7:30 p.m. on October 3, 2006 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Lynn Drake-Batts Fazal Khan 
Mary Kerwin  Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz  Mark J. Vleck 
Thomas Strat 
David T. Waller 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Jonathan Shin, Student Representative 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-10-162 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That Members Khan, Littman and Vleck are excused from attendance 
at this meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan, Littman, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-10-163 
Moved by: Waller  
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as revised, with Items #6 and #7 moved 
behind Item #8.  
 
Yes: All (6) 
No: None  
Absent: Khan, Littman, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01j



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 3, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENT (Items Not on the Agenda) 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

4. PRESENTATION BY WILLIAM BEAUMONT HOSPITAL – Proposed William 
Beaumont Hospital Improvements, West side of Dequindre, South of South 
Boulevard, Section 1, E-P and C-F 
 
Jim Lemire of Harley Ellis Devereaux introduced the project team and summarized 
the project.  General discussion followed.  
 
Tom Vanderworp of Harley Ellis Devereaux, Tom Briese of Beaumont and John 
Krolicki of Beaumont also addressed the Planning Commission. 
 
 

5. PRESENTATION OF PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD 7) – Proposed 
Village at Big Beaver, Retail including a Bank, a Drugstore and a Restaurant and 
Senior Housing, Southwest corner of Big Beaver and John R, Section 26 – M-1 
(Light Industrial) District 
 
Jim Butler of Professional Engineer Associates introduced the project team and 
summarized the project.  General discussion followed. 
 
 

6. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 227) – Ambulance Facilities in 
the M-1 (Light Industrial) District and reconsideration of current permitted locations 
in the B-3 (General Business), H-S (Highway Service), and O-1 (Low Rise Office) 
Districts 
 
Mr. Miller presented the draft ZOTA.  Mr. Waller asked if the word “ambulance” was 
appropriate.  Mr. Miller indicated he would clarify. 
 
 

7. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 215-B) – Article 04.20.00, 
Article 40.65.02 and Article 40.66.00, pertaining to Commercial Vehicle Definitions 
 
Mr. Miller presented this item, including the Commercial Vehicle Definitions Visual 
Survey.  The Planning Commission indicated they would like an opportunity to 
complete the survey themselves, and discuss the results at a future meeting. 
 
 

8. SUB-COMMITTEE PROGRESS REPORTS AND DISCUSSION 
 
A. Tracking of Planning and Zoning Projects - Schultz 
B. By-Laws - Kerwin / Waller 
C. Complete Update of Ordinance - Time Line and Milestones - Mark Miller 
D. Sustainable Development Standards - Khan / Waller 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 3, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

E. Design Standards and Examples - Khan / Waller 
F. Promotion of Ingenuity - Mark Miller 
G. Educational - Speakers and Presentations to Planning Commission - Strat 
H. Site Plan Approval Requirements 
I. Conditional Rezoning Requirements 
J. PUD Restructure 
K. Comprehensive Plan Procedure Update 
L. Maple Road Study Update 
M. Big Beaver Corridor Study Update 
N. Reasons for Denial of Site Plan 
O. Improve Relationships with Other Commissions, City Departments and City 

Council 
P. Joint Meeting with City Council 
Q. Other New Items 
 
There was general discussion of these items. 
 
Ted Wilson, 5038 Kellen Lane, Bloomfield Hills, commented on the Maple Road 
Corridor Study. 
 
 

9. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
Tom Krent, 3184 Alpine, Troy, suggested the survey should have included the 
height and weight of each vehicle.  Further, he stressed that commercial vehicles in 
residential neighborhoods destroy residential character. 

 
 

10. COMMENTS BY COMMISSIONERS 
 
No comments. 
 

 
ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 10:20 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
       
Thomas Strat, Chair 
 
 
       
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2006 PC Minutes\Final\10-03-06 Special Study Meeting_Final.doc 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – DRAFT –  
OCTOBER 4, 2006 

 1

 
 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities was 
held Wednesday, October 4, 2006, at the lower level Conference Room at City Hall.  
Chairman Stewart called the meeting to order at 7:03 p.m. 
 
Present:  M. Apte, alternate  C. Buchanan, member  
   A. Done, member  C. Geier, alternate 
   P. Hammond, member T. House, member  
   P. Manetta, member D. Pietron, member 
   J. Stewart, member  S. Werpetinski, member 
        
Present: M. Grusnick, staff 
   K. Jearls, staff 
 
Absent: S. Burt, member, EA 

A. Fuhrman, alternate, EA 
G. Hyun, student, UA 
C. Weideman, student, UA 

     
 
ITEM III – APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF MEETING OF September 6, 2006 
Werpetinski made a motion that the minutes of September 6, 2006 be approved.  
Supported by Pietron.  All voted in favor. 
 
ITEM IV – SCHEDULED PRESENTATIONS 
 
ITEM V – UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

A. The finalized copy of the ACPD brochure has been forwarded to the printer to 
have 1,000 copies made. 

B. Emergency Preparedness – Buchanan has spoken with Fire Lieutenant, Donald 
Mouch and he indicates Troy’s emergency preparedness plan is in order.  
Buchanan will speak  with Community Affairs regarding video taping a meeting in 
which Lt. Mouch explains Troy’s emergency preparedness plan. 

C. Werpetinski moved that all correspondence from this Committee be submitted 
through Kathy Jearls and Mitch Grusnick for approval and proof-reading.  Pietron 
seconded the motion.  All were in favor.  Mitch requested this be done by e-mail 
if possible for ease of changes. 

D. Werpetinski moved to discontinue collections for gestures of goodwill such as 
gifts and flowers from taking place during meetings or in the meeting room.  
Hammond seconded.  All were in favor. 

E. Werpetinski questioned what the wording is on the questionnaire card enclosed 
with the water bill regarding closed captioning on City broadcasts. 

 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01k



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – DRAFT –  
OCTOBER 4, 2006 

 2

ITEM VI – NEW BUSINESS 
We welcome Carlene Geier, a citizen of Troy, as an alternate member to our 
Committee. 
 
Manetta reported that the curb at 1301 W. Long Lake is in the middle of a row at 
handicap parking.  Grusnick will verify. 
 
Werpetinski, along with keeping the Committee informed on City Council agenda items 
of interest, has volunteered to network with the Seniors Advisory Committee on issues 
of interest to this Committee. 
 
Done will contact Brian Murphy for more information on the proposed Troy-Birmingham 
Transit Center.  The DDA is involved with this project. 
 
Stewart has made arrangements for this Committee hosting an event on Thursday, 
November 30, 2006 at 12:30 p.m. for the Adaptive Recreation Program at the 
Community Center.  All are welcome to attend.  On December 8, 2006 the Friday Frolic 
Holiday Party will be held at the Community Center and all are welcome to attend. 
 
ITEM VII – REPORTS 

A. No students present. 
B. Werpetinski reported that funds were approved for video equipment to be used in 

the lower level conference room. 
C. The parking variance at 35 W. Long Lake was approved with 3 accessible 

parking spaces. 
D. A decision on the 20 group day care homes resisting ADA compliance was tabled 

until 12/2007 in order to review input from the State. 
E. Pietron, Hammond, Geier, and Werpetinski attended the Seniors Advisory 

Committee Meeting 9/7/06 at the Community Center.  They report that nothing 
has changed regarding Meals on Wheels.  Emerald was the successful bidder. 

 
ITEM VIII – PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
ITEM IX – MEMBER COMMENT 
Hammond reported that the extension cords on the ground at Troy Daze were 
not covered, making it difficult to navigate.  The grassy areas were not accessible. 
 
House reported that East Side Watchbands at 30835 John R, Madison Hts., offers 
curbside service to disabled customers with an advance call. 
 
Werpetinski reported that the State of Michigan has a new website for services available 
for persons with disabilities -  www.michigan.gov/disabilityresources. 
 
Werpetinski reported that 10/28/06 is Make A Difference Day.  Perhaps one project to 
consider would be assistance for the gentleman that lives in Hammond’s trailer park that 
is unable to maneuver in his home due to health problems. 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – DRAFT –  
OCTOBER 4, 2006 

 3

 
Werpetinski thought it very commendable that the City has installed accessible public 
sidewalk approaches with colored pavement. 
 
Stewart suggested that this Committee compile a resource guide for persons with 
disabilities  It was suggested that this list be put on the City of Troy website as well as in 
Troy Today. 
 
ITEM X – ADJOURNMENT 
Pietron made a motion to adjourn at 9:40 which was seconded by Done. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                                                                 _______________________________ 
                       Jeff Stewart, Chairperson 
 
        ________________________________ 
           Kathy Jearls, Recording Secretary                            
 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – FINAL –  
OCTOBER 4, 2006 

 1

 
 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities was 
held Wednesday, October 4, 2006, at the lower level Conference Room at City Hall.  
Chairman Stewart called the meeting to order at 7:03 p.m. 
 
Present:  M. Apte, alternate  C. Buchanan, member  
   A. Done, member  C. Geier, alternate 
   P. Hammond, member T. House, member  
   P. Manetta, member D. Pietron, member 
   J. Stewart, member  S. Werpetinski, member 
        
Present: M. Grusnick, staff 
   K. Jearls, staff 
 
Absent: S. Burt, member, EA 

A. Fuhrman, alternate, EA 
G. Hyun, student, UA 
C. Weideman, student, UA 

     
 
ITEM III – APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF MEETING OF September 6, 2006 
Werpetinski made a motion that the minutes of September 6, 2006 be approved.  
Supported by Pietron.  All voted in favor. 
 
ITEM IV – SCHEDULED PRESENTATIONS 
 
ITEM V – UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

A. The finalized copy of the ACPD brochure has been forwarded to the printer to 
have 1,000 copies made. 

B. Emergency Preparedness – Buchanan has spoken with Fire Lieutenant, Donald 
Mouch and he indicates Troy’s emergency preparedness plan is in order.  
Buchanan will speak  with Community Affairs regarding video taping a meeting in 
which Lt. Mouch explains Troy’s emergency preparedness plan. 

C. Werpetinski moved that all correspondence from this Committee be submitted 
through Kathy Jearls and Mitch Grusnick for approval and proof-reading.  Pietron 
seconded the motion.  All were in favor.  Mitch requested this be done by e-mail 
if possible for ease of changes. 

D. Werpetinski moved to discontinue collections for gestures of goodwill such as 
gifts and flowers from taking place during meetings or in the meeting room.  
Hammond seconded.  All were in favor. 

E. Werpetinski questioned what the wording is on the questionnaire card enclosed 
with the water bill regarding closed captioning on City broadcasts. 

 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01l



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – FINAL –  
OCTOBER 4, 2006 

 2

ITEM VI – NEW BUSINESS 
We welcome Carlene Geier, a citizen of Troy, as an alternate member to our 
Committee. 
 
Manetta reported that the curb at 1301 W. Long Lake is in the middle of a row at 
handicap parking.  Grusnick will verify. 
 
Werpetinski, along with keeping the Committee informed on City Council agenda items 
of interest, has volunteered to network with the Seniors Advisory Committee on issues 
of interest to this Committee. 
 
Done will contact Brian Murphy for more information on the proposed Troy-Birmingham 
Transit Center.  The DDA is involved with this project. 
 
Stewart has made arrangements for this Committee hosting an event on Thursday, 
November 30, 2006 at 12:30 p.m. for the Adaptive Recreation Program at the 
Community Center.  All are welcome to attend.  On December 8, 2006 the Friday Frolic 
Holiday Party will be held at the Community Center and all are welcome to attend. 
 
ITEM VII – REPORTS 

A. No students present. 
B. Werpetinski reported that funds were approved for video equipment to be used in 

the lower level conference room. 
C. The parking variance at 35 W. Long Lake was approved with 3 accessible 

parking spaces. 
D. A decision on the 20 group day care homes resisting ADA compliance was tabled 

until 12/2007 in order to review input from the State. 
E. Pietron, Hammond, Geier, and Werpetinski attended the Seniors Advisory 

Committee Meeting 9/7/06 at the Community Center.  They report that nothing 
has changed regarding Meals on Wheels.  Emerald was the successful bidder. 

 
ITEM VIII – PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
ITEM IX – MEMBER COMMENT 
Hammond reported that the extension cords on the ground at Troy Daze were 
not covered, making it difficult to navigate.  The grassy areas were not accessible. 
 
House reported that East Side Watchbands at 30835 John R, Madison Hts., offers 
curbside service to disabled customers with an advance call. 
 
Werpetinski reported that the State of Michigan has a new website for services available 
for persons with disabilities -  www.michigan.gov/disabilityresources. 
 
Werpetinski reported that 10/28/06 is Make A Difference Day.  Perhaps one project to 
consider would be assistance for the gentleman that lives in Hammond’s trailer park that 
is unable to maneuver in his home due to health problems. 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – FINAL –  
OCTOBER 4, 2006 

 3

 
Werpetinski thought it very commendable that the City has installed accessible public 
sidewalk approaches with colored pavement. 
 
Stewart suggested that this Committee compile a resource guide for persons with 
disabilities  It was suggested that this list be put on the City of Troy website as well as in 
Troy Today. 
 
ITEM X – ADJOURNMENT 
Pietron made a motion to adjourn at 9:40 which was seconded by Done. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                                                                 _______________________________ 
                       Jeff Stewart, Chairperson 
 
        ________________________________ 
           Kathy Jearls, Recording Secretary                            
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                            OCTOBER 4, 2006 

The Chairman, Ted Dziurman, called the meeting of the Building Code Board of 
Appeals to order at 8:30 A.M., on Wednesday, October 4, 2006 in the Lower Level 
Conference Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:  Ted Dziurman 
   Rick Kessler 
   Tim Richnak 
   Rick Sinclair 
   Frank Zuazo 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
   Marlene Struckman, Housing & Zoning Inspector Supervisor 
   Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 6, 2004 
 
Motion by Sinclair 
Supported by Kessler 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of September 6, 2006 as written. 
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES AS WRITTEN CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  NORM MORTON, 1785 CRESTLINE, for relief of 
Chapter 83 to install a 48” high chain link fence. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 83 to install a 48” 
high chain link fence.  This property is a double front corner lot.  As such, it has front 
yard setback requirements along both Crestline and Crimson.  Chapter 83 limits the 
height of fences in front setbacks at this location to not more than 30”.  The site plan 
submitted indicates a 48” high chain link fence in the front yard setback along Crimson. 
 
Mr. and Mrs. Norm Morton were present.  Mr. Morton said that he became concerned 
when his nephew was playing football and went after a ball that went into the street.  Mr. 
Morton said he is very concerned about the safety of his children.  Furthermore, the 
Morton’s have a dog and this fence would keep the dog contained in their yard.  This 
home is located along one of the main entrances to the subdivision and there is a lot of 
traffic.  Mr. Morton also said that he had spoken to his surrounding neighbors and they 
did not object to this fence. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are four (4) written approvals on file.  There are no written objections on file. 

 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-01m



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                            OCTOBER 4, 2006 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked if they had spoken to the neighbor directly behind their home.  Mr. 
Morton indicated that he had and this neighbor had no objection as long as the existing 
pine trees were to remain.   
 
Mr. Kessler said that he had noticed other homes in this subdivision that had fences that 
go to the sidewalk, and feels they are very noticeable as you go into the subdivision.  
Mr. Kessler explained that this Board tries to have fences located away from the 
sidewalk and screened by extra landscaping so that they do not have an impact on 
surrounding neighbors.  Mr. Kessler also suggested that the petitioner place this fence 
inside the tree line, which would provide screening. 
 
Mr. Morton said that if he put the fence in this location it would make it difficult to 
maintain the trees and the existing grass. 
 
Mr. Richnak stated that he can appreciate the maintenance issue, but the Board has to 
look for a hardship that runs with the land in order to grant a variance, and maintenance 
in his opinion would not be such an issue.  When a variance is granted, the Board wants 
it to have the minimum impact to the surrounding residents.  Mr. Richnak suggested that 
Mr. Morton spray something around this area so that the grass would not grow.   
 
Mr. Kessler suggested that additional ground cover be added in the area.  Mr. Kessler 
said that he believes there is enough space available that the fence can be put behind 
the tree line rather than in front of the trees. 
 
Mr. Richnak suggested two different types of ground cover that could be put in that 
would be inexpensive, low maintenance, and would fill the area in. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked how Mr. Morton felt about these suggestions and Mr. Morton said 
that he would be willing to do whatever the Board suggested.  Mr. Morton presented a 
map showing other fences in the area. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that four (4) of the homes shown on this map were not double 
front corner lots and the Ordinance did not have the same restrictions on them that were 
on this property. 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Kessler 
 
MOVED, to grant Norm Morton, 17895 Crestline, relief of Chapter 83 to install a 48” 
high chain link fence. 
 

• Fence will be erected on the north side of the three (3) closest pine trees to 
Crimson. 

• No additional landscaping will be required. 

 2



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                            OCTOBER 4, 2006 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #3 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  JOE NOVITSKY, JSN ARCHITECTS, 
REPRESENTING SAIF JAMEEL, 2987 CROOKS ROAD, for relief of the 2003 
Michigan Building Code. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is the architect representing the owner of the 
gasoline station located at the southwest corner of the intersection of Crooks Road and 
Big Beaver Road.  The owner is in the process of adding a brick veneer on the exterior 
of the existing building.  Unfortunately, the work was begun without first obtaining a 
building permit.  This is in part, due to a misunderstanding of the scope of work of the 
project between the owner and Building Department staff.  The existing building is a 
pre-manufactured modular building, which is placed upon a cast in place concrete 
trench footing.  A concrete sidewalk surrounds the building.  Rather than installing the 
brick veneer directly upon the foundation as required by the Building Code, the brick is 
being installed on top of the sidewalk.  The petitioner is asking for approval to install the 
brick veneer on top of the sidewalk in lieu of directly upon the foundation based upon 
the specific conditions of the site as outlined in the appeal application. 
 
Mr. Joe Novitsky of JSN Architects, and Mr. Saif Jameel, the owner of the property were 
present.  Mr. Novitsky stated that when putting in these veneers they want to protect the 
area from heave and settlement and he believes that will not happen on this site.  If they 
cut around the building it will break up the continuity.  The footings are all formed up and 
are free floating.  When they saw cut an area they found that there was between 4’ and 
6’ of sand on the entire site, which allows the ground water to migrate through and that 
would minimize inevitable heaving.  Mr. Novitsky does not believe there is any reason to 
stop the construction at this point.  This would be a radical improvement for this site and 
would not cause safety or health issues even though it does not meet the Code.  Mr. 
Novitsky also stated that he believes adding a foundation would create more problems. 
 
Mr. Zuazo asked what type of sand was under the structure and how far it extended 
from the structure.  Mr. Novitsky said he had no idea what kind of sand it was, although 
he believes it is standard mason sand, very coarse and deep brown in color.  Very 
reputable contractors have told him that this is a very stable site.   
 
Mr. Zuazo asked how far the sand was from the perimeter of the building and Mr. 
Novitsky stated he thought it was roughly 2’ to 3’, but was unable to be 100% sure 
unless they cut into the cement. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked about the “dog-bone” foundations underneath the canopy.  Mr. 
Stimac explained that the drawings show a canopy-footing about one foot below the 
paving.   

 3



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                            OCTOBER 4, 2006 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if all of the columns had been bricked at this time and Mr. Novitsky 
stated that about 75% of the work is complete.  Mr. Dziurman asked if they also wanted 
to put up the brick around the islands and Mr. Novitsky stated that they did. 
 
Mr. Kessler stated that they could get footings around the foundation.  Mr. Novitsky said 
that there is about 6” of compacted sand around the “dog-bone”. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked what they are proposing around the island and Mr. Novitsky said that 
they don’t want to cut it.  Mr. Novitsky said that cutting it could cause a negative effect 
on the foundation.  They would like to keep it sealed and let them indemnify the City and 
allow him to take responsibility for this action. 
 
Mr. Kessler said that if they went 12” around the columns, they could cut away and put 
in 6” of concrete.  Mr. Kessler also asked what the life expectancy of the pumps was.  
Mr. Novitsky said that the foundations were installed in1995 and were recently removed 
and replaced.  In ten (10) years they could be looking at new style pumps.  At that time 
the islands would have to be re-worked.  Mr. Kessler said this would be the ideal time to 
isolate the columns.  Mr. Novitsky said he did not think that would be a problem. 
 
Mr. Richnak said that they could cut 12” out around each columns.  Mr. Novitsky said 
that he thinks this is a very stable site and would yield to whatever decisions the Board 
makes.  If they took it all down and put in a footing, Mr. Novitsky believes it would 
weaken the site and make it less stable. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked if they had gone around the entire perimeter of the building to look for 
settlement and heaving.  Mr. Novitsky said that he had looked everywhere and did not 
see any denigration in the site anywhere.  This is an amazingly stable site. 
 
Mr. Richnak stated that he had looked over this site and found cracking at either side of 
the door to the car wash. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked about using shelf angles to support the brick?  Mr. Novitsky said 
that they would look terrible and since this is a light gage metal frame building they 
would have worry about the fasteners failing, which would cause collapsing.   
 
Mr. Kessler asked about brick flashing.  Mr. Novitsky said that there is a flashing, but 
the only problem is that it’s tucked behind the siding. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked if there was a sufficient gap to allow for movement on the area 
between the metal and the aluminum windows.  Mr. Novitsky said that there is very little 
space and it would have to be caulked.  Mr. Kessler asked if the windows would be able 
to withstand heaving.  Mr. Novitsky said that the brick would heave independently. 
 
 

 4



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                            OCTOBER 4, 2006 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked what the conditions of the site were.  Mr. Novitsky stated that the 
entire site is paved.  Mr. Kessler said that the front area is under a large canopy that 
protects it from the weather.  Mr. Kessler asked if you could see that the structure 
around the perimeter sits on the footing.  Mr. Novitsky said that he had exposed an area 
and you can actually feel the edge of the sidewalk resting on the footing. 
 
Mr. Kessler stated that Rob Winkelman, Building Inspector, said that the front door did 
not open properly and asked if this was from heaving.  Mr. Novitsky said that there is no 
evidence of heaving, but believes it is caused by the denigration of the threshold. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated if the island curbs are replaced again, the brick would have to come 
down and be replaced.   
 
Mr. Sinclair asked if the columns were all bricked.  Mr. Novitsky said that two are and 
four are not.   
 
Mr. Kessler stated that he did not feel the petitioner should have to correct the two 
columns that are already bricked, but that the other four columns should have the brick 
put on them correctly and that would include a footing. 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Sinclair 
 
MOVED, to grant Joe Novitsky, JSN Architects, representing Saif Jameel, 2987 Crooks 
Road, relief of the 2003 Michigan Building Code to add brick veneer to an existing 
building with the following stipulations: 
 

• The two (2) columns that are already bricked will be saw-cut to isolate them 
from the islands. 

• The four (4) remaining columns that do not have brick will have footings down to 
pier foundations. 

• Under all aluminum window frames, space will be left to allow for movement and 
heaving. 

• A “Hold Harmless” letter will be provided from the petitioner indicating, that the 
City, this Board, and any members of the City Staff will not be held responsible 
for any lawsuits or damages resulting from approval of this variance. 

 
 Yeas:  4 – Kessler, Richnak, Sinclair, Zuazo 
Nays:  1 – Dziurman 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
Mr. Stimac informed the Board that he is awaiting documentation from a petitioner 
asking that this Board hold a special meeting.  Basically the petitioner is asking to have 

 5



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                            OCTOBER 4, 2006 

a special event sign up for a period that would exceed the seven (7) day limit allowed by 
the Ordinance.  Because this request is for a sign, there is a fourteen (14) day 
requirement to allow the Building Department to notify property owners within 300’ of 
the subject property.  Mr. Stimac asked if there would be a quorum of Board members 
to hold this meeting on Wednesday, October 18, 2006, assuming proper paperwork is 
received from the petitioner. 
 
Mr. Dziurman said that he might not be available on that date. 
 
The Building Code Board of Appeals meeting adjourned at 9:28 A.M. 
 
 
 
              
       Ted Dziurman, Chairman 
 
 
 
              
       Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 

 6



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                        Oct. 5, 2006 

1 

Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
 

A regular meeting of the Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens was held on Thursday, Oct. 5 
2006 at the Troy Community Center.  Chair Bud Black called the meeting to order at  
1:05 PM. 
 
Present: Bud Black, Member David Ogg, Member   
 Frank Shier, Member Mary Sarossy, Member 
 Pauline Noce, Member James Berar, Member  
 Jo Rhoads, Member, excused  Carla Vaughan, Staff   
     
Absent: JoAnn Thompson, Member excused   
 Merrill Dixon, Member excused     
   
Visitors:  Steve Haveraneck, Paula Fleming, Wade Fleming 
 
 
Approval of Minutes   
 
Resolution # SC-2006-10-001 
Moved by Pauline Noce  
Seconded by Mary Sarossy  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of Sept. 5, 2006 be approved as submitted. 
 
Yes: 7       
No: 0        
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Visitor Comments 
 
Steve Haveraneck from Emerald Food Service answered questions and provided information 
about the senior lunch program. 
 
Paula Fleming discussed the Terrace Café at Athens High School and announced that 
Homecoming for both high schools is this Friday. 
 
Wade Fleming announced that a satisfactory agreement was reached with the senior golf 
leagues and that he did not want to see them move to another city. 
 
Old Business 
  
Shuffleboard and Bocce Ball:  Carla reported that the contract was approved and that work 
will start any day now as soon as weather permits. 
 
Catering Service at the Community Center:  Carla reported that new bids were due last 
Friday and Emerald Food Service was the only company to bid the food service RFP.   The bid 
is being reviewed and council will be asked for permission to negotiate a contract. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01n



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                        Oct. 5, 2006 

2 

 
Mary Sarossy presented a report detailing her discussion with Joel Gottsacker at the Area 
Agency on Aging about the senior lunch program. 
 
 
New Business 
 
Home Repair Program:  Carla reported that the Big Beaver United Methodist Church has 
been doing repairs for seniors for several months.  The Community Foundation of Troy wants 
to fund this program.   Senior volunteers are needed on the steering committee.  Interested 
persons should contact Carla.  Positions include: 
 Intake Coordinator  
 Delivery of Service – Chairperson 
 Delivery of service - Electrical 
 Delivery of service - Plumbing 
 Delivery of service  - Handyman 
 Delivery of service  - Other 
 Volunteer recruitment and recognition  
 Resource procurement  and fundraising 
 Bookkeeping – finances  
 Marketing/client recruitment  
 
 
Reports 
 
Park Board: No report  
 
Medi-Go:  Jo Rhoads reported that there is a need for Saturday service and for seniors to get 
to church activities. 
 
Senior Program:  Carla reported that we now have a captioned telephone that was donated 
by the manufacturer to demonstrate to seniors.  Seniors are invited to set up an appointment to 
come in and try it out and see how it works.   Over 250 seniors attended the third annual 
SeniorNet computer lab open house in September.  The all-volunteer SeniorNet steering 
committee developed and presented five free workshops to help promote the computer lab, 
and they are to be commended for a great job.   The Fine Art Show on November 3 will be 
held in the lobby this year for greater exposure.  Attendance at Troy Daze was down.  David 
Ogg said there were complaints about how the bingo was run (could only win once).    
 
OLHSA:  Pauline Noce reported that she feels that Troy is excluded from many of their 
programs.  Seniors can visit the county website for information about programs for seniors 
including Bill’s Big Dig snow removal.  SOAR Optimists in Royal Oak provided gifts for needy 
seniors last year and may do it again this year.  The senior job-training program has a new 
sponsor and the Detroit Urban League will be handling the program now.   
 
Oakland County Senior Advisory Board:  Jo Rhoads reported that there are no minutes and 
she is concerned about what is passed on.  They are still working on a directory.  
 
Suggestion Box:  Carla reported that there were no suggestions this month  



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                        Oct. 5, 2006 

3 

 
Comments:   
 
James Berar stated that he has trouble hearing at the meetings and asked members to look up 
when they speak.  Carla will look at moving the group to a quieter room. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 2:40 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Bud Black, Chair               
 
 
 
Carla Vaughan, Secretary 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             OCTOBER 9, 2006  

 
A regular meeting of the Liquor Advisory Committee was held on Monday, October 
9, 2006 in Conference Room C of Troy City Hall, 500 West Big Beaver Road.  
Chairman Max K. Ehlert called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m. 
 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
  PRESENT: Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
    Henry W. Allemon 
    W. Stan Godlewski 
    Patrick C. Hall 
    David S. Ogg 
    Timothy P. Payne 
    Bohdan L. Ukrainec 
    Kelsey Brunette, Student Representative 
    Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
    Sergeant Christopher Stout 
    Pat Gladysz 
 
  ABSENT: None 
 
 
 
 
Resolution to Approve Minutes of August 14, 2006 Meeting 
 
Resolution #LC2006-10-018 
Moved by Ehlert 
Seconded by Ukrainec 
 
RESOLVED, that the Minutes of the August 14, 2006 meeting of the Liquor 
Advisory Committee be approved. 
 
Yes:  All - 7 
No:  0 
Absent: 0 
 
 
 
Agenda Items 
 
 
1. NCJ ACQUISITIONS, INC., requests to transfer ownership of 2006 Class 

C-SDM licensed business with dance permit, located at 1090 Rochester, 

 Page 1 of 3

campbellld
Text Box
J-01o



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             OCTOBER 9, 2006  

Troy, Michigan 48083, Oakland County, from MKC.; and requests a new 
official permit (Food). [MLCC REQ # 371055] (Corradi’s) 

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee were Kelly Allen of Adkison, 
Need & Allen law firm, and business owners Norm and Carla Johnson. 
 
Corradi’s was managed by the same family for over 30 years prior to recent sale.  
Norm and Carla Johnson have been very involved In Troy and neighboring 
communities for many years.  They have an energetic business plan for this 
property which will be called “Norm’s Field of Dreams” because of their sports 
backgrounds.  They are purchasing both the building and the real estate.  The 
interior of the building has been completely remodeled, the exterior has been 
upgraded, and there is ample parking.  They are currently operating under a 
management agreement with the Corradi family who are the licensees.  They have 
approximately fifteen employees and two very qualified managers, and everyone 
has completed their TIPS/TAMS training.   
 
Resolution #LC2006-10-019 
Moved by Ogg 
Seconded by Hall 
 
RESOLVED, that NCJ ACQUISITIONS, INC., be allowed to transfer ownership of 
2006 Class C-SDM licensed business with dance permit, located at 1090 
Rochester, Troy, Michigan 48083, Oakland County, from MKC, and be granted a 
new official permit (Food).  
 
Yes:  All - 7 
No:  0 
Absent: 0 
 
 
 
HOOTERS 
 
Allan Motzny reported that all Briefs have been filed in the Hooters litigation and 
they are currently waiting for notification of Oral Argument and court date.  It may 
be six months or more before a date is scheduled.  The Court of Appeals has the 
option in these cases to make a decision without argument, but he doubts they will 
do that.  The Motion for Peremptory Reversal was denied.   
 
There was discussion that the former Wagon Wheel building is being remodeled 
and a Hooters sign is on site.    
 
There was also discussion regarding the possibility that Hooters could simply 
transfer the license from their John R location to the Rochester location.  However, 
that would force the owners of the Wagon Wheel to put their license into escrow.  

 Page 2 of 3



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             OCTOBER 9, 2006  

They originally stated that they wanted to sell the property and the license 
together. 
 
PALM RESTAURANT 
 
There was discussion regarding the closing of the Palm Restaurant.   
 
TROY MANOR 
 
Sgt. Stout informed the Committee that the owner withdrew his application 
because the MLCC told them that they would not be granted a club license for that 
location. 
 
TROY, INC.
 
There was discussion regarding this transfer request.  Sgt. Stout informed the 
Committee that City Council unanimously denied their request for the license 
transfer and dance-entertainment permit.  
 
 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:35 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
      
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
 
 
 
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Patricia A. Gladysz, Secretary II 

 Page 3 of 3



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT OCTOBER 10, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Strat at 7:31 p.m. on October 10, 2006, in the Council Chambers of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Lynn Drake-Batts Wayne Wright 
Mary Kerwin 
Fazal Khan 
Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
Mark J. Vleck 
David T. Waller 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
Jonathan Shin, Student Representative 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-10-164 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That Member Wright is excused from attendance at this meeting for 
personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Mr. Miller requested an addition to the agenda relating to the reconsideration of the 
postponement of St. Mark’s Coptic Orthodox Church from the December 2006 
Regular meeting to the November 2006 Regular meeting.  A copy of the written 
request from the petitioner was distributed to the members prior to the beginning of 
tonight’s meeting.   

campbellld
Text Box
J-01p



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT OCTOBER 10, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2006-10-165 
Moved by:  Waller 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, To reconsider the postponement of St. Mark’s Coptic Orthodox 
Church from the December 2006 Regular meeting to the November 2006 Regular 
meeting.   
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Chair Strat requested to move Agenda item #12 in front of Agenda item #5, as a 
consideration to the audience present for the public hearing. 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-10-166 
Moved by:  Kerwin 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as amended. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

 
3. MINUTES 
 

Resolution # PC-2006-10-167 
Moved by:  Kerwin 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the September 26, 2006 Special/Study meeting minutes 
as published. 
 
Yes: Drake-Batts, Kerwin, Khan, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Waller 
No: None 
Abstain: Vleck 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT OCTOBER 10, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUEST 
 
12. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 340) – Proposed T-Mobile 

Cellular Tower, West side of Coolidge, South of I-75 (on site of Troy Fire Station No. 
6), Section 7, Zoned R-1B (One Family Residential) District 
 
Chair Strat announced the petitioner requested a postponement of the item to the 
November Regular meeting.  Chair Strat informed the public that the public hearing 
would remain open for those who wish to speak at the November public hearing.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Dennis Malecki of 2438 Oak Ridge Drive, Troy, was present.  Mr. Malecki spoke in 
opposition to the proposed request on behalf of the residents of Beach Forest 
subdivision.  He addressed concerns with the tower’s appearance, public health and 
property values.   
 
Cheryl Korth of 2086 Haverford Drive, Troy, was present.  Ms. Korth spoke in 
opposition to the proposed request.  She addressed Beach Forest residents who 
were not notified of the proposed request because they fall outside of the required 
300-foot distance to receive notification.  
 
William Cole of 5837 Clearview Court, Troy, was present.  Mr. Cole spoke in 
opposition to the proposed request.  Mr. Cole addressed a New York Times article 
on T-Mobile, aesthetics and property values.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING REMAINS OPEN FOR 11-14-06 REGULAR MEETING 
 
Mr. Miller provided a brief review of the City’s contractual status with T-Mobile.  He 
provided an explanation of the Planning Department review process for site plan and 
special use submission.  Mr. Miller said notification of the November public hearing 
would be given to residents living within 300 feet of the proposed use.  He indicated 
any residents living beyond the required 300-foot distance who wish to receive 
notification of the hearing should contact the Planning Department.  
 
Ms. Lancaster will do research on relevant cell phone tower proposals and FCC 
regulations.  
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT OCTOBER 10, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2006-10-168 
Moved by: Khan 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby postpones this item to the 
November 2006 Regular Planning Commission meeting. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

POSTPONED ITEMS 
 

5. STREET VACATION REQUEST (SV 134-B) – Cherry Street, East of Livernois, 
approximately 173 feet abutting Lots 6 and 7, Greenough Heights Subdivision, East 
of Livernois, South of I-75, Section 27 – Zoned O-1 (Low Rise Office) and R-1E 
(One Family Residential) Districts (the abutting parcels) 
 
Mr. Miller reviewed the number of times this item has been postponed at the 
request of the petitioners.  He reported the petitioners are requesting another 
postponement to a future date due to a health condition of one of the petitioners.  
Mr. Miller recommended no action on the item.   
 
There was a brief discussion on the application fee associated with a street vacation 
request.   
 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-10-169 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Waller 
 
RESOLVED, To take no action on this item until the petitioners are ready to submit 
their request.   
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

6. PUBLIC HEARING – STREET VACATION REQUEST (SV 148-C) – Daley Street, 
South of Big Beaver, East of Rochester Road, abutting Lots 28 and 33 of 
Supervisor’s Plat No. 11 Subdivision, Section 26 – Zoned M-1 (Light Industrial) 
District (the abutting parcels) 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT OCTOBER 10, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the proposed 
street vacation, and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to 
approve the request with two conditions.  The conditions are to retain all public and 
private utility easements and to retain a public access easement for turnaround 
purposes.  Mr. Miller said a turnaround in this situation might be more accurately 
described as an area for maneuvering.   
 
Ms. Lancaster addressed the pending lawsuit and indicated a court action would 
have no affect on the Planning Commission’s determination.  Ms. Lancaster also 
addressed the retention of a public access easement for turnaround purposes.   
 
The petitioner, Phil Tocco of 5645 Winslow Court, Pittsfield Twp, was present.  Mr. 
Tocco distributed color-coded diagrams to the members that clarified the street 
vacation request, and provided a brief history of the situation.  Mr. Tocco said the 
easement would enable maneuverability in the right of way and provide additional 
parking for Behr employees.  Mr. Tocco indicated the project engineers were 
available for questions.   
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Robert Easterly of 189 E. Big Beaver, Troy, was present.  Mr. Easterly, an attorney, 
represents Protofab located at 2835 Daley, Troy.  He addressed the concerns of his 
client and the pending lawsuit.  Mr. Easterly indicated the lawsuit should be 
resolved before the City makes a determination on the street vacation.  He asked 
that property rights of the citizens be protected and that the members deny the 
request.   
 
Bill Hart of 5685 Indian Trail, East China Township, was present.  Mr. Hart, an 
officer of Protofab, addressed the property dimensions of 2835 Daley and the 
concern with essential truck deliveries to the business.  He also addressed the 
existing problem with parking in the area.  
 
Ms. Lancaster explained that nothing physically would change the City property, 
and the City would retain the right for maneuverability in the roadway.   
 
A brief discussion continued with respect to the turnaround access and 
maneuverability.   
 
Ken Demark of 2611 Colby, Bloomfield Hills, was present.  Mr. Demark is the owner 
of 2873 Daley.  He addressed specifications of the turnaround, green space, a 
parking variance, existing parking problems and undeveloped land to the west that 
could be used by Behr for additional parking.  Mr. Demark said cars from Behr park 
in his lot and in the fire lanes.  He indicated that cars from Behr would invariably use 
the turnaround for parking.    
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT OCTOBER 10, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2006-10-170 
Moved by: Khan 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the street vacation request, as submitted, for Daley Street, South of Big 
Beaver, East of Rochester Road, abutting Lots 28 and 33 of Supervisor's Plat No. 
11 Subdivision, Section 26, be approved, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. Retention of all public and private utility easements. 
2. Retention of a public turnaround easement.   
3. Roadway will be kept clear of parked vehicles at all times. 
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Littman questioned the street vacation, should it be granted by City Council, 
with respect to the outcome of ownership determined by Court action.   
 
Ms. Lancaster clarified the pending lawsuit is a claim of adverse possession on the 
property.  She indicated the action taken by City Council would remain, Behr would 
retain the property and the conditions would remain on the property.  Ms. Lancaster 
also stated the conditions would remain should the property be sold.     
 
Ms. Kerwin indicated she would not support the motion.  She foresees problems 
with the enforcement of keeping the roadway clear of parked cars, as stipulated in 
the third condition of the motion.  
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: Drake-Batts, Khan, Strat, Vleck, Waller 
No: Kerwin, Littman, Schultz 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Littman believes the request should be considered after Court action on the 
pending lawsuit.  He sees no reason to rush through the approval process because 
it is going to work the same either way.  Mr. Littman said he does not think there will 
be enough room for trucks to turn around.   
 
Mr. Schultz said he would rather wait until the litigation is complete, so you know 
who owns property on both sides. 
 
Ms. Kerwin did not support the motion based on the third condition.   
 
Mr. Khan said decisions should not be based on future litigation.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT OCTOBER 10, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 7 - 
 

Chair Strat said supported the motion because a landlocked situation would not be 
created with the vacation  
 
 

___________ 
 
Chair Strat requested a recess at 8:43 p.m. 
 
[Student Representative Shin exited the meeting.] 
 
The meeting reconvened at 8:53 p.m. 
 

___________ 
 
 
7. SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 338) – Proposed Auto Detailing and Repair Facility, 

East side of Souter, South of Maple Road (1402 Souter), Section 34, Zoned M-1 
(Light Industrial) District 
 
Mr. Miller reported the petitioner has requested to postpone the item to the 
November Regular meeting.  Mr. Miller indicated a more suitable action would be to 
postpone the item to a Planning Commission meeting after appropriate plans are 
submitted to City Management and a public hearing is scheduled. 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-10--    
Moved by: Khan 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby postpones this item to the 
November 2006 Regular Planning Commission meeting.  
 
The following motion was made and substituted for the previous motion. 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-10-171 
Moved by: Khan 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby postpones this item until the 
applicant provides the new plans and the Planning Department schedules a public 
hearing.   
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT OCTOBER 10, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 8 - 
 

8. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 909) – Landowner-Proposed Amendment to Consent 
Agreement – Starbucks Restaurant, northwest corner of Big Beaver Road and Crooks 
Road, Section 20 – H-S (Consent Judgment) 
 
Mr. Miller provided a brief report on the item and an explanation of the related 
Consent Judgment.  He reported City Management recommends postponing the 
item until a new site plan is submitted.   
 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-10-172 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby postpones this item until such 
time that the applicant submits a complete site plan to the Planning Department for 
Planning Commission review. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

REZONING REQUESTS 
 

9. PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING REQUEST (Z 720) – Proposed Rochester Road 
Cluster Homes, East side of Rochester Road, between Shallowdale Drive and 
Bradley Avenue, Section 14 – From R-1C (One Family Residential) to R-1T (One 
Family Attached Residential) District 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the proposed 
rezoning, and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to approve the 
rezoning application.  Mr. Miller noted a small portion of property controlled by the 
petitioner is excluded from the rezoning request.   
 
There was a brief discussion on the depth of the property and future right of way on 
Rochester Road.   
 
The petitioner, Paul DePorre of 2556 Hounds Chase, Troy, was present.  Mr. 
DePorre addressed the request in relation to the Future Land Use Plan and existing 
zoning districts and land uses.  He said the higher density residential use would be 
a nice transition to the office and commercial uses to the north.  Mr. DePorre 
indicated a single family home could be constructed on the small portion of property 
excluded from the rezoning request.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT OCTOBER 10, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 9 - 
 

PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Kevin Thompson of 1019 Shallowdale, Troy, was present.  Mr. Thompson indicated 
he communicated to the petitioner his interest in selling property owned by him 
located on the east side of Rochester and north of Shallowdale.  He also addressed 
the property to the east of him with respect to building a single family home on the 
site.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-10-173 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the R-1C to R-1T rezoning request, located on the east side of 
Rochester Road, between Shallowdale Drive and Bradley Avenue, within Section 
14, being approximately 3.71 acres in size, be granted, for the following reasons:  
 
1. The application meets the Location Standards of the R-1T District. 
2. The application is consistent with the intent of the Future Land Use Plan  
3. The application is compatible with the existing zoning districts and land uses. 
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Littman announced the Planning Department received a letter of objection to the 
proposed rezoning, a copy of which was distributed to the Planning Commission.   
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

10. PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING REQUEST (Z 721) – Proposed Multi-family 
Development, West of John R, North of Wattles, Section 14 – From B-2 
(Community Business) and R-1C (One Family Residential) to RM-1 (Low Rise Multi-
Family Residential) District 
 
Mr. Savidant announced the petitioner submitted a written request to postpone the 
item at the beginning of tonight’s meeting.   
 
The petitioner was not present. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT OCTOBER 10, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 10 - 
 

PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Barbara Pikora of 11413 N. Pearson, Shelby Twp, was present to represent Infinity 
Management Corporation of 1977 East Wattles, Troy.  Ms. Pikora asked if public 
hearing notices would be sent for the next scheduled public hearing.   
 
Mr. Miller confirmed that public hearing notices would be sent.   
 
There was a brief discussion on the petitioner’s intent in requesting the 
postponement.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING REMAINS OPEN 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-10-174 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby postpones this item until such 
time that the applicant submits revised information to the Planning Department for the 
Planning Commission to review.   
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

11. PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING REQUEST (Z 722) – Proposed Retail 
Development, Northwest corner of Maple Road and Thorncroft, Section 29 – From 
R-C (Research Center) to B-3 (General Business) District 
 
Mr. Savidant reported the petitioner met with the Planning Department and discussed 
other development options on the subject property.  Based on those conversations, the 
petitioner submitted a written request to take no further action on the proposed 
rezoning request.   
 
Mr. Miller clarified the petitioner found a potential purchaser for the subject site.  
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT OCTOBER 10, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 11 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2006-10-175 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission shall take no action on this item at this 
time.   
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUESTS 
 

13. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 341) – Somerset Plaza, Whole 
Foods Proposed Seasonal Outdoor Display, Northeast corner of Maple Road and 
Coolidge Hwy, Section 29, Zoned B-2 (Community Business) District 
 
Mr. Savidant briefly reviewed the proposed special use request.  Based on 
discussions with the Planning Department as relates to a zoning ordinance text 
amendment that would permit seasonal outdoor display areas in commercial 
districts, the petitioner submitted a written request to withdraw the special use 
request.  Mr. Savidant reported the item requires no action.   
 
Mr. Schultz expressed concern that the petitioner is not aware of the length of time 
associated with a zoning ordinance text amendment.   
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
No action was taken on this request.   
 
 

14. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 342) – Existing Marathon 
Station, Northeast corner of Rochester Road and Charrington (3400 Rochester 
Road), Section 23, Zoned H-S (Highway Service) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed special use request, and reported it is the recommendation of City 
Management to approve the special use request and site plan with conditions 
relating to the sidewalk perimeter and the entry drive on the Rochester Road. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT OCTOBER 10, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 12 - 
 

Mr. Savidant said the Planning Department received a written request from the 
applicant to postpone to a future meeting.  It is understood that the applicant intends 
to submit revised plans with an additional vehicular drive on Rochester Road.   
 
There was a brief discussion on rear and side yard setback regulations.   
 
John Debruyne of SDA Architects, 42490 Garfield, Clinton Twp, was present to 
represent the petitioner.  Mr. Debruyne said the petitioner would like to explore the 
opportunity of maintaining the two existing driveways on Rochester Road.   
 
There was discussion on the two existing driveways on Rochester Road and the 
recommendation of the City’s Transportation Engineer to close the southern 
driveway on Rochester Road.  Members Strat and Khan indicated they would not 
support the request with two driveways on Rochester Road.   
 
Mr. Debruyne briefly discussed the matter with the petitioner.  He indicated the 
petitioner is concerned with maneuverability of the site should the southern 
driveway be removed.   
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-10    
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by:  
 
RESOLVED, To move this item to the Regular meeting of February 2007.   
 
 
Motion failed due to lack of a second.   
 
 
Mrs. Kattouah, wife of the petitioner, was present.  Mrs. Kattouah said the two 
entrances on Rochester Road are very essential for their business.  She addressed 
the neighbors’ concerns on traffic, ingress and egress, and maneuverability within 
the site.  Ms. Kattouah requested a postponement for one month. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT OCTOBER 10, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 13 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2006-10-176 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby postpones this item until such a 
time that the applicant submits a revised site plan to the Planning Department at which 
time the Planning Department will set a date for the next meeting.   
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 
 
15. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 227) – 

Articles 28.00.00, 22.00.00, 23.00.00 and 24.00.00 – Ambulance Facilities in the M-1 
(Light Industrial) District and Reconsider Permitted Locations in the B-3 (General 
Business), H-S (Highway Service) and O-1 (Low Rise Office) Districts 
 
Mr. Savidant briefly reviewed the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment.  He 
indicated the verbiage was given a thumbs-up by an appropriate outside source on 
ambulance facilities.   
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-10-177 
Moved by: Kerwin 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that Articles XXII B-3 GENERAL BUSINESS DISTRICT, XXIII H-S 
HIGHWAY SERVICE DISTRICT, XXIV LOW RISE OFFICE DISTRICT and XXVIII 
LIGHT INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT, pertaining to permitting Ambulance Facilities by 
Conditional Use Approval in the M-1 District and eliminating Ambulance Facilities in 
the O-1, B-3 and H-S Districts, be amended as printed on the proposed Zoning 
Ordinance Text Amendment, Planning Commission Public Hearing draft. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT OCTOBER 10, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 14 - 
 

Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 

16. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SU 330) – Proposed Addition to Infiniti-Hyundai Automotive 
Dealership, West side of Maplelawn between Maple and Crooks, Section 29, Zoned 
M-1 (Light Industrial) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed site plan, and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to 
approve the site plan as submitted.   
 
There was discussion on the site plan submission as relates to the unsealed plans 
and confusion in the distinction of the existing building and proposed addition.   
 
The petitioner, Stanley Tkacz of Studio Design-ST, 1529 S. Wayne Road, 
Westland, was present.  Mr. Tkacz reviewed the process of the site plan as 
originally submitted and how it ended back in front of the Planning Commission.  He 
apologized for submitting unsealed plans and the confusion in not clearly 
designating the proposed addition on the site plan.  Mr. Tkacz indicated he followed 
the Planning Department’s direction in the site plan submission.   
 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-10-178 
Moved by: Waller 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, To postpone the proposed addition to the Infiniti-Hyundai Dealership 
located on the west side of Maplelawn between Maple and Crooks, Section 29, M-1, 
until the October 24, 2006 Special/Study Meeting.   
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
A brief discussion followed on the submission of new plans for this item.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT OCTOBER 10, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 15 - 
 

OTHER ITEMS 
 

17. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

 
18. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 

There was a brief discussion on the Michigan Association of Planners (MAP) 
conference this week in Detroit.   
 
Mr. Miller addressed the number of recent postponements on agenda items, and 
indicated the matter is being address internally.     
 

 
 
 
The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission was adjourned at 10:00 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Thomas Strat, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2006 PC Minutes\Draft\10-10-06 Regular Meeting_Draft.doc 
 
 
 
 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL OCTOBER 10, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Strat at 7:31 p.m. on October 10, 2006, in the Council Chambers of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Lynn Drake-Batts Wayne Wright 
Mary Kerwin 
Fazal Khan 
Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
Mark J. Vleck 
David T. Waller 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
Jonathan Shin, Student Representative 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-10-164 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That Member Wright is excused from attendance at this meeting for 
personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Mr. Miller requested an addition to the agenda relating to the reconsideration of the 
postponement of St. Mark’s Coptic Orthodox Church from the December 2006 
Regular meeting to the November 2006 Regular meeting.  A copy of the written 
request from the petitioner was distributed to the members prior to the beginning of 
tonight’s meeting.   

campbellld
Text Box
J-01q



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL OCTOBER 10, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2006-10-165 
Moved by:  Waller 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, To reconsider the postponement of St. Mark’s Coptic Orthodox 
Church from the December 2006 Regular meeting to the November 2006 Regular 
meeting.   
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Chair Strat requested to move Agenda item #12 in front of Agenda item #5, as a 
consideration to the audience present for the public hearing. 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-10-166 
Moved by:  Kerwin 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as amended. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

 
3. MINUTES 
 

Resolution # PC-2006-10-167 
Moved by:  Kerwin 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the September 26, 2006 Special/Study meeting minutes 
as published. 
 
Yes: Drake-Batts, Kerwin, Khan, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Waller 
No: None 
Abstain: Vleck 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL OCTOBER 10, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUEST 
 
12. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 340) – Proposed T-Mobile 

Cellular Tower, West side of Coolidge, South of I-75 (on site of Troy Fire Station No. 
6), Section 7, Zoned R-1B (One Family Residential) District 
 
Chair Strat announced the petitioner requested a postponement of the item to the 
November Regular meeting.  Chair Strat informed the public that the public hearing 
would remain open for those who wish to speak at the November public hearing.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Dennis Malecki of 2438 Oak Ridge Drive, Troy, was present.  Mr. Malecki spoke in 
opposition to the proposed request on behalf of the residents of Beach Forest 
subdivision.  He addressed concerns with the tower’s appearance, public health and 
property values.   
 
Cheryl Korth of 2086 Haverford Drive, Troy, was present.  Ms. Korth spoke in 
opposition to the proposed request.  She addressed Beach Forest residents who 
were not notified of the proposed request because they fall outside of the required 
300-foot distance to receive notification.  
 
William Cole of 5837 Clearview Court, Troy, was present.  Mr. Cole spoke in 
opposition to the proposed request.  Mr. Cole addressed a New York Times article 
on T-Mobile, aesthetics and property values.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING REMAINS OPEN FOR 11-14-06 REGULAR MEETING 
 
Mr. Miller provided a brief review of the City’s contractual status with T-Mobile.  He 
provided an explanation of the Planning Department review process for site plan and 
special use submission.  Mr. Miller said notification of the November public hearing 
would be given to residents living within 300 feet of the proposed use.  He indicated 
any residents living beyond the required 300-foot distance who wish to receive 
notification of the hearing should contact the Planning Department.  
 
Ms. Lancaster will do research on relevant cell phone tower proposals and FCC 
regulations.  
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL OCTOBER 10, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2006-10-168 
Moved by: Khan 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby postpones this item to the 
November 2006 Regular Planning Commission meeting. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

POSTPONED ITEMS 
 

5. STREET VACATION REQUEST (SV 134-B) – Cherry Street, East of Livernois, 
approximately 173 feet abutting Lots 6 and 7, Greenough Heights Subdivision, East 
of Livernois, South of I-75, Section 27 – Zoned O-1 (Low Rise Office) and R-1E 
(One Family Residential) Districts (the abutting parcels) 
 
Mr. Miller reviewed the number of times this item has been postponed at the 
request of the petitioners.  He reported the petitioners are requesting another 
postponement to a future date due to a health condition of one of the petitioners.  
Mr. Miller recommended no action on the item.   
 
There was a brief discussion on the application fee associated with a street vacation 
request.   
 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-10-169 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Waller 
 
RESOLVED, To take no action on this item until the petitioners are ready to submit 
their request.   
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

6. PUBLIC HEARING – STREET VACATION REQUEST (SV 148-C) – Daley Street, 
South of Big Beaver, East of Rochester Road, abutting Lots 28 and 33 of 
Supervisor’s Plat No. 11 Subdivision, Section 26 – Zoned M-1 (Light Industrial) 
District (the abutting parcels) 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL OCTOBER 10, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the proposed 
street vacation, and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to 
approve the request with two conditions.  The conditions are to retain all public and 
private utility easements and to retain a public access easement for turnaround 
purposes.  Mr. Miller said a turnaround in this situation might be more accurately 
described as an area for maneuvering.   
 
Ms. Lancaster addressed the pending lawsuit and indicated a court action would 
have no affect on the Planning Commission’s determination.  Ms. Lancaster also 
addressed the retention of a public access easement for turnaround purposes.   
 
The petitioner, Phil Tocco of 5645 Winslow Court, Pittsfield Twp, was present.  Mr. 
Tocco distributed color-coded diagrams to the members that clarified the street 
vacation request, and provided a brief history of the situation.  Mr. Tocco said the 
easement would enable maneuverability in the right of way and provide additional 
parking for Behr employees.  Mr. Tocco indicated the project engineers were 
available for questions.   
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Robert Easterly of 189 E. Big Beaver, Troy, was present.  Mr. Easterly, an attorney, 
represents Protofab located at 2835 Daley, Troy.  He addressed the concerns of his 
client and the pending lawsuit.  Mr. Easterly indicated the lawsuit should be 
resolved before the City makes a determination on the street vacation.  He asked 
that property rights of the citizens be protected and that the members deny the 
request.   
 
Bill Hart of 5685 Indian Trail, East China Township, was present.  Mr. Hart, an 
officer of Protofab, addressed the property dimensions of 2835 Daley and the 
concern with essential truck deliveries to the business.  He also addressed the 
existing problem with parking in the area.  
 
Ms. Lancaster explained that nothing physically would change the City property, 
and the City would retain the right for maneuverability in the roadway.   
 
A brief discussion continued with respect to the turnaround access and 
maneuverability.   
 
Ken Demark of 2611 Colby, Bloomfield Hills, was present.  Mr. Demark is the owner 
of 2873 Daley.  He addressed specifications of the turnaround, green space, a 
parking variance, existing parking problems and undeveloped land to the west that 
could be used by Behr for additional parking.  Mr. Demark said cars from Behr park 
in his lot and in the fire lanes.  He indicated that cars from Behr would invariably use 
the turnaround for parking.    
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL OCTOBER 10, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2006-10-170 
Moved by: Khan 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the street vacation request, as submitted, for Daley Street, South of Big 
Beaver, East of Rochester Road, abutting Lots 28 and 33 of Supervisor's Plat No. 
11 Subdivision, Section 26, be approved, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. Retention of all public and private utility easements. 
2. Retention of a public turnaround easement.   
3. Roadway will be kept clear of parked vehicles at all times. 
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Littman questioned the street vacation, should it be granted by City Council, 
with respect to the outcome of ownership determined by Court action.   
 
Ms. Lancaster clarified the pending lawsuit is a claim of adverse possession on the 
property.  She indicated the action taken by City Council would remain, Behr would 
retain the property and the conditions would remain on the property.  Ms. Lancaster 
also stated the conditions would remain should the property be sold.     
 
Ms. Kerwin indicated she would not support the motion.  She foresees problems 
with the enforcement of keeping the roadway clear of parked cars, as stipulated in 
the third condition of the motion.  
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: Drake-Batts, Khan, Strat, Vleck, Waller 
No: Kerwin, Littman, Schultz 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Littman believes the request should be considered after Court action on the 
pending lawsuit.  He sees no reason to rush through the approval process because 
it is going to work the same either way.  Mr. Littman said he does not think there will 
be enough room for trucks to turn around.   
 
Mr. Schultz said he would rather wait until the litigation is complete, so you know 
who owns property on both sides. 
 
Ms. Kerwin did not support the motion based on the third condition.   
 
Mr. Khan said decisions should not be based on future litigation.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL OCTOBER 10, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 7 - 
 

Chair Strat said supported the motion because a landlocked situation would not be 
created with the vacation  
 
 

___________ 
 
Chair Strat requested a recess at 8:43 p.m. 
 
[Student Representative Shin exited the meeting.] 
 
The meeting reconvened at 8:53 p.m. 
 

___________ 
 
 
7. SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 338) – Proposed Auto Detailing and Repair Facility, 

East side of Souter, South of Maple Road (1402 Souter), Section 34, Zoned M-1 
(Light Industrial) District 
 
Mr. Miller reported the petitioner has requested to postpone the item to the 
November Regular meeting.  Mr. Miller indicated a more suitable action would be to 
postpone the item to a Planning Commission meeting after appropriate plans are 
submitted to City Management and a public hearing is scheduled. 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-10--    
Moved by: Khan 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby postpones this item to the 
November 2006 Regular Planning Commission meeting.  
 
The following motion was made and substituted for the previous motion. 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-10-171 
Moved by: Khan 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby postpones this item until the 
applicant provides the new plans and the Planning Department schedules a public 
hearing.   
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL OCTOBER 10, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 8 - 
 

8. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 909) – Landowner-Proposed Amendment to Consent 
Agreement – Starbucks Restaurant, northwest corner of Big Beaver Road and Crooks 
Road, Section 20 – H-S (Consent Judgment) 
 
Mr. Miller provided a brief report on the item and an explanation of the related 
Consent Judgment.  He reported City Management recommends postponing the 
item until a new site plan is submitted.   
 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-10-172 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby postpones this item until such 
time that the applicant submits a complete site plan to the Planning Department for 
Planning Commission review. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

REZONING REQUESTS 
 

9. PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING REQUEST (Z 720) – Proposed Rochester Road 
Cluster Homes, East side of Rochester Road, between Shallowdale Drive and 
Bradley Avenue, Section 14 – From R-1C (One Family Residential) to R-1T (One 
Family Attached Residential) District 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the proposed 
rezoning, and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to approve the 
rezoning application.  Mr. Miller noted a small portion of property controlled by the 
petitioner is excluded from the rezoning request.   
 
There was a brief discussion on the depth of the property and future right of way on 
Rochester Road.   
 
The petitioner, Paul DePorre of 2556 Hounds Chase, Troy, was present.  Mr. 
DePorre addressed the request in relation to the Future Land Use Plan and existing 
zoning districts and land uses.  He said the higher density residential use would be 
a nice transition to the office and commercial uses to the north.  Mr. DePorre 
indicated a single family home could be constructed on the small portion of property 
excluded from the rezoning request.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL OCTOBER 10, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 9 - 
 

PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Kevin Thompson of 1019 Shallowdale, Troy, was present.  Mr. Thompson indicated 
he communicated to the petitioner his interest in selling property owned by him 
located on the east side of Rochester and north of Shallowdale.  He also addressed 
the property to the east of him with respect to building a single family home on the 
site.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-10-173 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the R-1C to R-1T rezoning request, located on the east side of 
Rochester Road, between Shallowdale Drive and Bradley Avenue, within Section 
14, being approximately 3.71 acres in size, be granted, for the following reasons:  
 
1. The application meets the Location Standards of the R-1T District. 
2. The application is consistent with the intent of the Future Land Use Plan  
3. The application is compatible with the existing zoning districts and land uses. 
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Littman announced the Planning Department received a letter of objection to the 
proposed rezoning, a copy of which was distributed to the Planning Commission.   
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

10. PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING REQUEST (Z 721) – Proposed Multi-family 
Development, West of John R, North of Wattles, Section 14 – From B-2 
(Community Business) and R-1C (One Family Residential) to RM-1 (Low Rise Multi-
Family Residential) District 
 
Mr. Savidant announced the petitioner submitted a written request to postpone the 
item at the beginning of tonight’s meeting.   
 
The petitioner was not present. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL OCTOBER 10, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 10 - 
 

PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Barbara Pikora of 11413 N. Pearson, Shelby Twp, was present to represent Infinity 
Management Corporation of 1977 East Wattles, Troy.  Ms. Pikora asked if public 
hearing notices would be sent for the next scheduled public hearing.   
 
Mr. Miller confirmed that public hearing notices would be sent.   
 
There was a brief discussion on the petitioner’s intent in requesting the 
postponement.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING REMAINS OPEN 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-10-174 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby postpones this item until such 
time that the applicant submits revised information to the Planning Department for the 
Planning Commission to review.   
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

11. PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING REQUEST (Z 722) – Proposed Retail 
Development, Northwest corner of Maple Road and Thorncroft, Section 29 – From 
R-C (Research Center) to B-3 (General Business) District 
 
Mr. Savidant reported the petitioner met with the Planning Department and discussed 
other development options on the subject property.  Based on those conversations, the 
petitioner submitted a written request to take no further action on the proposed 
rezoning request.   
 
Mr. Miller clarified the petitioner found a potential purchaser for the subject site.  
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL OCTOBER 10, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 11 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2006-10-175 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission shall take no action on this item at this 
time.   
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUESTS 
 

13. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 341) – Somerset Plaza, Whole 
Foods Proposed Seasonal Outdoor Display, Northeast corner of Maple Road and 
Coolidge Hwy, Section 29, Zoned B-2 (Community Business) District 
 
Mr. Savidant briefly reviewed the proposed special use request.  Based on 
discussions with the Planning Department as relates to a zoning ordinance text 
amendment that would permit seasonal outdoor display areas in commercial 
districts, the petitioner submitted a written request to withdraw the special use 
request.  Mr. Savidant reported the item requires no action.   
 
Mr. Schultz expressed concern that the petitioner is not aware of the length of time 
associated with a zoning ordinance text amendment.   
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
No action was taken on this request.   
 
 

14. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 342) – Existing Marathon 
Station, Northeast corner of Rochester Road and Charrington (3400 Rochester 
Road), Section 23, Zoned H-S (Highway Service) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed special use request, and reported it is the recommendation of City 
Management to approve the special use request and site plan with conditions 
relating to the sidewalk perimeter and the entry drive on the Rochester Road. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL OCTOBER 10, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 12 - 
 

Mr. Savidant said the Planning Department received a written request from the 
applicant to postpone to a future meeting.  It is understood that the applicant intends 
to submit revised plans with an additional vehicular drive on Rochester Road.   
 
There was a brief discussion on rear and side yard setback regulations.   
 
John Debruyne of SDA Architects, 42490 Garfield, Clinton Twp, was present to 
represent the petitioner.  Mr. Debruyne said the petitioner would like to explore the 
opportunity of maintaining the two existing driveways on Rochester Road.   
 
There was discussion on the two existing driveways on Rochester Road and the 
recommendation of the City’s Transportation Engineer to close the southern 
driveway on Rochester Road.  Members Strat and Khan indicated they would not 
support the request with two driveways on Rochester Road.   
 
Mr. Debruyne briefly discussed the matter with the petitioner.  He indicated the 
petitioner is concerned with maneuverability of the site should the southern 
driveway be removed.   
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-10    
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by:  
 
RESOLVED, To move this item to the Regular meeting of February 2007.   
 
 
Motion failed due to lack of a second.   
 
 
Mrs. Kattouah, wife of the petitioner, was present.  Mrs. Kattouah said the two 
entrances on Rochester Road are very essential for their business.  She addressed 
the neighbors’ concerns on traffic, ingress and egress, and maneuverability within 
the site.  Ms. Kattouah requested a postponement for one month. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL OCTOBER 10, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 13 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2006-10-176 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby postpones this item until such a 
time that the applicant submits a revised site plan to the Planning Department at which 
time the Planning Department will set a date for the next meeting.   
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 
 
15. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 227) – 

Articles 28.00.00, 22.00.00, 23.00.00 and 24.00.00 – Ambulance Facilities in the M-1 
(Light Industrial) District and Reconsider Permitted Locations in the B-3 (General 
Business), H-S (Highway Service) and O-1 (Low Rise Office) Districts 
 
Mr. Savidant briefly reviewed the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment.  He 
indicated the verbiage was given a thumbs-up by an appropriate outside source on 
ambulance facilities.   
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-10-177 
Moved by: Kerwin 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that Articles XXII B-3 GENERAL BUSINESS DISTRICT, XXIII H-S 
HIGHWAY SERVICE DISTRICT, XXIV LOW RISE OFFICE DISTRICT and XXVIII 
LIGHT INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT, pertaining to permitting Ambulance Facilities by 
Conditional Use Approval in the M-1 District and eliminating Ambulance Facilities in 
the O-1, B-3 and H-S Districts, be amended as printed on the proposed Zoning 
Ordinance Text Amendment, Planning Commission Public Hearing draft. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL OCTOBER 10, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 14 - 
 

Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 

16. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SU 330) – Proposed Addition to Infiniti-Hyundai Automotive 
Dealership, West side of Maplelawn between Maple and Crooks, Section 29, Zoned 
M-1 (Light Industrial) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed site plan, and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to 
approve the site plan as submitted.   
 
There was discussion on the site plan submission as relates to the unsealed plans 
and confusion in the distinction of the existing building and proposed addition.   
 
The petitioner, Stanley Tkacz of Studio Design-ST, 1529 S. Wayne Road, 
Westland, was present.  Mr. Tkacz reviewed the process of the site plan as 
originally submitted and how it ended back in front of the Planning Commission.  He 
apologized for submitting unsealed plans and the confusion in not clearly 
designating the proposed addition on the site plan.  Mr. Tkacz indicated he followed 
the Planning Department’s direction in the site plan submission.   
 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-10-178 
Moved by: Waller 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, To postpone the proposed addition to the Infiniti-Hyundai Dealership 
located on the west side of Maplelawn between Maple and Crooks, Section 29, M-1, 
until the October 24, 2006 Special/Study Meeting.   
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
A brief discussion followed on the submission of new plans for this item.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL OCTOBER 10, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 15 - 
 

OTHER ITEMS 
 

17. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

 
18. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 

There was a brief discussion on the Michigan Association of Planners (MAP) 
conference this week in Detroit.   
 
Mr. Miller addressed the number of recent postponements on agenda items, and 
indicated the matter is being address internally.     
 

 
 
 
The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission was adjourned at 10:00 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Thomas Strat, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2006 PC Minutes\Final\10-10-06 Regular Meeting_Final.doc 
 
 
 
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                        OCTOBER 17, 2006 

The Chairman, Michael Hutson, called the meeting of the Board of Zoning Appeals to 
order at 7:30 P.M. on Tuesday, October 17, 2006 in Council Chambers of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
PRESENT:   Kenneth Courtney 
    Christopher Fejes 
    Michael Hutson 
    Matthew Kovacs 
    Mark Maxwell 
    Lawrence Littman 
 
ABSENT:   Marcia Gies 
 
ALSO PRESENT:  Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
    Christopher Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
    Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
Mr. Hutson informed the audience that if they wished they could postpone their request 
until a full Board was present. 
 
Motion by Fejes 
Supported by Courtney 
 
MOVED, to excuse Ms. Gies from tonight’s meeting as she is out of town. 
 
Yeas:  6 – Fejes, Hutson, Kovacs, Littman, Maxwell, Courtney 
 
MOTION TO EXCUSE MS. GIES CARRIED 
 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 19, 2006 
 
Motion by: Courtney  
Supported by: Fejes 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of September 19, 2006 as written. 
 
Yeas:  5 – Hutson, Kovacs, Maxwell, Courtney, Fejes 
Abstain: 1 - Littman  
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES AS WRITTEN CARRIED 
 
 
 
 
 

 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-01r



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                        OCTOBER 17, 2006 

ITEM #2 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  JAE DUK CHO, OF ADA ARCHITECTS, 1304 E. 
MAPLE, for relief of the Ordinance to alter an existing industrial building, that will result 
with a parking lot on the north side of the building to within 10’ of the north property line 
and 21’-8” to the east property line where Section 30.20.09 requires a 50’ front setback 
and Paragraph L of Section 31.30.00 requires that the front yard remain free of parking 
and maneuvering lanes. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to alter an 
existing industrial building.  The site plan submitted indicates the removal of the existing 
office portion of an industrial building and the expansion of the parking lot on the north 
side of the building to within 10’ of the north property line along Maple Road and within 
21’-8” of the east property line along Allen Drive.  Section 30.20.09 of the Zoning 
Ordinance requires a 50’ front setback in the M-1 (Light Industrial) Zoning District and 
Paragraph L of Section 31.30.00 requires that this front yard remain free of parking or 
maneuvering lanes.  The parking lot along the east property line farther south on the lot 
is currently located 21’-8” from the front property line along Allen Drive based upon a 
variance granted in 1992. 
 
This item last appeared before this Board at the meeting of September 19, 2006 and 
was postponed to allow the petitioner the opportunity to look at other options that are 
available; and to allow the petitioner to demonstrate to the Board the reason this much 
parking will be required. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that new drawings had been received and indicated that they have 
added more landscaping along the northwest corner of the site as well as additional 
landscaping proposed at the northeast corner of the site.  In addition they have included 
some actual landscape islands within the parking lot at the front of the lot.  Also, at the 
southeast corner of the building they have added another row of parking and put in 
some extra landscaping.  One other change would be that some of the islands at the 
entrances of the drives are now proposed to be totally landscaped.  Although, there 
have been changes to the site plan, the variance request is still identical. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if they would still be in excess of parking if they removed all of the 
parking spaces along Maple Road.  Mr. Stimac said that he has not done the required 
calculation on the required parking.  The other issue is that when looking at the use of 
this building, if they apply the industrial standard they are over the minimum parking 
requirements; however, if it was a retail business open to the public they would require 
more parking.  Since, this business is a wholesale distributor dealing with only certain 
customers, they would probably fall somewhere in the middle.   
 
Mr. Dan Saleet of ADA Architects, Jae Duk Cho of ADA Architects and Craig Nardi, the 
real estate developer that helped to purchase the property were present.  Mr. Saleet 
said that he thought that the safety factor was probably lost in last month’s presentation.  
Everything south of the building line has truck interference and in their opinion creates a  
 
 

 2



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                        OCTOBER 17, 2006 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
safety hazard.  They have determined that out of 150 spaces on the lot, 97 spaces are 
south of the building line and in his opinion this would not be a safe area for parking.   
 
Mr. Nardi, of MAI Global, was present and said that they have done a lot of creative 
deals taking properties that have specific challenges to them and have made them 
properties that do function.  They took the minutes from last month’s meeting and have 
tried to address the concerns that the Board members had.  There is an abundance of 
parking, but the way the building was placed on the lot they put the parking at the back 
of the lot.  Our concern is safety and if there is parking at the back of the lot there will be 
truck interference.  There are tractor trailers that come and go, and it will be dangerous 
for customers leaving the building with a cart full of items.  The trucks that are waiting 
will have a staging area at the back of the property and also off of the street.  This is a 
fixture plan, and they have taken into consideration where the loading docks are.  There 
are freezers and coolers and the tractor and trailers have to off-load directly into the 
freezer and cooler area.  There are two docks that go into where the perishable goods 
are and they have to move the customer parking as far away from these docks as 
possible.  On average, Restaurant Depot may have between 50 and 70 customers 
shopping at any given time.  During the peak season such as holidays, this number 
would greatly increase. 
 
Mr. Nardi said that the employees will park in the back, but they need customer parking 
as close to the building entrance as possible.  They also looked at moving the entrance 
to the east side of the building, however, Mr. Nardi stated that they had drawn a 150’ 
circle around that proposed entrance and that within that circle there are only 52 parking 
spaces.  They also drew a 150’ circle around what they want to be the entrance on the 
north side of the building, and this circle contains 67 parking spaces, which would give 
them more of what they are looking for.  These examples were done to show the Board 
the difference between putting the entrance at the east side of the building, rather than 
the north side of the building. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked how much money each customer spends.  A representative of 
Restaurant Depot was present and stated that the average purchase is around $250.00 
and the weight varies depending on what kind of product is purchased.  Mr. Maxwell 
asked how large the carts were and was told that they are about 4’ wide x 6’ long.  Mr. 
Saleet stated that they would be similar to the flat bed carts used at a Costco or Sam’s 
Club.   
 
Mr. Maxwell asked if it would be conducive to the customer to have a drive up loading 
lane where someone could be waiting to fill their vehicles or is it more conducive for 
them to push the carts out to their vehicles.  Mr. Nardi said that the weight issue 
depends on the type of product that is being purchased.  If there was a loading lane you 
would have to provide for a backup lane.  Mr. Maxwell said that he did not feel the 
double lane of parking was needed and thought that perhaps a lane for loading would  
 

 3



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                        OCTOBER 17, 2006 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
be more efficient.  This may be another way to help the customers pick up their 
products. 
 
Mr. Nardi said that his wife owns her own catering business and only has a limited 
amount of time to go out and get the supplies they need.  If a loading lane was there it 
could affect their time constraint in order to shop. 
 
Mr. Maxwell said that there is also customer parking on the side of the building and if 
there was a loading lane, it would only be used by a certain number of customers.  The 
representative from Restaurant Depot said that he did not believe this would be the 
most convenient way for the customer to get their items.  They have found that it has 
worked very well for the customer to come, purchase his items and take them out to his 
car. 
 
Mr. Maxwell stated that in his experience purchasing large items at Costco, it is just as 
convenient for him to go and get his car and bring it to the door in order to load his 
purchase.  Mr. Cho said that this would be an inconvenience as other vehicles may be 
in the way.  Mr. Maxwell asked if a loading lane in front of the building is a ridiculous 
idea and Mr. Cho said that he did not think it was ridiculous.  Mr. Maxwell explained that 
this request is for a very large variance and it is beneficial for them to look at all options 
available.   
 
Mr. Nardi said that it was not a ridiculous idea, but it could create a problem for the 
customer that has a time limit.  They wouldn’t know if there was a line or not and that 
might prevent them from coming to this site.  The unknown could potentially cause a 
problem.  Mr. Maxwell said that the petitioner had said that they would have between 50 
and 70 customers at one time, and there are 36 parking spaces available at the front of 
the store. 
 
Mr. Nardi said that was true, but during the peak seasons more parking is required.  
During the busy season restaurant owners could come to this location 5 – 6 times a 
week. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked what the “high count” of customers was.  Mr. Nardi said that 
typically for a store this size, you would have about 100 – 125 cars during the busy 
season.  Mr. Courtney said he would like to know how many customers come in during 
this peak season.  The representative from Restaurant Depot said that typically they 
handle about 50 customers an hour and during the busy season maybe 100 – 125 per 
hour. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked how many stores they have.  Mr. Nardi said that there were 55 
stores around the country. 
 
 

 4



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                        OCTOBER 17, 2006 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Littman questioned the 67 parking spaces in the 150’ circle that the petitioner had 
drawn.  Mr. Nardi said that they had done this just to show how much parking would be 
available if they located parking on the east side of the building.  Mr. Littman asked what  
was in the northeast corner of the building.  Mr. Cho said that it was HVAC equipment,  
restrooms and some offices.  Mr. Littman asked if it was existing or if it was going to be 
put in.  Mr. Cho said that they were going to put it in.  Mr. Littman asked if they could 
move the entrance to the northeast corner.  Mr. Nardi said that they aren’t saying the 
entrance couldn’t be on the east side.  If they could put the loading docks in the front of 
the building parking would not be an issue.  Mr. Littman asked if they wanted enough 
parking spaces for the busiest time of the year, or ideally, how many parking spaces do 
they want.  Mr. Nardi said that parking on one side creates congestion for the customers 
that come and go.  Ms. Nardi won’t shop in a place like this during the busy season. 
 
Mr. Littman asked how many spaces they really want close to the door.  Mr. Nardi said 
that ideally they would like 100 parking spaces close to the door.  Mr. Nardi said that 
they require a lot of parking, not just for one busy day, but for a busy time of the year.  
Mr. Nardi also said that they could take out the proposed parking closest to Maple and 
although they would still need a variance it would not be as large.  Mr. Littman said that 
he could see where there would be a conflict with trucks on the south side of the 
building. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that on the extreme north end there are 86 spaces and asked where 
they would put the entrance if they did not have the extra layer or parking.  Mr. Nardi 
said that they have not looked at that option.  Mr. Courtney said that he did not see a 
reason for the 13 spaces on the north side of the property and it would make him happy 
to see those eliminated. 
 
Mr. Fejes said that if they took out the 13 spaces on the north side, the size of the 
variance would be reduced by a large amount.  Mr. Fejes said he would not have a 
problem with this variance request if those spaces were eliminated. 
 
Mr. Littman stated that he wasn’t quite as straightforward at Mr. Fejes, but he is in 
agreement with Mr. Fejes.  Mr. Littman asked if the trucks were going and coming all 
day.  Mr. Littman was informed that the trucks come in and out during working hours. 
 
Mr. Hutson asked how many trucks were coming in and out all day and was told that 
there are between 15 and 18 trucks each day.  Mr. Hutson said that he is concerned 
about the intrusion into the setback on the north side of the parking lot.  This is a large 
variance and it seems that the petitioner could look at other options. 
 
Mr. Kovacs stated that he was also concerned about the north side of the property.  Mr. 
Kovacs also said that he thought they could move the curb cuts and add additional 
parking where the entrance is.  Mr. Kovacs said that he thought if the petitioner were 
creative they could regain the 13 parking spaces and still have enough of an area for  

 5



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                        OCTOBER 17, 2006 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
truck staging.  They may not have enough parking during the peak season, but during 
the holidays most places do not have enough parking.   
 
Mr. Nardi said that they got the message on the 13 spaces.  They tried to address the 
concerns of the Board and the major concern was how this building looks to traffic along 
Maple Road.  They have increased the amount of landscaping to create a buffer and 
keep the parked cars hidden from the traffic along Maple.  If you are driving along Maple 
you would not see the cars parked in this row of parking.  They have addressed the 
concerns of the Board regarding the parking along Maple.   
 
Mr. Courtney said that if they eliminate one lane of parking this would add 10’ to 18’ of 
landscaping. 
 
Mr. Maxwell stated that the sidewalk is about 10’ from the parking lane around Maple.  
Mr. Nardi said that there are other properties along Maple that encroach into the 10’ 
setback of Maple and Allen going down to I-75, they are in O-M Zoning and are allowed 
to go right up to the 10’ area.  They are trying to buffer and landscape this area so that 
the cars would not be visible along Maple. 
 
Mr. Maxwell said that he did approve of the extra landscaping, but he felt that they had 
other options to look at that would reduce the size of the variance. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if the petitioner would like to explore the possibilities brought up by 
the Board and come back at a later time. 
 
Mr. Nardi said he would like a few minutes to confer with the other members of his 
group. 
 
Mr. Hutson opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written objections or approvals on file. 
 
Mr. Nardi asked the Board if this request could be postponed another thirty days in 
order for them to look at the suggestions made by the Board in order to see if this 
variance request could be reduced. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Maxwell 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of Jae Duk Cho, of ADA Architects, 1304 E. Maple, 
for relief of the Ordinance to alter an existing industrial building, that will result with a 
parking lot on the north side of the building to within 10’ of the north property line and 
21’-8” to the east property line where Section 30.20.09 requires a 50’ front setback and  

 6



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                        OCTOBER 17, 2006 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Paragraph L of Section 31.30.00 requires that the front yard remain free of parking and 
maneuvering lanes until the meeting of November 21, 2006. 
 

• Petitioner will determine if they can eliminate parking spaces in order to make 
reduce the size of this variance request. 

 
Yeas:  6 – Hutson, Kovacs, Littman, Maxwell, Courtney, Fejes 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE THIS REQUEST UNTIL NOVEMBER 21, 2006 CARRIED 
 
ITEM #3 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  YEN CHEN, 4679 JOHN R., for relief of the 
Ordinance to construct an addition at the rear of his home that would result in a 26’ rear 
yard setback, where Section 30.10.04 requires a 40’ minimum rear yard setback in the 
R-1C Zoning District. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
an addition at the rear of his existing home.  The site plan submitted indicates the 
proposed three-season enclosure will result in a 26’ rear yard setback.  Section 
30.10.04 requires a 40’ minimum rear yard setback in the R-1C Zoning District.  
 
This item last appeared before this Board at the meeting of September 19, 2006 and 
was postponed to allow the petitioner the opportunity to explore other options regarding 
this sunroom and if possible to make the variance request smaller. 
 
Mr. Hutson explained that the Board was in receipt of a letter asking that this item be 
postponed. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Littman 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of Yen Chen, 4679 John R., for relief of the Ordinance 
to construct an addition at the rear of his home that would result in a 26’ rear yard 
setback, where Section 30.10.04 requires a 40’ minimum rear yard setback in the R-1C 
Zoning District until the meeting of November 21, 2006. 
 

• At the request of the petitioner. 
 
Yeas:  6 – Kovacs, Littman, Maxwell, Courtney, Fejes, Hutson 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE THIS REQUEST UNTIL NOVEMBER 21, 2006 CARRIED 
 
ITEM #4 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  JOHN KUHN, 2172 E. WATTLES, for relief of the 
Ordinance to maintain a shed constructed in the front yard, where Section 40.56.02 
prohibits the location of a shed in any yard except a rear yard. 

 7



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                        OCTOBER 17, 2006 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to maintain 
a shed constructed in the front yard of this property.  Section 40.56.02 prohibits the 
location of a shed in any yard except a rear yard. 
 
Mr. John Kuhn was present and stated that he and his wife had purchased this home 
approximately 3 years ago and the landscaping makes it almost impossible to get the 
shed from the front to the back.  The shed is not visible from any of the roads. 
Construction of the addition to the house took over a year.  This shed has been there for 
a long time and no one had ever noticed it before.   
 
Mr. Fejes asked what the shed is used for.  Mr. Kuhn said that it is pretty full with 
gardening equipment, which includes a garden tractor.   
 
Mr. Hutson asked if it had a foundation.  Mr. Kuhn said that originally the shed was just 
placed on the ground, but he had added a circular drive and added a rat wall at that 
time.  Mr. Kuhn also said that the neighbors would rather have the shed in this location 
rather then at the back of the lot.  There are no fences and the shed in the back would 
be very visible. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that he drives by this house everyday and has never seen the shed 
and asked Mr. Kuhn to explain why it can’t be moved to the back.  Mr. Kuhn said that 
there are a number of trees and shrubs and there is no way to get the shed around 
these trees. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked what will happen when the road is widened.  Mr. Kuhn said that he 
did not think they would remove the mature trees along Wattles Road in order to widen 
the road.   
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if the shed would have to be removed if Wattles Road is widened.  
Mr. Stimac said that if the property is purchased and the right of way line is moved to 
the 60’ line, the City would purchase the property from the petitioner.  Mr. Kovacs asked 
if they would go around this property.  Mr. Stimac said that he was unable to say what 
the future design of the road would be.  Mr. Kovacs said that if the trees are removed, 
the shed should be removed.  Mr. Stimac said that if Wattles goes to five lanes it is 31’ 
from the section line to the south curb if the road is kept centered.  If it is widened as is 
planned, Mr. Stimac’s opinion was that the trees would be removed. 
 
Mr. Kuhn said that if the road is widened, his driveway would be taken out also.  Mr. 
Hutson said that the Board cannot consider these options since it has not happened yet. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are two (2) written approvals on file.  There are no written objections on file. 

 8



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                        OCTOBER 17, 2006 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if they could put in a provision that the shed remain screened.  Mr. 
Kuhn said they are evergreens and have been there a long time.  Mr. Stimac said that if 
the Board felt that the screening of the shed by the existing trees was an existing 
condition justifying the variance could make a condition of the action that the shed 
remain screened. 
 
Motion by Kovacs 
Supported by Courtney 
 
MOVED, to grant John Kuhn, 2172 E. Wattles, relief of the Ordinance to maintain a 
shed constructed in the front yard, where Section 40.56.02 prohibits the location of a 
shed in any yard except a rear yard. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance does not permit the establishment of a prohibited use in a Zoning 

District. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Literal enforcement of the Ordinance makes conforming unnecessarily 

burdensome. 
• Existing trees keep the shed from being seen from adjacent property. 
• Shed will continue to be screened by landscaping. 

 
Yeas:  6 – Littman, Maxwell, Courtney, Fejes, Hutson, Kovacs 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #5 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  DENNIS SIAVRAKAS, 338 OLYMPIA 
(PROPOSED ADDRESS), for relief of the Ordinance to split an existing parcel of land 
that will result in a 59.27’ lot width, where Section 30.10.09 requires a 60’ wide minimum 
lot width for single-family homes at this location, which is zoned R-2. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to split a 
158.77 wide parcel of land at 330 Olympia into two parcels, one 99.5’ wide containing 
the existing home and the other 59.27’ wide proposed to be the site for a new single 
family residence.  Section 30.10.09 requires a minimum lot width of 60’ for single-family 
homes constructed in R-2 Zoned property. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if the petitioner could put the house on a 60’ lot and have the 
variance given to the setback of the existing house.  Mr. Stimac said that there are two 
ways that the petitioner could request a variance.  The first way is to consider a setback 
variance from the existing house, and the second is to ask for a lot that will result in a 
59.27’ lot width.  Mr. Courtney said that he personally would rather see a 60’ lot. 
 
 

 9



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                        OCTOBER 17, 2006 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Siavrakas was present and stated that they have an opportunity to build a beautiful 
home in a vibrant community.  The plat was recorded in 1917 with the intent of having a 
new home on each of three (3) lots.  If the variance is granted, this lot would fit in well 
with the neighborhood, as there are lots that are only 50’ wide.  All other setbacks will 
be met and they do not plan to add a big home.  The home that is proposed is a two-
story home with a two-car attached garage.  They are trying to leave a buffer between 
this house and the property to the west that is zoned Industrial.  All utilities are available 
and Mr. Siavrakas said that he had spoken to the neighbors and has received approval 
from them as they believe this will be an improvement to the area.  Mr. Siavrakas said 
that he lives in a home that is on a 40’ wide lot and when adding, fences, air 
conditioners, etc., the area between the homes becomes very close. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that they could take 1’ away from the house next door and he did not 
believe this would be a hardship.  Mr. Siavrakas said that they would not be opposed to 
this solution. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There is one (1) written approval on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
Motion by Kovacs 
Supported by Maxwell 
 
MOVED, to grant Dennis Siavrakas, 338 Olympia (proposed address), relief of the 
Ordinance to split an existing parcel of land that will result in a 59.27’ lot width, where 
Section 30.10.09 requires a 60’ wide minimum lot width for single-family homes in the 
R-2 Zoning District. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance does not establish a prohibited use in a Zoning District. 
• Variance will add a buffer for this home, which is next to Industrial property. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Denial will preclude full enjoyment of the permitted use of the property. 

 
Yeas:  5 – Maxwell, Fejes, Hutson, Kovacs, Littman 
Nays:  1 – Courtney 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
Mr. Stimac informed the Board that he had given them a copy of the updates for 
Chapter 39.  Two text amendments have recently been approved by City Council.   One 
of them has an effective date of October 1st and involves changes in procedure brought 
on by changes in the State Zoning Enabling Act.  The second change that was 

 10



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                        OCTOBER 17, 2006 

approved by City Council on September 18th does not go into effect until January 1, 
2007.  This is Section 43.74.00, and is a new provision of the Ordinance that gives the 
Board of Zoning Appeals the power to grant variances to allow the parking of 
commercial vehicles on residential property.  There are specific standards that apply to 
the parking of commercial vehicles.  Also, there is the deletion of Article 44, which is the 
power of City Council to hear commercial vehicle appeals and also the deletion of the 
power of City Council to hear parking variances. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if there is a new definition of commercial vehicles.  Mr. Stimac said 
that at this time there is not, but what is being looked at is what commercial vehicles are 
allowed on the site and what commercial vehicles would require a variance.  It is hoped 
that these revisions will be in place as of January 1st. 
 
Mr. Fejes asked how this procedure will work, if it is an existing vehicle or if it is a 
vehicle coming into the area.  Mr. Stimac said that in the past we have had people come 
in that are looking at buying a house and asked in advance for permission to park a 
commercial vehicle on the property.  There are also many times that there are violations 
already on the site determined by the Code Enforcement officers at that time a variance 
is requested.  There is a two-year maximum time frame on these variance requests and 
the Board will act on any existing approvals as they expire. 
 
Mr. Littman said that it is not always obvious whether a vehicle is a commercial vehicle 
or not.  Mr. Stimac said that the Planning Commission is developing the Ordinance 
language under which the requirements for appeals will be based. 
 
The Board of Zoning Appeals meeting adjourned at 9:00 P.M. 
 
 
 
              
       Michael Hutson, Chairman 
 
 
 
              
       Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 

 11



SPECIAL MEETING 
BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS                                         OCTOBER 18, 2006 

 
Mr. Rick Sinclair, Acting Chairman, called the special meeting of the Building Code 
Board of Appeals to order at 8:35 A.M. on Wednesday, October 18, 2006 in Conference 
Room C of the Troy City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:  Rick Kessler 
   Tim Richnak 
   Rick Sinclair 
   Frank Zuazo 
 
ABSENT:  Ted Dziurman 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
   Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ITEM #2 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  GEORGE ST. PIERRE, EXHIBIT WORKS, 446 K 
W. FOURTEEN MILE, for relief of Section 402.5.1 of the Michigan Building Code to 
construct a tenant space within the existing mall resulting in a mall width of 17’ where 
20’ is required. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is proposing to construct a new freestanding 
tenant space within a portion of the existing Oakland Mall.  This type of space would 
normally be referred to as a “kiosk” and be subject to the requirements of Section 
402.10 of the Michigan Building Code.  However, Paragraph 4 of Section 402.10 limits 
the size of kiosks to not more than 300 square feet in area.  The Code does permit 
tenant spaces to be constructed within the mall, not subject to the 300 square foot 
limitation, as long as the regular “mall” provisions apply to the area around the tenant 
space.  Section 402.5.1 requires that the width of the mall be a minimum of 20’.  In this 
area the existing mall width is 50’.  With the construction of this 16’ wide tenant space in 
the middle of the mall, the width of the mall on either side will only be 17’. 
 
Dino Rotondo representing Exhibit Works was present and stated that their business is 
basically an entertainment business.  They are working with a large group of companies 
and basically work on the retail of wireless products.  This project would be the first of 
its kind in the country.  Their approach is to create a destination for kids and will provide 
a lounge like atmosphere so that they can spend time there.  They will be able to 
download wallpaper, mobile phone ring tones and also be able to burn CD’s.  Mr. 
Rotondo also said that this exhibit will bring technology groups from around the world to 
look at it. 
 
George St. Pierre was also present and stated that this tenant space will be open on all 
sides.  People will be able to pass through it from any side. 
 
Mr. Kessler stated that the basic difference between this space and a Kiosk is that this 
is an open space where a Kiosk is closed in.  Mr. Kessler asked about the display items 
and hours of operation.  Mr. Rotondo said that the displays are wall mounted and this 
tenant space will be open the same hours as the mall. 

 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-01s



SPECIAL MEETING 
BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS                                         OCTOBER 18, 2006 

 
 
ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Michael Thoreson, Vice President of Exhibit Works was also present and stated that this 
structure would be very open and airy.   
 
Mr. Richnak asked how the space was closed at night.  Mr. St. Pierre said that there are 
sliding mall doors that are designed to open and shut, and at night, these doors will be 
locked. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked if they had any plans to add to the display.  Mr. Rotondo said that 
they do not perceive adding any displays.  The showcases are very small and all will be 
hard wired. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked about the space between the display cases.  Mr. St. Pierre said that 
they are all ADA compliant and that the entrances have ramps, which are also ADA 
compliant. 
 
Mr. Richnak also asked if this was the same exhibit that they would put in malls across 
the country.  Mr. Thoresen stated that this was the design standard that they would like 
to use, as it would create recognition of the space. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked where the petitioner would store the extra items.  Mr. Rotondo said 
that the main warehouse is on Fourteen Mile and Stephenson, and they also have 
another space in Roseville.  The columns also have storage areas in them and they can 
utilize storage space within the mall.  Mr. Kessler confirmed that they are using fire 
retardant storage. 
 
Mr. Stimac asked if the floor material outside the space was different from the existing 
mall floor and Mr. Thoresen said it was not.   
 
Mr. Stimac asked if there was a stipulation in the lease that this structure would have to 
be removed, if this tenant were to vacate the space.  Mr. Chas Miller, Property Manager 
for Oakland Mall was present and stated that in the event this tenant would leave, the 
structure would have to be taken down. 
 
Mr. Jerry Hamling, of Exhibit Works was present, said that according to the lease this is 
a tenant fixture, belonging to the tenant, and would have to be removed.  Mr. Stimac 
then asked if they would be able to sub lease this space.  Mr. Hamling said that the 
contract is very specific that they cannot sub lease.   
 
Mr. Stimac asked if there was a time limit in the lease regarding them removing this 
structure, if they were to vacate the space.  Mr. Hamling said there was not.  Their lease 
is for five (5) years and they are hoping to become long-term tenants of Troy. 
 
 

 2



SPECIAL MEETING 
BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS                                         OCTOBER 18, 2006 

 
ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked what the elevation of the floor was.  Mr. Thoresen said that it sits on 
top of Terrazzo and is elevated 3” and the entire space is ADA compliant. They have 
constructed the site so that the electricity comes up from the floor through the columns. 
 
Mr. Chas Miller stated that Oakland Mall is very much in favor of this request.  It is very 
difficult to operate a retail business and he believes that this exhibit will attract 
customers to the mall.  In his opinion this is an exciting tenant and he believes it will be 
an asset to Oakland Mall.  They have met the intent of the Code with the design of this 
space and there will be two (2) 17’ aisle ways. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked about the 20’ requirement.  Mr. Stimac explained that the process 
began in the early to mid 70’s with the National Building Code.  At that time the trend 
went from open-air retail shopping centers to enclosed malls.  The width of the mall was 
discussed and basically they came up with 20’ required between tenant spaces.  
Because this structure is considerably over the 300 square feet allowed for a Kiosk, it 
was determine that a 15% reduction in required mall width was the lesser variance 
request.   Basically this is similar to creating a mall within a mall. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked if they could approve this request while stipulating a time frame, 
such as 30 days, for removal of the structure if this tenant vacates the space.  Mr. 
Stimac said that the Board could put in such a stipulation. 
 
Mr. Thoresen stated that stated this space was designed to go up quickly and to be 
taken down quickly.  They would not have a problem with the stipulation of a time frame. 
 
Mr. Miller indicated that he feels a 30-day time frame would be very reasonable and the 
Mall would support a stipulation that addressed this issue. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked again about the hours of operation and Mr. Hamling indicated that 
they are under obligation to keep their store open during the hours the mall is open. 
 
Mr. Zuazo asked if they were allowed to sublease this space.  Mr. Hamling stated that 
this was not in their contract. 
 
Mr. Miller said that he was concerned about vandalism and Mr. Thoresen said that they 
could put the moveable items into storage at the end of the day and bring them out in 
the morning.  Mr. Thoresen indicated that there is someone there between the hours of 
7 AM and 10 PM. 
 
Mr. Stimac asked what the time frame for construction of this space was.  Mr. Thoresen 
said that it takes between five and seven days to put the structure up and less time to 
take it down. 
 
 

 3



SPECIAL MEETING 
BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS                                         OCTOBER 18, 2006 

 
ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Richnak 
 
MOVED, to grant George St. Pierre, Exhibit Works, 446 K W. Fourteen Mile, relief of 
Section 402.5.1 of the Michigan Building Code to construct a tenant space within the 
existing mall resulting in a mall width of 17’ where 20’ is required. 
 

• The provision of (2) 17’ wide malls in close proximity provides an equivalent 
level of safety to a single mall 20’ in width. 

• Space to remain open during the operating hours of the mall. 
• All removable items to be placed in storage at the time the store is closed. 
• If this tenant vacates this space, the space is to be removed within thirty (30)- 

days. 
 
Yeas:  4 – Richnak, Sinclair, Zuazo, Kessler 
Absent: 1 – Dziurman 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
The special meeting of the Building Code Board of Appeals ended at 9:14 A.M. 
 
 
 
              
       Rick Sinclair, Acting Chairman 
 
 
 
              
       Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
 
 

 4



TROY CABLE ADVISORY COMMITTEE – DRAFT OCTOBER 19,, 2006 

CABLE ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
Thursday, October 19, 2006 – 7 p.m. 
Conference Room C - Troy City Hall 

 
 
Call to Order 
 
The regular meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. at Troy City Hall. 
 
Roll Order 

 
Richard Hughes Kent Voigt 
Penny Marinos Bryan Wehrung 
Lisa Martinico Cindy Stewart, City Liaison 
Brian Wattles Alan Manzon 
Nancy Chen, Student rep 

 
Approval of Minutes 
 
Approval of minutes of the Regular meeting of May 18, 2006 – motion by  
Martinico, seconded by Manzon.  Approved unanimously. 
 
Introduction of New Student Rep 
Nancy Chen – 10th grader at Troy High.  Very impressive resume, well rounded 
student with strong recommendations from teachers.  Members welcomed Nancy 
to the Committee. 
 
Correspondence 
 
A. WideOpenWest – JD Powers & Associates Rank WOW! Highest among 

High-speed Internet Providers – September 20, 2006 –  
56% of residential ISP customers subscribe to high-speed internet service (up 
11% from 2005).  Average amount subscribers spend per month for high- 
speed internet service has decreased since 2004 by $1.99.  J.D. Powers 
looks at 7 factors:  performance reliability, cost of service, image, customer 
service/technical support, billing, email services and offerings/promotions. 

 
B. Comcast – Channel Line-up changes – September 14, 2006 –  

Effective 10-16-06, Comcast will reposition Bridges TV to their digital classic 
program tier.  This is a Muslim-American community channel.  AZN (Asian 
Americans) moving from Channel 108 to 191. 

 
C. WideOpenWest – JD Power & Associates Announce WOW! Earns Top 

Carrier Position in 2006 Cable/Satellite Satisfaction Survey – Aug. 16, 2006 –  

campbellld
Text Box
J-01t



TROY CABLE ADVISORY COMMITTEE – DRAFT OCTOBER 19,, 2006 

Top carrier position on the 2006 cable/satellite satisfaction survey for second 
year in row.  WOW! serves customers in metro areas of Detroit, Chicago, 
Columbus and Cleveland.  Definitely a growing company. 

 
D. Comcast – Updated Privacy Policy – June 26, 2006 –  

Sent to customers annually.  Subscribers entitled under Section 631 of the 
Cable Communications Privacy Act of 1984 (the cable act).  If customer’s 
information is breached, are they liable to tell customers?  No, not in 
Michigan.  We do not have a law unlike California. 

 
E. Comcast – Multiple Options for Paying Cable Bill and Channel Changes -  

May 26, 2006 –  
Options include mailing a check, charge on credit card, automatic withdrawal 
from back account, pay online or pay in person at one of the service centers.  
Customers may also make payments via phone.  All options will continue to 
be available but effective July 15, 2006, a processing charge of $1.99 will be 
added for customers who elect to call and have their payment processed by a 
live agent instead of using the automated payment system.  Additionally, 
some channels will be repositioned (Cspan2, MGTV and Hallmark) and 3 
digital channels will be added (Current TV, Gospel Music Network, and 
Daystar). 

 
Articles 
 
A. Foster Cable Competition with Less State Regulation – Editorial: Detroit News 

– October 3, 2006.  Michigan’s outdated cable franchising system is finally 
getting some attention.  Technological advancements and an outdated, 
uncompetitive system justify a change.  Overall rates show significant 
increases.  In Troy, cable customers pay an average of $43.49/month, 
compared with $20 in 1991.  The legislature should revamp the state’s 
archaic cable franchise system. 

 
B. Voters have time to pressure legislators on cable measures – Editorial: 

Oakland Press – September 28, 2006.   Legislators are very close to a 
decision on cable legislation that would allow phone companies such as  
AT&T to come into the state and compete for Michigan’s cable TV dollars.  
House Bill 6456 and SB1157 would place control of cable services in the 
hands of the state rather than local communities.  The legislation would also 
give regulation authority to the Secretary of State. 

 
C. Other States Take the Lead in Cable Franchise Reform – Troy Eccentric 

Sept. 24, 2006.  Opinion by Brian Meakin, Livonia City councilman.  He states 
that passing legislation that would promote competition, lower prices, better 
services and provide a substantial capital investment is not only a shot in the 
arm for Michigan’s economy, but is also a building block in securing 
Michigan’s future. 



TROY CABLE ADVISORY COMMITTEE – DRAFT OCTOBER 19,, 2006 

 
D.  JD Power & Associates Reports:  Although cable continues to lose market 

share to satellite providers, cable subscribers are switching to digital service 
at a rapid rate – August 16, 2006.  Although Cable TV service continues to 
lose market share to satellite, penetration of digital cable has increased 11%.  
Currently, 29% of US households subscribe to satellite service, up 2% from 
2005, while 58% of households subscribe only to cable, down from 60% in 
one 2005 study. 

 
E. AT & Ts Video Service – New York Times – June 27, 2006.  In San Antonio, 

TX, customers are happy with AT&T’s new television service, U-verse.  While 
traditional cable and phone services run on separate lines, U-verse crams 
video, data, and in time, phone calls down one high speed broadband line.  
Introduced in San Antonio in June, 2006, the service allows users to view 
multiple channels at once, get information about programs instantly and 
eventually access some internet via their television.  Everyone wants a major 
share of the market.  As more and more players come in what will drive it?  
Price - - content!  Check out U-Tube and My Space.   

 
There are other interests moving into this arena.  An alternative will be offered 
first to businesses and then to residential.  No more information available, but 
it will be coming within a year.  Technology is marching on. 

 
Tech shows - IPTV, wireless, cell phones – people are looking at new 
technology.  Companies need to determine what the next generation wants – 
how they will want to receive their information.  Cell phones will offer much 
more in the near future. 
 
Including video, entertainment via cell phones.  Are cable companies, network 
TV a thing of the past?  Nancy said her friends are using cell phones and  
I-Pods for more.  People can watch top TV programs now on their computers 
via the internet.  A whole new world of information is coming.   
 

New Business   
 
Budget:  City budget is July 1 – June 30.  This budget year we are installing 
remote two-camera system in lower level conference room.  We are also 
looking to replace our playback system. The existing one is very old and 
we’re starting to have problems. 
 
House Bill 6456 - HB-6456 would reduce funding between 30% and 50%, 
Limit our channel capacity and force us to buy costly transmission equipment 
and expensive data lines.   CAC members should write letters to legislators 
and spread the message to citizens that they can pursue communication with 
their legislature related to HB 6456.  It appears that things will move very 
quickly after the November election. 



TROY CABLE ADVISORY COMMITTEE – DRAFT OCTOBER 19,, 2006 

 
Bryan will draft a letter from the CAC and seek input from the other members 
before sending on to council and legislators. 
 
 

Old Business 
 
Report on web publications from members. 
 
Lisa Martinico – article from the Columbus Dispatch “Unsightly Big Boxes 
Herald New Technology.”   The article addresses the fact that AT&T has 
installed these unsightly, refrigerator-size boxes on front lawns throughout 
Westerville, Ohio.  

 
MML – local officials stop cable franchise vote in Michigan, Sept. 21, 2006.  
Considered a huge victory, local officials stopped a full House vote on 
HB6456.  After hundreds of phone calls and letters by local leaders, the 
legislature decided to wait until after the November election to continue 
discussions on the bill.   
 
MML – HB 6456 breaks all existing franchise contracts, Sept. 18, 2006.  
 
 

 
Staff Report –  
 
C. WTRY Cable Guide  – a lot of new programming: Museum lectures, Troy 

Daze coverage, Library & Museum concerts.  
 

D. CAC Member Listing changes as noted. 
 

E. ICCA Meeting Notes – final – July 19, 2006 
 

Next Meeting:  Thursday, January 18, 2007 
 
Adjournment 
 

Motion to adjourn by Marinos, seconded by Manzon.  Meeting adjourned at 
8:37 p.m. 

 
________________________________________ 
Brian Wehrung, Chairman 
 
________________________________________ 
Cindy Stewart, Staff Liaison                                                                                                          

 



ELECTION COMMISSION MINUTES – Draft October 23, 2006 
 
A meeting of the Troy Election Commission was held Monday, October 23, 2006, at City 
Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road. City Clerk Bartholomew called the Meeting to order at 
5:01 P.M. 

ROLL CALL:  
PRESENT:  David Anderson, Timothy Dewan, City Clerk Tonni Bartholomew 
ABSENT:  None 
ALSO PRESENT: Deputy City Clerk Barbara Holmes 

Minutes: Regular Meeting of October 2, 2006  
 
Resolution #EC-2006-10-12 
Motion by Anderson 
Seconded by Dewan 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of Monday, October 2, 2006, are APPROVED as 
submitted. 
 
Yes:  Anderson, Dewan, Bartholomew 
No:  None 

Approval of Election Receiving Board Assignments for the November 7, 2006 
General Election 
 
Resolution #EC-2006-10-13 
Motion by Dewan 
Seconded by Anderson 
 
RESOLVED, That Election Receiving Board be appointed for the Tuesday, November 7, 
2006 Election, as presented by the City Clerk, is hereby APPROVED. 
 
Yes:  Anderson, Dewan, Bartholomew 
No:  None 

Adjournment:  
 
The meeting was adjourned at 5:04 P.M. 
 
 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01u



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT OCTOBER 24, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Vice Chair Schultz at 7:30 p.m. on October 24, 2006 in the Council Board Room of the 
Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Lynn Drake-Batts Thomas Strat 
Mary Kerwin Wayne Wright 
Fazal Khan 
Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz 
Mark J. Vleck 
David T. Waller 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-10-179 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, That Members Strat and Wright are excused from attendance at this 
meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Strat, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-10-180 
Moved by: Khan 
Seconded by: Kerwin 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as presented.  
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Strat, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01v



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT OCTOBER 24, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

3. MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-10-181 
Moved by:  Khan 
Seconded by: Kerwin 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the October 3, 2006 Special/Study meeting and October 10, 
2006 Regular meeting minutes as published. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Strat, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT (Items Not on the Agenda) 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

5. BOARD OF ZONING (BZA) APPEALS REPORT 
 
Mr. Littman reported on the October 17, 2006 Board of Zoning Appeals meeting. 
 
 

6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 
 
Mr. Miller reported the October 18, 2006 Downtown Development Authority meeting 
was cancelled.  
 
 

7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 
 
Mr. Miller reported on the following: 
 
• City Council action items: 

o Z 714, The Enclave Senior Housing – denied. 
o ZOTA 226, Medical Equipment Sales in O-1 – approved. 
o SP 883-C, Heartland Health Care Preliminary Site Plan – granted. 
o Z 632-B, Grand Troy Villas – postponed.   

• Restructure of City Departments.   
 
There was discussion on the Hooters restaurant at Big Beaver and Rochester 
Road.  



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT OCTOBER 24, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

8. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SU 330) – Proposed Addition to Infiniti-Hyundai Automotive 
Dealership, West side of Maplelawn between Maple and Crooks, Section 29, Zoned 
M-1 (Light Industrial) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed site plan, and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to 
approve the site plan as submitted.   
 
The petitioner, Stanley Tkacz of Studio Design-ST, 1529 S. Wayne Road, 
Westland, was present.  Mr. Tkacz addressed the landscape plan and the City 
Environmental Specialist’s review comments.   
 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-10-182 
Moved by:  Waller 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as requested for the proposed 
Hyundai Dealership expansion, located on the west side of Maplelawn, north of 
Maple, Section 29, within the M-1 Zoning District, be granted.   
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Strat, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

9. BEAUMONT HOSPITAL – Proposed William Beaumont Hospital Improvements, 
West side of Dequindre, South of South Boulevard, Section 1, E-P and C-F 
 
Jim Lemire of Harley Ellis Devereaux and John Krolicki of Beaumont Hospital were 
present.  A short presentation was made and a development timetable was 
distributed.   
 
General discussion followed.   
 
Vice Chair Schultz opened the floor for public comment. 
 
James Grix of 2508 Coral Drive, Troy, was present to represent Stoneridge No. 1 
homeowners association.  Mr. Grix addressed traffic, synchronization of traffic signals, 
installation of sidewalks and access off of South Boulevard.  
 
The floor was closed. 
 
Mr. Lemire said concerns expressed by Stoneridge residents are being addressed.  
He assured that sidewalks would be installed, and traffic would be managed with the 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT OCTOBER 24, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

creation of a loop road.  Mr. Lemire indicated he would forward the concern on the 
synchronization of traffic signals to the Road Commission of Oakland County (RCOC).   
 
Vice Chair Schultz advised the authoritative body on sidewalk issues is the City’s 
Traffic Committee.  He also addressed the South Boulevard entrance.   
 
 

10. REZONING REQUEST (Z 180-B) – Proposed Binson’s Home Health Care Center, 
Northwest corner of Rochester and Marengo, Section 3 – R-1B to B-1 
 
Mr. Miller reported that City Council remanded rezoning request Z180-B to the 
Planning Commission to consider rezoning the parcel to O-1 Low Rise Office.  He 
announced a public hearing is scheduled for the November 14, 2006 Planning 
Commission Regular meeting. 
 
 

11. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 215-B) – Article 40.66.00, 
Pertaining to the Outdoor Parking of Commercial Vehicles in Residential Districts 
 
Mr. Savidant reviewed the status of the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment 
relating to parking of commercial vehicles in residential districts.   
 
A general discussion followed on results/comparisons of the survey, regulation 
criteria and definition of commercial vehicle.   
 
Vice Chair Schultz reported a petition signed by 24 realtors in opposition of allowing 
commercial vehicles to park in residential neighborhoods was received prior to the 
beginning of tonight’s meeting.  
 
 

12. REPORT ON ROCHESTER ROAD OVERLAY DISTRICT – FUTURE LAND USE 
PLAN AMENDMENT 
 
Mr. Miller reported the Planning Department has received support on the proposed 
Plan amendment from various abutting communities and Oakland County.  He said 
a public hearing is scheduled for the December 12, 2006 Planning Commission 
Regular meeting.   
 

 
13. PLANNING COMMISSION SCHEDULE – 2007 – Cancellation of Meeting Dates 

Scheduled on Election Days (May 8, August 7 and November 6, 2007) 
 
Mr. Miller addressed the meeting date conflicts in the 2007 Planning Commission 
meeting schedule. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT OCTOBER 24, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2006-10-183 
Moved by:  Kerwin 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
WHEREAS, There is a Planning Commission Regular meeting scheduled for May 
8, 2007; and 
 
WHEREAS, There are Planning Commission Special/Study meetings scheduled for 
August 7, 2007 and November 6, 2007; and 
 
WHEREAS, There will be no meeting rooms available in Troy City Hall on May 8, 
2007, August 7, 2007 or November 6, 2007 because of scheduled elections; 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, The Planning Commission hereby cancels the 
Planning Commission meetings scheduled for May 8, 2007, August 7, 2007, and 
November 6, 2007. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, The Planning Commission hereby reschedules the 
May Regular Meeting to May 1, 2007 at 7:30 p.m. at the City Council Chambers at 
Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road, Troy, Michigan. 
 
Yes: Drake-Batts, Kerwin, Khan, Littman, Schultz, Vleck 
No: Waller 
Absent: Strat, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Waller said places in Troy could be found that have electricity, lights and toilets 
to hold meetings, and indicated the Planning Commission could lose its 
effectiveness if it keeps canceling meetings like the Downtown Development 
Authority (DDA).   
 
 

14. PRELIMINARY REPORT FROM HISTORIC HOMES STUDY COMMITTEE – 
Freeman Property (2955 East Quail Run Drive) 
 
Mr. Miller briefly reviewed the homeowner’s request to eliminate the historic district 
designation of their property.   
 
Resolution # PC-2006-10-184 
Moved by:  Kerwin 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, To recommend that 2955 East Quail Run Drive be de-listed. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT OCTOBER 24, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Strat, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

 
___________ 

 
Vice Chair Schultz requested a recess at 8:42 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 8:48 p.m. 

___________ 
 

 
15. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 212-B) – Articles 25.00.00, 

26.00.00, 27.00.00 – Improving design and strengthening the relationship of 
freestanding restaurants, day care centers and banks with the abutting streets in the 
R-C, O-M, and O-S-C Zoning Districts 
 
Mr. Savidant reviewed the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment.   
 
General discussion followed.  The Planning Department will incorporate changes to 
the text and complete the glossary of green design terms for review at a future 
study meeting.   
 
 

16. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 225) – Amendments to Article 
XXXV, Planned Unit Development Provisions 
 
Mr. Savidant reviewed the status of the proposed zoning ordinance text 
amendment.  Draft language will be prepared and reviewed at a future study 
meeting.   
 
 

OTHER ITEMS 
 

17. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

18. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
There were no comments.   



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT OCTOBER 24, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 7 - 
 

ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 9:08 p.m. 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Thomas Strat, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2006 PC Minutes\Draft\10-24-06 Special Study Meeting_Draft.doc 
 
 



TROY DAZE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES DRAFT        OCT. 24, 2006 

 1

CALL TO ORDER 
 
A regular meeting of the Troy Daze Festival Committee was held Tuesday, October 24, 
2006 at the Troy Community Center. Meeting was called to order at 7:05 pm. 

 
 
ROLL CALL 
 

Jeff Stewart Cheryl Whitton  
Bob Berk (7:12 pm) Marilyn Musick 
Kessie Kaltsounis Bill Hall 
Mike Gonda Bob Preston (7:10 pm) 
Cele Dilley Danielle Cheli 
Kasey Wang Connie Huang 
Tom Kaszubski Tom Duszynski 
Padma Kuppa Diane Mitchell 
Doris Schuchter Poncho Massaini 
Sandy Macknis Tom Tighe 
Dan O’Brien  
 
City Staff: 
Gerry Scherlinck  
Cindy Stewart  
Bob Matlick  
Jeff Biegler 
 

 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Moved by Kessie Kaltsounis 
Seconded by Mike Gonda                           
to approve the August 22, 2006 festival Committee minutes   
RESOLVED that the minutes of the August 22, 2006 Festival Committee Meeting are 
approved. 
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
TREASURER’S REPORT  
 
Next week chairpersons will be sent budget reports regarding expenses and revenue.  
Cheryl  is asking for projections for 2007.  Send information prior to November 28, 2006 
meeting. 

 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01w



TROY DAZE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES DRAFT        OCT. 24, 2006 

 2

 
EVENT WRAP UP – Need event chairperson’s reports by November meeting.  
 
CORRESPONDENCE 
 

a.  Thank you letter to committee and volunteers from Barbara Harrell from the 
Clawson –Troy Republican Club. 

b. Letter of appreciation from Ice Cream Express, one of our food vendors to 
festival volunteers. 

 
NEW BUSINESS  
 

1. Chairpersons Reports: 
 

Connie Huang & Kasey Wang, PA Announcements:  Everything went very 
smoothly.  Both will return for 2007.   

 
   Danielle Cheli, Miss Troy: No problems, it was a wonderful event - five new 

reigning queens.  Great video!  Everyone loved watching it.   All queens were in 
Troy and Athens Homecoming Parades. They are 

   excited about upcoming holiday tree lighting.  Danielle will be back in 2007.  
Susan will not.  Danielle’s mom might help.  No problems with an outdoor 
venue.  But in case of bad weather, there could be problems.  We were maxed 
out at 31 contestants for the Junior Miss Pageants.  We do need more 
contestants for Miss Troy. 

  
Padma Kuppa, EthniCity: Ethnic Issues Advisory Board’s first year  sponsoring 
EthniCity.  Nine booths this year, down from 2005.  Idea to open the tent sides 
for 2007 to give booths more visibility.  Will contact countries more 
aggressively.  A link between Ethnic Entertainment and EthniCity might get 
more participation.  Build bridges with the school district foreign language clubs.   
Padma will not be the chair in 2007.  It will be one of the other EIA board 
members. 

 
 China was upset they did not have a sign in front of their flag.  We might need 

someone to be flag chair.  Also need to redo all signs that go into the ground in 
front of the flags.  This should be a budget item for 2007. 

 
 Doris Schuchter – Thanks to Cindy S for her assistance with EthniCity. 
 
 Sandy Macknis, Student Volunteers:  We had great participation from the 

students.  Total of 300 students (210 Troy High,  58 Athens, 20 International 
Academy &  12 Walk-ins). 

 
 Suggestions:  Next year suggest same color shirts, but more small sizes.  

Complaints from student volunteers related to having to pay for parking.  



TROY DAZE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES DRAFT        OCT. 24, 2006 

 3

 Many event chairs did not give Sandy their volunteer needs (numbers).  Should 
be a separate color shirts for students and adult volunteers. 

 
 Sandy went to both high schools and international academy orientations to 

recruit kids.  Applications will all be sent to City Hall  - easier to manage.  Sandy 
will be back in 2007 as student volunteer coordinator. 

 
 Sandy will call all event chairpersons regarding student volunteer needs. 

Might need less volunteers in 2007.  Students were all very well behaved.  It 
worked well to have student check-in tables under the tent outside of festival 
headquarters. 

 
 Jeff Stewart, Special Needs Adults Event: Very successful.  160 participants in 

2006 vs. 110 participants 2005.  Highlights – music by special needs 
musicians.  Volunteers did a great job.  Suggestions: find a way not to charge 
volunteers parking fees. 

 
 Jeff will chair in 2007, Sandy as co-chair.  Special needs children – great event 

same musicians pickup/drop off great.   
 
 Jeff Stewart, Entertainment: Good input, well received by festivalgoers.   One 

problem, difficult for people, especially persons with disabilities to enter tent 
due to all the tables at entrances.  Stadium seating would be more inviting for 
entertainment tent with tables on east and west sides. 

 Mike Gonda - We could have a main entrance if you remove 2 poles at 
entrance.  Move tables after the pancake breakfast. 

 
 Mike Gonda, Operations: Drawings revised - tents, parking, signage, maps and 

disc presented to Cheryl Whitton from Mike.   
 

Changes this year included: Snow fence Crooks Road to midway; 50 ft. aisle 
for golf carts; doubled the amount of lighting; commercial parking on south 
fence; bungi cards on tent flaps; relocated port-a-potties; relocated information 
booth; (ran out of helium); big tent on Friday; striped others Sunday and set up 
on Monday; switched photo and art tent; redesigned vendor parking and 
entrance; volunteer help in back lot; relocated banners;  cut signage by 50%;  
drop-off at Northfield Parkway; Sunday super staffed for getting vendors out; 
cans not bottles; cleaned out trailer; used new pavilion for signage; met with 
Parks and DPW each morning; met with Police each day. Closed park at 10 
p.m. and broke all records for revenue.  Poncho will mentor one more year to 
teach everyone what he does.   

 
 Cindy Stewart, Naturalization Ceremony:  Very successful event.  Judge 

Martone and Judge Lawson will be back in 2007.  We send all new citizens 
complimentary photo.  Would be nice if the politicians stayed after opening 
ceremony for this ceremony. 



TROY DAZE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES DRAFT        OCT. 24, 2006 

 4

Publicity: Great amount in all newspapers.  
Sponsorship: all money in.   

 
 Jeff Biegler:  Layout was a big improvement over 2005, more open, less 

congested.  Grounds not too damaged.  Work on the bid process earlier in Jan 
- Feb, 2007. 

 
 Petting zoo/pony rides missed in 2006.  Insurance problem from Wilson’s.  Will 

contact sooner in 2007.   
 
 Large banner at golf course and in front of City Hall needs to be replaced. 
 
 Gerry Scherlinck, Police:  virtually incident free thanks to a lot of teamwork and 

cooperation.  One arrest Thursday evening for disorderly conduct.  Very 
successful intervening to prevent problems.  

 
 Sunday night confusion regarding closing by carnival ride and game vendors.  

They thought it was when people’s tickets were gone - miscommunication with 
Arnold’s. 

 
Police costs will be more due to outside situations.  Athens High fight that was 
going to spill over to Troy Daze, but problems were avoided. 
Unrelated information from Thursday arrestee.  Police bolstered numbers to 
avoid all these problems. Gerry will adjust and separate out numbers.  Special 
needs children’s day went excellent, a very humbling event.  Overall people’s 
attitude was very upbeat.  More families coming to stay with kids and teens. 
 
9:15 – 10 p.m. was when the troublemakers and potential problems were 
coming in.  Police were able to turn them away - teens, young adults that didn’t 
even have $7 for parking – just to come hang out.  Police were able to turn 
them around.  More adults – “air of authority” the better. 

 
Bob Preston, Demographics: entering data from 600 surveys.  Adult volunteers 
as well as students took surveys. 
 
Set-up chairs and tables:  Need aisles in entrance tent.  Will contact event 
chairs regarding 2007 needs.  Appears we need more chairs overall for festival.  
Only problems during tear-down. 

 
Car show and information booth – be sure and get tables and chairs on Sunday 
evening.  By Monday they disappear. 
 
Tom Duszynski, Photography Show:  Increase in entries, more youth 
participation.  Great participation from Athens High.  Tom will try and  collect 
their entries before school gets out.  Portrait studio worked out great.  They will 
repeat in 2007, maybe with theatre props. 



TROY DAZE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES DRAFT        OCT. 24, 2006 

 5

 
Good connection with Friends of Troy Public Library.  They donated photo 
books as prizes.  This month photo winners on display at Troy Library.  Next 
year would like a website for photo entries with winners listed.  Cost would run 
approx.  $75-$100/year for a website.  Promote contest earlier.  New layout 
was great.  Tom and Tammy Duszynski  both will be  back in 2007. 
 
Dan O’Brien, Opening Ceremony:  Need list of dignitaries ahead of time.  
Problem with lights at podium. 
 
Bill Hall, Information booth: all went well.  Did run out of helium, used 3 tanks by 
Friday night.  It was a new vendor, hopefully back to same vendor as 2005. 

 
 Mr. Troy -  9 contestants in 2006.  Need entertainment between phases of the 

competition. 
 
 Cele Dilley, Senior Sensation/Pancake breakfast:   120 participants Beaumont 

did a great job.   
Booths:  84 booths, 17 food vendors, 8 outside booth vendors.  

 
 Cheryl Whitton – Less complaints regarding $7 parking fee. Publicity that 

parking fee was good for the entire weekend helped.  Start up money helped 
regarding change. 

 
 Diane Mitchell, Talent show: few glitches, but smoothed out.  Berj as the emcee 

did will, nervous at the beginning.  A lot of contestants overall, but about 25% of 
adults did not show up and didn’t call. 

 
 Suggestion to charge an application fee (if show up will be returned).  Revamp 

application and add no piano available. 
 

Kessie Kaltsounis, Headquarters:  everything went great.  Very impressed with 
the Police, especially daily meetings.  
 
Marilyn Musick, Magic Cauldron: very successful.  265 ticket sales Saturday 
and 278 ticket sales Sunday.  Didn’t lose people due to ride bracelets.  Change 
name of craft tent to separate the two.  Marilyn will be back, Janet will not be 
back. 
 

    Tom Tighe, 50/50 raffle event great – gave away $875. 
 
Bob Berk – Great job working with Police department.  Placement of port-a-
potties worked out great.  Fireworks were great.  Needed lights out on ball 
diamonds, could not find circuit breakers.  Bob chose not to have music this 
year.  It’s more trouble.  No need for sound system for this in 2007.   
 



TROY DAZE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES DRAFT        OCT. 24, 2006 

 6

Bob Matlick – More fireworks but had to put out more fires behind in 
paths/grass due to lower fireworks.   
 
Motion by Cele Dilley, seconded by Cheryl Whitton to adjourn the Festival 
Committee Meeting at  8:23 p.m. 
 

   



TROY DAZE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES DRAFT        OCT. 24, 2006 

 7

ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEETING 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
A regular meeting of the Troy Daze Advisory Committee was held Tuesday, October 24, 
2006 at the Troy Community Center. Meeting was called to order at 8:25 pm. 
 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Bob Berk Kessie Kaltsounis 
Cele Dilley Bill Hall  
Mike Gonda Jeff Stewart 
Cheryl Whitton Bob Preston  
Marilyn Musick 
 
City Staff:  
Cindy Stewart Bob Matlick 
Jeff Biegler Gerry Scherlinck 

  
Festival Chairman:    Tom Kaszubski 
 
ADDITION/DELETIONS TO AGENDA 

 
New Business 
add #4 – Appoint a representative to the Parks & Recreation Board. 
 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Resolution #TD-2006-10-104 
Moved by Mike Gonda 
Seconded by Kessie Kaltsounis                         
to approve the September 6, 2006 minutes. 

 
 

TREASURER’S REPORT 
 
September, 2006:   Revenue: $86,490.64 

Expense:  $94,037.28 
 

Resolution #TD-2006-10-105 
Motion by Bob Berk, seconded by Kessie Kaltsounis that the Treasurer’s Report of 
October 24, 2006 is approved. 
 
RESOLVED that the Treasurer’s Report of October 24, 2006 is approved. 



TROY DAZE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES DRAFT        OCT. 24, 2006 

 8

Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
MFEA Convention Attendees – no members attending this year. 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
1. Advisory Committee Officers November slate:. 

a. Chair – Cele Dilley 
b. Vice Chair – Bill Hall 
c. Treasurer – Cheryl Whitton 
d. Festival Chair – Tom Kaszubski 

 
Resolution #TD-2006-10-106 
Moved by Mike Gonda 
Seconded by Cheryl Whitton                           
Motion to approve the proposed slate of officers as listed.  

 
RESOLVED that the proposed slate of officers for 2007 is approved as stated: 
Yeas: All 
Nays: None 
Approved unanimously 

 
2. New Event Proposals 
 

Some people interested in providing a Karaoke night on Friday or Saturday night.  
This could work in case Miss Troy moves off site.   
 
Parade – Diane and Joe McKay interested in bringing this event back for 2007. 
 
Losing both car shows in 2007 – no use of both tennis courts due to resurfacing. 

 
3. 40th Anniversary Committee (Troy Daze 2008) 
 

Bring back the old games – pie eating, potato race, sack race.  Now is the time to 
plan.  Board should think about this and it will give us 2 years to plan.   

 
4. Appoint Representative to Parks and Recreation Board – send nomination to City 

Council.   
 

Cele Dilley said that Bill Hall agreed to be the representative.  Mike Gonda spoke 
up and made a motion to nominate Jeff Stewart.  A vote was called. 

 



TROY DAZE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES DRAFT        OCT. 24, 2006 

 9

Majority in favor of having Bill Hall as the Troy Daze Committee Representative 
to the Parks & Recreation Board.  

 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT  -  NONE 
 
 
MOTION TO ADJOURN 
Resolution #TD-2006-10-107 
Moved by Bob Berk 
Seconded by Cheryl Whitton 

 
RESOLVED that the Troy Daze Advisory Committee Meeting be adjourned at 8:38 p.m. 

 
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED    
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Cele Dilley, Chairperson 

 
 
 
 

_____________________________ 
Cindy Stewart, Recording Secretary 
 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – DRAFT                        Nov. 2, 2006 

1 

Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
 

A regular meeting of the Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens was held on Thursday, Nov. 2 
2006 at the Troy Community Center.  Chair Bud Black called the meeting to order at  
1:05 PM. 
 
Present: Bud Black, Member David Ogg, Member   
 Jo Rhoads, Member Pauline Noce, Member  
 James Berar, Member  JoAnn Thompson, Member    
 Merrill Dixon, Member Carla Vaughan, Staff   
 
Carla Vaughan reported that Mary Sarossy has resigned due to health problems. 
     
Absent: Frank Shier, Member    
   
Visitors:  Paula Fleming 
 
Approval of Minutes   
 
Resolution # SC-2006-11-001 
Moved by James Berar  
Seconded by Jo Rhoads  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of Oct. 5, 2006 be approved as submitted. 
 
Yes: 6       
No: 0        
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Visitor Comments 
 
None 
 
Old Business 
  
Shuffleboard and Bocce Ball:  Carla reported that construction is under way and the courts 
will be completed this fall.  Committee members will be notified if and when there is a ribbon 
cutting ceremony.  JoAnn Thompson asked that it be clarified in the newsletter that there 
would be drop-in play in addition to leagues and tournaments.   
 
Catering Service at the Community Center:  Carla reported that a memo has been prepared 
for the next council meeting (Nov 13) that asks for permission to negotiate a contract. 
 
Street Signs:  The discussion about street sign color, size, placement and visibility continued.  
Carla will ask someone from the DPW Department to attend the next meeting to discuss the 
issue. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01x



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – DRAFT                        Nov. 2, 2006 

2 

Home Repair Program:  JoAnn Thompson reported that she has used the service.  It went 
very well, and they refused to take any money.  Carla reported that the Community Foundation 
wants to support the program and that more volunteers are needed.  Jo Rhoads asked Carla 
to sign her up to volunteer.  
 
New Business 
 
Terrace Café at Athens High School:  Jo Rhoads reported that the service and food are 
great.  She circulated a copy of the menu that was provided by Paula Fleming. 
 
Lunch Visits:  The Committee discussed visiting other centers to have lunch.  Carla 
suggested that they eat here in Troy first in order to be able to make a comparison.  
Committee members planned to have lunch in Troy twice in November.      
 
Reports 
 
Park Board:  Merrill Dixon reported that there was no meeting in October.   
 
Medi-Go:  Jo Rhoads reported that the clientele is expanding.  It is disturbing when people 
neglect to cancel their appointments when they no longer need a ride.  
 
Senior Program:  Carla reported that this fall’s Mental Aerobics class was full with 28 
students.  Retired teacher Karen Matthews provides techniques for improving memory and 
games and activities that “exercise” the brain.   Fifty-five seniors are signed up for leaf raking. 
The flu shot clinic is today until 3 p.m.   The Fine Art Show is tomorrow and will be held in the 
lobby of the Community Center this year for greater exposure.  Over 30 artists have registered 
to exhibit their works.   
 
OLHSA:  Pauline Noce reported that an ophthalmologist spoke and it was very interesting. 
 
Oakland County Senior Advisory Board:  Jo Rhoads reported that Brooks Patterson 
attended the meeting and committee members discussed their areas of concern.  Jo is 
concerned that the county commissioners may not be aware of all the issues in their districts.  
 
Suggestion Box:  No report 
 
Comments:   
 
David Ogg reported that the temporary speed limit signs should be taken down on Livernois 
near Long Lake.  Carla will pass this on to the DPW department.  
 
The meeting was adjourned at 2:45 p.m.  
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Bud Black, Chair              Carla Vaughan, Secretary 



campbellld
Text Box
J-02a



campbellld
Text Box
J-02b



 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

 
October 23, 2006 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Charles T. Craft, Chief of Police 
    Wendell Moore, Research & Technology Administrator 
 
SUBJECT:   2006 Year-To-Date Calls for Police Service Report 
 
 
Background: 
 
 Each quarter the police department publishes a year-to-date report comparing 2006 calls for 

service, criminal offenses, clearance rates, traffic crashes and citations issued through September 
2006, with the same time period of 2005.  Attached is a spreadsheet detailing the comparison, 
along with a 10-year history of criminal occurrences. 

 The report’s format complies with the National Incident Based Reporting System.  All offenses 
within an incident are reported.   

 Group A Crime increased 9.1% (236 incidents) from the 2005 level.  Within the group, the 
following categories show significant variations from 2005 levels: 
 Breaking and Entering: Up 10.6% (22 incidents) 
 Destruction/Damage to Property/Vandalism: Up 29.2% (80 incidents) 
 Drug Narcotics Offenses: Up 27% (33 incidents) 
 Fraud Offenses: Up 40.2% (33 incidents) 
 Motor Vehicle Theft: Up 35.1% (33 incidents) 
 Robbery: Up 53.8% (7 incidents) 
 Assault Offenses: Up 6.7% (31 incidents) 

• Group B Crime decreased 13.3% (221 incidents).  Significant variations from the 2005 levels 
occurred in the following:  
 Drunkenness: Decreased by 61.50% (8 incidents) 
 Drunk Driving: Decreased 20.9% (73 incidents) 

• Total incidents of crime (Group A & B combined) increased by 0.4% (15 incidents).   
• Clearance rates (the percentage of offenses for which a perpetrator has been prosecuted, or 

positively identified but not prosecuted) continue to be high, 32.7% for Group A Crime, and 59.4% 
for Group B Crime.  In total 42.0% of all reported crime has been cleared.   

• Arrests have increased 14.2% (128 arrests) for Group A crime, and decreased 11.4% (115 
arrests) for Group B crime.  Overall, arrests increased by 0.7% (13 arrests).   

• Group C (non-criminal) calls for police service decreased by 2.1% (542 incidents).   
• Year to date reported traffic crashes and traffic citations issued totals are as follows: 

campbellld
Text Box
J-02c



 2

 Property Damage crashes decreased 11.1% (223 crashes). 
 Injury crashes are down 24.0% (122 crashes). 
 Fatal crashes are down 40.0% (3 crashes in 2006, compared to 5 fatal crashes during the 

same time period in 2005). 
 Hazardous traffic citations issued are down 20.3% (1823 citations). 
 Non-hazardous traffic citations issued are down 62.2% (887 citations) 
 License/title/registration citations decreased 19.8% (596 citations).     
 Parking citations decreased 27.9% (209 citations). 
 Overall, crimes and non-criminal calls for police are down 1.8% (549 crimes/calls for service). 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 None 

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 None 

 
Policy Considerations: 
 
While in some categories the percentage increases are large, the corresponding numerical increases 
are not; particularly when spread over a nine-month period.  However, they are of concern to the 
police department in that we have enjoyed a decreasing overall crime rate in recent years.  When 
viewed in the context of a ten-year period, such statistical variations are not unusual; therefore, this 
increase should not be viewed as a definite indication that crime is beginning an upward trend (City of 
Troy Goal #6- Protect Life and Property).   
 
 
 



Troy Police Department
January through September 2006/2005 Comparison

INCIDENTS OFFENSES ARRESTS CLEARANCES
Percent Percent Percent

Group A Crime Categories 2006 2005 Change 2006 2005 Change 2006 2005 Change 2006 Percent
Arson 3 2 50.0% 4 3 33.3% 0 2         - 1 25.0%
Assault Offenses 493 462 6.7% 498 464 7.3% 159 144 10.4% 187 37.6%
Bribery 0 0        NC 0 0        NC 0        NC 0.0%
Breaking and Entering 229 207 10.6% 234 209 12.0% 21 12 75.0% 13 5.6%
Counterfeiting/Forgery 62 82 -24.4% 63 84 -25.0% 12 14 6.9% 13 20.6%
Destruction/Damage/Vandalism 354 274 29.2% 380 296 28.4% 10 15 -33.3% 26 6.8%
Drug/Narcotic Offenses 155 122 27.0% 250 203 23.2% 195 142 37.3% 241 96.4%
Embezzlement 57 54 5.6% 57 58 -1.7% 38 32 18.8% 26 45.6%
Extortion/Blackmail 0 1         - 0 1         - 0        NC 0 0.0%
Fraud Offenses 115 82 40.2% 133 88 51.1% 27 30 -10.0% 27 20.3%
Gambling Offenses 0 0        NC 0 0        NC 0        NC 0.0%
Homicide Offenses 1 1        NC 1 1        NC 0 1         - 1 100.0%
Kidnapping/Abduction 2 0         + 2 0         + 0        NC 0 0.0%
Larceny/Theft Offenses 1,170 1,167 0.3% 1,190 1,181 0.8% 513 480 6.9% 401 33.7%
Motor Vehicle Theft 127 94 35.1% 136 101 34.7% 14 6 133.3% 11 8.1%
Pornography/Obscene Material 1 0         + 1 0         + 1 0         + 1 100.0%
Prostitution Offenses 3 0         + 5 0         + 4 0         + 5 100.0%
Robbery 20 13 53.8% 20 13 53.8% 7 6 16.7% 6 30.0%
Sex Offenses, Forcible 20 19 5.3% 21 19 10.5% 6 6        NC 4 19.0%
Sex Offenses, Nonforcible 0 0        NC 0 0        NC 0        NC 0 0.0%
Stolen Property Offenses 9 5 80.0% 15 10 50.0% 12 5 140.0% 10 66.7%
Weapon Law Violations 11 11        NC 18 17 5.9% 13 9 44.4% 17 94.4%

Group A Total 2,832 2,596 9.1% 3,028 2,748 10.2% 1,032 904 14.2% 990 32.7%

Group B Crime Categories
Bad Checks 12 0         + 12 0         + 3 0         + 3 0.0%
Curfew/Loitering/Vagrancy 0 0        NC 0 0        NC 0 0        NC 0 0.0%
Disorderly Conduct 221 206 7.3% 238 214 11.2% 11 11        NC 27 11.3%
Driving Under the Influence 276 349 -20.9% 325 366 -11.2% 286 353 -19.0% 320 98.5%
Drunkenness 5 13 -61.5% 5 14 -64.3% 0 1         - 0 0.0%
Family Offenses, Nonviolent 14 8 75.0% 15 9 66.7% 0 0        NC 1 6.7%
Liquor Law Violations 68 67 1.5% 110 113 -2.7% 147 154 -4.5% 104 94.5%
Peeping Tom 6 2 200.0% 6 2 200.0% 2 0         + 2 33.3%
Runaway (Under 18) 9 25 -64.0% 9 25 -64.0% 0 0        NC 7 77.8%
Trespass of Real Property 17 15 13.3% 18 20 -10.0% 2 2        NC 5 27.8%
All Other 808 972 -16.9% 867 1,053 -17.7% 440 485 -9.3% 485 55.9%

Group B Total 1,436 1,657 -13.3% 1,605 1,816 -11.6% 891 1,006 -11.4% 954 59.4%

Group A and B Total 4,268 4,253 0.4% 4,633 4,564 1.5% 1,923 1,910 0.7% 1,944 42.0%
Above data includes both completed and attempted offenses.

Y-T-DY-T-D Y-T-D Y-T-D



Troy Police Department
January through September 2006/2005 Comparison

INCIDENTS OFFENSES ARRESTS CLEARANCES
Percent Percent Percent

Description 2006 2005 Change 2006 2005 Change 2006 2005 Change 2006 Percent
Alarms 2,944 3,262 -9.7% 2,944 3,262 -9.7% NA NA NA NA NA
All Other 22,427 22,651 -1.0% 22,771 22,965 -0.8% 710 592 19.9% NA NA

Group C Miscellaneous Total 25,371 25,913 -2.1% 25,715 26,227 -2.0% 710 592 19.9% NA NA

Group E Fire Total 16 38 -57.9% 16 38 -57.9% NA NA NA NA NA

Grand Totals 29,655 30,204 -1.8% 30,364 30,829 -1.5% 2,633 2,502 5.2% 1,944 42.0%

Traffic Crashes and Citations

Reportable Traffic Crashes 2006 Alcohol Involved Crashes
Personal Injury 386 508 -24.0% 17 Incidents--4.4% involved alcohol.

Property Damage 1,792 2,015 -11.1% 26 Incidents--1.5% involved alcohol.
Fatal 3 5 -40.0% 0 Incidents--0.0% involved alcohol.

Total Reportable 2,181 2,528 -13.7% 43 Incidents--2.0% of all reportable crashes involved alcohol.

Private Property Crashes 783 819 -4.4%

Crashes Grand Total 2,964 3,347 -11.4%

Traffic Citations
Hazardous 7,148 8,971 -20.3%

Non-hazardous 540 1,427 -62.2%
License, Title, Registration 2,408 3,004 -19.8%

Parking 541 750 -27.9%
Traffic Citations Total 10,637 14,152 -24.8%

Y-T-D Y-T-D Y-T-D Y-T-D



Part I Crimes 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996
Criminal Homicide 1 0 1 2 0 2 0 1 4 3
Forcible Rape 7 9 12 12 7 12 7 11 6 10
Robbery 19 20 27 21 18 19 15 21 23 30
Aggravated Assault 38 32 49 45 45 49 50 65 64 60
Burglary 275 239 292 344 314 348 264 385 427 386
Larceny 1,572 1,564 1,563 1,507 1,712 1,819 1,915 2,347 2,659 2,691
Motor Vehicle Theft 129 112 158 120 201 132 157 164 205 292
Arson 3 3 5 10 19 6 3 4 7 15

Total Part I 2,044 1,979 2,107 2,061 2,316 2,387 2,411 2,998 3,395 3,487

Part II Offenses
Negligent Homicide 5 2 1 2 2 0 3 1 1 0
Non-Aggravated Assault 313 299 273 309 286 318 319 330 379 434
Forgery/Counterfeiting 107 113 109 99 69 51 58 41 41 54
Fraud 108 163 184 207 256 279 317 299 285 269
Embezzlement 80 91 82 100 115 113 105 113 84 107
Stolen Property 7 14 11 8 6 20 22 16 21 41
Vandalism 365 443 558 482 505 638 521 770 735 773
Weapons 12 14 10 12 23 19 22 24 24 25
Accosting and Soliciting 1 10 1 1 1 1 2 0 2 1
Sex Offenses 34 46 37 48 36 39 47 44 50 65
Narcotics 143 134 93 103 128 133 147 143 124 139
Gambling 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0
Family and Children 15 24 10 15 17 24 12 15 7 24
OUIL/OUIN 451 447 322 455 476 470 452 580 399 370
Liquor Laws 74 71 60 70 86 101 69 120 84 97
Disorderly 74 117 119 100 128 133 111 117 93 217
All Other Offenses 1,783 1,928 2,141 2,209 2,568 2,612 2,822 2,920 2,593 2,714

Total Part II 3,572 3,916 4,011 4,220 4,702 4,951 5,029 5,534 4,922 5,330

Total Part I & II 5,616 5,895 6,118 6,281 7,018 7,338 7,440 8,532 8,317 8,817
Total Part III 32,871 32,871 32,391 33,348 35,797 37,869 37,787 36,738 34,966 36,019
Total Part V Fire 58 58 77 69 140 158 144 149 133 204

Total Incidents 38,545 38,824 38,586 39,698 42,955 45,365 45,371 45,419 43,416 45,040

Traffic Citations
Hazardous 11,869 11,538 12,356 11,621 13,250 12,240 11,621 11,627 9,800 9,727
Non-Hazardous 5,378 5,072 3,829 5,027 4,161 5,017 5,797 6,091 5,547 5,610
Parking 1,195 798 886 1,120 1,717 1,479 1,686 2,163 1,513 1,534

Total Citations 18,442 17,408 17,071 17,768 19,128 18,736 19,104 19,881 16,860 16,871

Traffic Crashes
Property Damage 2,824 2,638 2,700 2,474 2,737 3,247 3,049 3,078 3,017 3,010
Personal Injury 656 716 722 753 882 940 930 1,008 1,060 1,149
Fatal 6 10 2 7 9 8 8 3 4 8

Total State Reportable 3,486 3,364 3,424 3,234 3,628 4,195 3,987 4,089 4,081 4,167
Private Property 1,133 1,137 1,317 1,345 1,440 1,479 1,491 1,406 1,489

Total Crashes 3,486 4,497 4,561 4,551 4,973 5,635 5,466 5,580 5,487 5,656

ACTUAL INCIDENTS BY CRIME CLASS GROUP
TEN YEAR TREND



DATE:         November 1, 2006
TO:             Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager
FROM:        Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning
SUBJECT:  Permits issued during the Month of October 2006

NO. VALUATION PERMIT FEE
INDUSTRIAL
Fnd. New 1 $190,000.00 $1,475.00
Add/Alter 5 $235,136.00 $2,221.00

Sub Total 6 $425,136.00 $3,696.00

COMMERCIAL
Shell New 2 $6,008,000.00 $32,320.00
Tenant Completion 1 $30,000.00 $355.00
Add/Alter 20 $1,631,304.00 $14,026.00
Wall 2 $18,000.00 $325.00
Kiosk 2 $230,000.00 $1,900.00

Sub Total 27 $7,917,304.00 $48,926.00

RESIDENTIAL
New 5 $1,005,000.00 $7,760.00
Add/Alter 34 $682,674.00 $8,145.00
Garage/Acc. Structure 7 $53,782.00 $1,056.00
Pool/Spa/Hot Tub 5 $145,985.00 $1,546.00
Repair 4 $27,500.00 $542.00
Fire Repair 2 $179,780.00 $1,557.00
Wreck 1 $0.00 $60.00

Sub Total 58 $2,094,721.00 $20,666.00

TOWN HOUSE/CONDO
Add/Alter 4 $11,519.00 $300.00

Sub Total 4 $11,519.00 $300.00

INSTITUTIONAL/HOSPITAL
Add/Alter 1 $260,000.00 $1,965.00

Sub Total 1 $260,000.00 $1,965.00

MISCELLANEOUS
Satellite/Antennas 1 $25,000.00 $320.00
Signs 24 $0.00 $2,550.00
Fences 13 $0.00 $215.00

Sub Total 38 $25,000.00 $3,085.00

TOTAL 134 $10,733,680.00 $78,638.00

Page 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-02d



PERMITS ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF OCTOBER 2006
NO. PERMIT FEE

Mul. Dwel. Insp. 295 $2,950.00
Cert. of Occupancy 31 $3,026.90
Plan Review 120 $10,467.00
Microfilm 36 $332.00
Building Permits 134 $78,638.00
Electrical Permits 188 $12,154.00
Heating Permits 147 $8,540.00
Air Cond. Permits 60 $3,215.00
Refrigeration Permits 1 $60.00
Plumbing Permits 161 $9,645.00
Storm Sewer Permits 11 $2,409.00
Sanitary Sewer Permits 11 $419.00
Sewer Taps 14 $4,052.00

TOTAL 1209 $135,907.90

LICENSES & REGISTRATIONS ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF OCTOBER 2006
NO. LICENSE FEE

Mech. Contr.-Reg. 57 $285.00
Elec. Contr.-Reg. 26 $390.00
Master Plmb.-Reg. 22 $22.00
Sewer Inst.-Reg. 7 $350.00
Sign Inst. - Reg. 5 $50.00
Fence Inst.-Reg. 3 $30.00
Bldg. Contr.-Reg. 27 $270.00

TOTAL 25 $1,397.00

Page 2



BUILDING PERMITS ISSUED

BUILDING PERMIT BUILDING PERMIT
PERMITS VALUATION PERMITS VALUATION

2005 2005 2006 2006

JANUARY 93 $6,617,765.00 116 $7,273,163.00

FEBRUARY 133 $8,586,755.00 94 $6,659,691.00

MARCH 143 $19,405,253.00 127 $5,629,425.00

APRIL 234 $16,039,899.00 174 $5,766,996.00

MAY 229 $8,974,377.00 216 $11,290,598.00

JUNE 207 $14,432,280.00 218 $10,681,352.00

JULY 176 $7,490,327.00 198 $11,269,902.00

AUGUST 202 $13,132,327.00 150 $14,170,725.00

SEPTEMBER 207 $11,424,698.00 161 $12,827,192.00

OCTOBER 169 $12,606,760.00 134 $10,733,680.00

NOVEMBER 137 $9,014,642.00 0 $0.00

DECEMBER 91 $13,489,338.00 0 $0.00

TOTAL 2021 $141,214,421.00 1588 $96,302,724.00



2004 2004

SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING PERMITS 2006

12 9 4 9 7 9 6 4
11

5
0

10
20
30
40
50
60

Ja
nu

ar
y

Fe
br

ua
ry

M
ar

ch

A
pr

il

M
ay

Ju
ne

Ju
ly

A
ug

us
t

Se
pt

em
be

r

O
ct

ob
er

N
ov

em
be

r

D
ec

em
be

r



Nov 1, 2006 BRIEF BREAKDOWN OF NON-RESIDENTIAL BUILDING PERMITSPrinted:
ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF OCTOBER 2006Page:  1

Type of Construction Address of Job ValuationBuilder or Company

Commercial, Add/Alter RUTHER CONSTRUCTION INC 800 TOWER 5TH FL  415,000
Commercial, Add/Alter COMMERCIAL MILLWORK & INTERIORS 2705 W BIG BEAVER 1ST FL  117,000
Commercial, Add/Alter SCHOOLCRAFT GENERAL CONTRACTOR 5950 ROCHESTER  187,625
Commercial, Add/Alter SACHSE CONSTRUCTION 2800 W BIG BEAVER N-114  156,489
Commercial, Add/Alter SYNERGY GROUP INC 755 W BIG BEAVER 700  150,000

Commercial, Add/AlterTotal  1,026,114

Commercial, Kiosk LOCKWOOD, LEWIS CONST CO 446 W FOURTEEN MILE K  220,000

Commercial, KioskTotal  220,000

Commercial, Shell New AUCH, GEORGE W. CO 3838 LIVERNOIS  6,000,000

Commercial, Shell NewTotal  6,000,000

Industrial, Add/Alter HARTMAN & TYNER 601 STEPHENSON  130,000

Industrial, Add/AlterTotal  130,000

Industrial, Foundation New ARISTEO CONSTRUCTION 1767 MAPLELAWN  190,000

Industrial, Foundation NewTotal  190,000

Inst./Hosp., Add/Alter WILLIAM BEAUMONT HOSPITAL TROY 44201 DEQUINDRE GRD FL  260,000

Inst./Hosp., Add/AlterTotal  260,000

Total Valuation:  7,826,114Records  11



campbellld
Text Box
J-02e





campbellld
Text Box
J-03a



campbellld
Text Box
J-04a





campbellld
Text Box
J-04b



11/27 PH Comm. Veh.App. 5933 Diamond
11/27 PH Z-720 Sec. 14 R-1C to R-1T

S M T W T F S
1 2 3 4

5 6 7 8 9 10 11
12 13 14 15 16 17 18
19 20 21 22 23 24 25
26 27 28 29 30

November 2006
S M T W T F S

1 2
3 4 5 6 7 8 9

10 11 12 13 14 15 16
17 18 19 20 21 22 23
24 25 26 27 28 29 30
31

December 2006November 2006

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Sat/Sun
November 1

8:30am BUILDING CODE 
BOARD OF APPEALS 
(Conference Room 
LL)

2 3 4

5

6 7
7:30pm Planning Commission 

Special/Study 
(Council Boardroom)

8 9 10 11

12

13
7:00pm Liquor Advisory 

Committee Meeting 
(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

7:30pm City Council Meeting 
(Council Chambers)

14
7:30pm Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting 
(Council Chambers)

15
7:30am DDA Meeting 

(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

16 17 18

19

20 21
7:30pm BZA (Chambers)
7:30pm Historic District 

Commission 
(Conference Room C)

22 23
City Hall Closed

Thanksgiving

24 25

26

27
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

28
7:30pm Planning Commission 

Special/Study 
(Council Boardroom)

29 30

mccombca
Text Box

mccombca
Text Box
J-05



11/27 PH Comm. Veh.App. 5933 Diamond
11/27 PH Z-720 Sec. 14 R-1C to R-1T

S M T W T F S
1 2

3 4 5 6 7 8 9
10 11 12 13 14 15 16
17 18 19 20 21 22 23
24 25 26 27 28 29 30
31

December 2006
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5 6
7 8 9 10 11 12 13

14 15 16 17 18 19 20
21 22 23 24 25 26 27
28 29 30 31

January 2007December 2006

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Sat/Sun
December 1 2

3

4
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

5
7:30pm Planning Commission 

Special/Study 
(Council Boardroom)

6
8:30am BUILDING CODE 

BOARD OF APPEALS 
(Conference Room 
LL)

7 8 9

10

11
7:00pm Liquor Advisory 

Committee Meeting 
(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

12
7:30pm Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting 
(Council Chambers)

13 14 15 16

17

18
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

19
7:30pm BZA (Chambers)
7:30pm Historic District 

Commission 
(Conference Room C)

20
7:30am DDA Meeting 

(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

21 22
City Hall Closed

23

24

25
City Hall Closed

26 27 28 29
City Hall Closed

30

31



11/27 PH Comm. Veh.App. 5933 Diamond
11/27 PH Z-720 Sec. 14 R-1C to R-1T

S M T W T F S
1 2 3 4 5 6

7 8 9 10 11 12 13
14 15 16 17 18 19 20
21 22 23 24 25 26 27
28 29 30 31

January 2007
S M T W T F S

1 2 3
4 5 6 7 8 9 10

11 12 13 14 15 16 17
18 19 20 21 22 23 24
25 26 27 28

February 2007January 2007

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Sat/Sun
January 1, 07 2 3

8:30am BUILDING CODE 
BOARD OF APPEALS 
(Conference Room 
LL)

4 5 6

7

8
7:00pm Liquor Advisory 

Committee Meeting 
(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

7:30pm City Council Meeting 
(Council Chambers)

9 10 11 12 13

14

15 16
7:30pm BZA (Chambers)
7:30pm Historic District 

Commission 
(Conference Room C)

17
7:30am DDA Meeting 

(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

18 19 20

21

22
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

23 24 25 26 27

28

29 30 31



campbellld
Text Box
J-06





 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT
 

Date:    November 1, 2006 
 
 
TO:   Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
   Charles T. Craft, Police Chief 
 
SUBJECT:   Rifle Exchange 
 
Background: 
 
 Police Department’s Tactical Support Team initiated research to replace its four sniper rifles, due 

to age (15 plus years) and unreliability. 
 Two of the rifles (Heckler & Koch PSG-1) have some collector value, as they no longer are 

produced.   
 Three licensed firearms dealers were contacted regarding the trade of the old rifles……Title II 

Services, the company used in the last firearm trade, D and D Gunsmiths in Troy, and Williams 
Gun Sight Company of Davison; as well as Double Action shooting range in Madison Heights.  

 Only one of the three dealers, Williams Gun Sight agreed to provide four new state of the art rifles 
in exchange for the old.  The City will also receive the necessary scopes, mounts and cases for 
these new rifles.    

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 There is no cost to the City of Troy. 

 
Legal Considerations:  
 
 Other vendors were contacted, but nobody was interested in a trade.   
 City management has determined no advantage would result from a sealed bid process due to 

limited competition and the specialized nature of the weapons. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 The exchange of surplus property for new equipment minimizes cost and increases government 

efficiency. (Goal I) 
 New rifles will be reliable, and provide necessary equipment to the Tactical Support Team to 

protect the public (Goal VI) 
 
Options: 
 
 No action required 

 
SM/  PLN/mr\Agenda Item 

campbellld
Text Box
J-07









campbellld
Text Box
J-08





 
 
DATE:  November 7, 2006 
 
 
TO:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 

Carol Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Troy Daze Advisory Committee Recommendation 
  
Background: 
 

• At their October 24, 2006 meeting, the Troy Daze Advisory Committee recommended the appointment of 
Bill Hall to serve as the Troy Daze Advisory Committee representative to the Parks and Recreation 
Advisory Board. 

• The term of the current Troy Daze Advisory Committee representative to the Parks and Recreation 
Advisory Board expires 11/30/06. 

 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 

• There are no financial considerations associated with this item. 
 

  
Legal Considerations:  
 

• There are no legal considerations associated with this item.  
 

Policy Considerations: 
 

• Chapter 27, Section 27.20(3) of the City Ordinance states that Troy City Council shall appoint “one 
representative from the Troy Daze Committee who shall be nominated by the Troy Daze Committee, and 
who shall serve for a one (1) year term”. (Goal #3) 

 
Options: 
 

• Council can approve or deny the recommendation. 
 
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-09


	AGENDA: November 13, 2006
	GOALS
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET: Return to 1st Page
	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:
	A-1 Presentations:
	National Red Ribbon Campaign – Kathy Grimaldi, Troy Families


	CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	B-1 No Carryover Items

	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	C-1 Community Development Block Grant  (CDBG) 2007 Applicati
	C-2 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 227) 
	C-3 Street Vacation (File Number: SV 148-C) – Portions of Da

	POSTPONED ITEMS:
	D-1 City Council Appointments: Troy Daze Committee

	CONSENT AGENDA:
	E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Co
	E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s): None Submitted
	E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions
	a\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Aw�
	b\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Aw�
	c\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bi�
	d\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Aw�

	E-5 Approval of Subdivision Entrance Sign/Agreement – Wyngat
	E-6 Hooters of Troy, Inc. v City of Troy
	E-7 Application for Transfer of Class SDM License for Norm’s

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda
	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA); and Planning Commission b) City Council Appointments:  Advisory Comm
	F-2 Traffic Committee Recommendations – October 18, 2006
	F-3 Proposed Agreement between City of Troy and William Beau
	F-4 Approval to Negotiate a Food Service Contract for Commun
	F-5 Designation of Voting Delegates at Annual NLC Meeting – 

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:
	Rezoning Request (File Number Z 720) – East Side of Rocheste

	G-2 Green Memorandums:  None Submitted

	COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Ind
	H-1 Proposed Resolution to the State of Michigan Regarding G

	COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	I-1   No Council Comments Advanced

	REPORTS:
	J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	Brownfield Redevelopment Authority/Final – July 18, 2006
	Troy Youth Council/Final – August 23, 2006
	Troy Daze Advisory Committee/Final – September 6, 2006
	Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – September 19, 2006
	Historic District Commission/Final – September 19, 2006
	Historic Commission/Final – September 26, 2006
	Election Commission/Final – October 2, 2006
	Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – October 3, 2006
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – October 3, 2006
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – October 3, 2006
	Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – Oct
	Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – Oct
	Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – October 4, 2006
	Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – October 5, 20
	Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – October 9, 2006
	Planning Commission/Draft – October 10, 2006
	Planning Commission/Final – October 10, 2006
	Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – October 17, 2006
	Building Code Board of Appeals/Special/Draft – October 18, 2
	Cable Advisory Committee/Draft – October 19, 2006
	Election Commission/Draft – October 23, 2006
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – October 24, 2006
	Troy Daze Festival-Advisory Committee/Draft – October 24, 20
	Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – November 2, 2

	J-2 Department Reports:
	Council Member Robin Beltramini’s Travel Expense Report – NL
	Council Member Dave Lambert’s Travel Expense Report – NLC An
	Police Department – 2006 Year-to-Date Calls for Police Servi
	Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of Oct
	Library Ranking

	J-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	Letter of Thanks to City Clerk Tonni Bartholomew from Congre

	J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizat
	Resolution from the City of Oak Park Opposing State Ballot P
	Resolution from Harrison Township Board of Trustees to Safeg

	J-5  Calendar
	J-6  Communication from Traffic Engineer John Abraham Regard
	J-7  Communication from Police Chief Craft Regarding Rifle E
	J-8  Notice of Hearing for Electric Customers of Detroit Edi
	J-9  Communication from Parks and Recreation Director Carol 

	STUDY ITEMS:
	K-1  No Study Items Submitted

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items
	CLOSED SESSION:
	L-1 Closed Session:  No Closed Session Requested

	ADJOURNMENT



